
 
Ryedale District Council, Ryedale House, Malton, North Yorkshire, YO17 7HH 
Tel: 01653 600666  Fax: 01653 696801 
www.ryedale.gov.uk  working with you to make a difference 
 
 

 
Presentation by the Homes and Communities Agency (Yorkshire & Humber) 
 
At 5.45 pm prior to the meeting Naz Parkar of the Homes and Communities Agency (Yorkshire & 
Humber) will give a presentation on the work of the organisation and potential joint working with 
the Council.  All Members of the Council are invited to attend.  

 

1 Apologies for absence   
 

 

2 Minutes of a Meeting of the Community Services Committee held on 24 
September 2009  (Pages 1 - 6) 

 

 To approve as a correct record the minutes of a meeting of the Community 
Services Committee held on 24 September 2009. 
 

3 Urgent Business    

 To receive notice of any urgent business which the Chairman considers 
should be dealt with at the meeting as a matter of urgency by virtue of Section 
100B(4)(b) of the Local Government Act 1972. 
 

4 Declarations of Interest    

 Members to indicate whether they will be declaring any interests under the 
Members’ of Code of Conduct. 
 
Members making a declaration of interest at a meeting of a Committee or 
Council are required to disclose the existence and nature of that interest.  
This requirement is not discharged by merely declaring a personal interest 
without further explanation.  
 

5 PART A - Matters to be dealt with under delegated powers or matters 
determined by the Committee   

 

 

6 Performance & Finance Report - Council Aims 1 - 4  (Pages 7 - 48) 
 

 

7 Housing Performance Report  (Pages 49 - 52) 
 

 

8 Breathing Spaces - Mortgage Loan Scheme  (Pages 53 - 60) 
 

 

 

 

 
 
 

COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
Thursday 26 November 2009 at 6.30 pm 

Members’ Lounge, Ryedale House, Malton  
 

 
 
 

     Agenda 

Please Contact: 
Extension 

Mrs Lynda Carter 
202 

Date of Publication 
E Mail 

18 November 2009 
lynda.carter@ryedale.gov.uk 

Public Document Pack



 
 
 

9 External Review of Pickering and Helmsley Markets  (Pages 61 - 76) 
 

 

10 Proposed Refurbishment of the Public Toilets at Market Place, Malton  (Pages 
77 - 82) 

 

 

11 The Malton Air Quality Management Order 2009 - Results of Consultation 
 (Pages 83 - 92) 

 

 

12 Vale of Pickering Channel Management Pilot Project  (Pages 93 - 106) 
 

 

13 PART B - Matters referred to Council   
 

 

14 Commissioning Board - Proposed Terms of Reference  (Pages 107 - 116) 
 

 

15 Fees and Charges  (Pages 117 - 130) 
 

 

16 Any other business that the Chairman decides is urgent.   
 

 



 

Community Services Committee 1 Thursday 24 September 2009 

 
 

 
Community Services Committee 

 
Held at Ryedale House, Malton  
on Thursday 24 September 2009 
 
Present 

 
Councillors  Mrs L Cowling (Chairman), Mrs De Wend Fenton, Hemesley, Ms Warriner 
and Woodward 
 
Councillor Knaggs - Substitute 
Councillor Mrs Shields - Overview & Scrutiny Committee Observer 
  
In Attendance 

 
Mrs B Bennett, Mrs F Brown, Mrs L Carter, R Etherington, Mrs M Jackson, P Long,  
S Richmond and J Rudd. 
 
 
Minutes 

 
23 Apologies for Absence 

 
Apologies for absence were received from Councillors Mrs Arnold, Mrs Frank, 
Hope and Mrs Keal.  
 
 

24 Minutes 
 
The minutes of a meeting of the Community Services Committee held on 23 
July 2009 were presented. 
 
 Resolved 
 
 That the minutes of a meeting of the Community Services 

Committee held on 23 July 2009 be approved and signed by the 
Chairman as a correct record.  

 
 

25 Urgent Business 
 
The Chairman reported that there were no items to be considered under 
urgent business. 
 
 

26 Declarations of Interest 
 
There were no declarations of interest received. 
 
 
PART 'A' ITEMS - Matters to be dealt with under delegated powers or 

Agenda Item 2

Page 1



 
 
 

 

 

Community Services Committee 2 Thursday 24 September 2009 

 
 

matters determined by Committee 

 

27 Performance and Finance Report - Council Aims 1 - 4 
 
The Heads of Economy & Housing, Environment and Planning submitted a 
joint report the purpose of which was to present for comment the performance 
and finance reports for Council Aims 1 - 4, and to inform Members of progress 
made against the Council’s agreed aims and strategic objectives, as agreed 
by Members in the Council Plan 2009/13. 
 
The Council Plan for 2009-13 had been adopted in March 2009.  The Financial 
Strategy had been agreed in February 2009.  The report included a progress 
report on the delivery of the Council Plan to the end of August 2009, in terms 
of actions delivered and performance levels achieved together with a review of 
the financial implications to date. 
 
The report included the first 4 aims, which all fell within the terms of reference 
of the Community Services Committee: 
 
Aim 1 To meet housing need in the Ryedale District Council area; 
Aim 2 To create the conditions for economic success 
Aim 3 To have a high quality, clean and sustainable environment; and 
Aim 4 To help residents to achieve a healthy weight by encouraging an 

active lifestyle, in communities where everyone felt welcome and safe. 
 
It was noted that performance against Aim 5: To Transform the Council was to 
be reported to the Policy & Resources Committee on 1 October 2009. 
 
In addition, the report detailed the schedule of performance reports to be 
presented to Members throughout the year together with the links to the 
corporate planning framework. 
 
Members considered the report in detail and sought clarification from officers 
on various points within the report.  Members requested that where possible 
the use of jargon be avoided and that the report include a glossary of terms 
and abbreviations.   
 
 Resolved 
 
 That the Performance and Finance Report be endorsed.  
 
 

28 Housing - Performance Report 
 
The Head of Economy & Housing submitted a report the purpose of which was 
to inform Members of progress made against the Council’s agreed Housing 
policies and to invite comments from the Committee. 

Page 2



 
 
 

 

 

Community Services Committee 3 Thursday 24 September 2009 

 
 

 
The report outlined progress made towards the following strategic objectives: 
 

• To enable the provision of affordable housing for rent and low cost 
ownership for sale 

• Development of services to meet the needs of homeless applicants and 
implementation of measures to prevent homelessness 

• To address decency issues in the private sector and the maintenance of 
the private housing stock in general 

• Enabling independent living 

• To contribute to social inclusion and the provision of sustainable 
communities 

 
Members noted that the proposed development of 15 homes on an exception 
site in Pickering had received funding, and that consultation with the Town 
Council and the local community was in progress.  It was anticipated that a 
planning application for the development would be submitted in the near 
future.  A Pickering Ward Member reported that a presentation on the 
proposed development had been given to Pickering Town Council.  The 
Housing Services Manager reported that an Open Day was to be arranged 
and this would provide an opportunity for members of the public to comment 
and ask questions.  Members were of the opinion that it was important to 
ensure that the homes would be offered to Pickering residents.  The Housing 
Services Manager reported that as this was an ‘exception’ site, the Section 
106 Agreement would include a condition to this effect. 
 
 Resolved 
 
 That the report be endorsed. 
 
 

29 Policy in Relation to Wild Animals on Council Owned Land 
 
The Head of Environment submitted a report which requested the Committee 
to determine a position in relation to the exhibiting/performance of wild animals 
through circuses etc on Council owned land. 
 
Members were reminded that at a meeting of the Community Services 
Committee held on 26 March 2009, during a discussion on the proposed policy 
on the use of car parks, Members had requested that a report be submitted to 
a future meeting in connection with a policy relating to wild animals on 
Council-owned land. 
 
It was reported that the Council had very little appropriate land on which to 
hold a circus, either with or without animals, and had never had an approach 
made to it.  The legal position of issuing a blanket ban was not as simple as it 
first appeared but was open to legal challenge.  Given the hypothetical 

Page 3



 
 
 

 

 

Community Services Committee 4 Thursday 24 September 2009 

 
 

question of a request for the staging of a circus with wild (non-domesticated) 
animals on its land it was recommended that the Council should not adopt a 
blanket ban on circuses with wild (non-domesticated) or performing animals 
but should consider each application on its own merits and refer any such 
application to the Community Services Committee for decision. 
 
 Resolved 
 
 That each application to stage a circus with non-domesticated 

animals on Council owned land be considered on its own merits 
and that any such application be referred to the Community 
Services Committee for determination. 

 
NB Councillor Woodward recorded his vote against the above decision.  
 
 

30 Low Carbon Economy - Regional Information Papers 
 
The Head of Environment submitted a report the purpose of which was to 
inform and update Members in relation to regional activity and initiatives on the 
low carbon economy in Yorkshire and Humber and in particular the work of 
Yorkshire Forward, Government Office (GOYH) and the North Yorkshire 
Strategic Partnership (NYSP). 
 
At the July 2009 meeting of the Committee Members had recommended to 
Council a range of initiatives to support the achievement of the Council’s CO2 
targets. 
 
The report included three papers outlining the work across the region to help 
reduce CO2 emissions and promote a low carbon economy: 
 

• Low Carbon Economy Update - Yorkshire Forward 

• The Climate Change Challenge for North Yorkshire - GOYH 

• A partnership approach to Climate Change - NYSP 
 
The reports were presented for information and to help demonstrate how 
Ryedale District Council’s initiatives related to the wider regional and sub-
regional context.  However, the Head of Environment reported that in the 
event of any issues arising from the reports that the Committee wished to 
explore further, either by way of a visit or a presentation, this could be brought 
to a future meeting. 
 
With reference to the GOYH report and the Renewable Energy Strategy and 
the aim to provide 15% of energy from renewables by 2020, Councillor 
Woodward sought clarification of the percentage of renewables applying to 
Ryedale.  In addition, Councillor Woodward requested details of the top ten 
interventions to cut regional carbon emissions as referred to in the GOYH 

Page 4



 
 
 

 

 

Community Services Committee 5 Thursday 24 September 2009 

 
 

report.  It was agreed that Councillor Woodward would receive a response to 
the former point and all Members would be provided with a copy of the 
response to the latter point. 
 
 Resolved 
 
 That the report be noted. 
 
 
PART 'B' - Matters referred to Council 

 

31 Monthly Winter Garden Waste Collection Pilot 
 
The Head of Environment submitted a report the purpose of which was to 
consider the implementation of a monthly collection system pilot for garden 
waste during the winter months to reduce operational miles travelled, facilitate 
reductions in CO2 emissions and secure efficiency savings. 
 
The Council had made significant strides in actions to reduce CO2 emissions 
and challenging targets had been set.  Implementation of the changes 
recommended in the report would help reduce CO2 emissions and enable 
RDC to exceed the emission reduction targets set as well as realise cashable 
efficiency savings.  Meeting long-term government emission reduction targets 
would continue to be a real challenge, requiring significant further investment.  
 
The report outlined two options for the Committee’s consideration, option 2 
being the preferred option, which involved four-weekly garden waste 
collections from around the end of November to early March - essentially three 
months, which would achieve the following benefits: 
 

• Mileage reduction of an estimated 8,677 miles 

• Estimated fuel savings of £13,910 for 2009/10 

• Potential carbon savings of up to 42.07 tonnes and an estimated 2% 
reduction on RDC total emissions for 2009/10 

• Vehicle hire savings over the Christmas/New Year period of £2000 

• Potential recurring efficiency savings in future years of £8000. 
 
In the event that the Committee supported the recommendation it would be 
referred to the next meeting of Council on 5 November 2009, with a view to 
implementation at the end of November 2009.  Although the timescale for 
implementation was tight officers considered it achievable. 
 
 Resolved 
 
 That Council be recommended to approve 
 

Page 5



 
 
 

 

 

Community Services Committee 6 Thursday 24 September 2009 

 
 

 (a) A pilot scheme to reduce the frequency of winter garden 
waste collections across the District from alternate weekly to 
once every four weeks during December, January and 
February 2009/10 to reduce CO2 emissions and secure 
efficiency savings  

 
 (b) Outcomes from the pilot to be reported back to Community 

Services Committee for consideration following the trial.  
 
 
Meeting closed at 8.10 pm 

 

Page 6



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 
 

 
 
PART A:   MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
REPORT OF THE: HEADS OF ECONOMY & HOUSING, ENVIRONMENT & 

PLANNING 
    JULIAN RUDD, PHIL LONG & GARY HOUSDEN 
 
SUBJECT:   PERFORMANCE AND FINANCE REPORT  

COUNCIL AIMS 1 - 4 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To present for comment the performance and finance reports for Council Aims 1-4.  
 
1.2 To inform Members of progress made against the Council’s agreed aims and 

strategic objectives, as agreed by members in the Council Plan 2009/13. 
 
2.0  RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members endorse the performance and finance report and 

agree any amendments to policy or further action required to improve performance. 
 
3.0 REPORT 
 
3.1 The Council adopted the Council Plan for 2009-13 in March 2009. The Financial 

Strategy was agreed in February 2009. The document attached at Annex A provides 
a progress report on the delivery of the Council Plan to the end of October 2009 in 
terms of actions delivered and performance levels achieved and a review of the 
financial implications to date.  

 
3.2 This report includes the first 4 aims which all fall within the terms of reference of this 

committee: 
 Aim 1 To meet housing need in the Ryedale District Council area; 
 Aim 2  To create the conditions for economic success; 
 Aim 3  To have a high quality, clean and sustainable environment; and 

Aim 4  To help residents to achieve a healthy weight by encouraging an active 
lifestyle, in communities where everyone feels welcome and safe.  

 
3.3 Performance against the fifth aim: To Transform the Council, will be reported to the 

Policy and Resources Committee in December 2009. 

Agenda Item 6

Page 7



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
3.4 The table below details the schedule of the performance reports to be presented to 

members throughout the year and links to the corporate planning framework. 
 

Schedule of Performance Reports 2009/10 

Date Committee Report 
Links to Corporate 
Planning Framework 

26 Nov 09 Community Services  
Council Plan Aim 1,2,3,4  
Performance and Finance 

Progress to end of October 
2009 

03 Dec 09 Policy & Resources 
Council Plan Aim 5  
Performance and Finance Report 

25 Mar 10 Community Services  
Council Plan Aim 1,2,3,4  
Performance and Finance 

Council Plan - revised 
delivery detail for 2010/11 

01 Apr 10 Policy & Resources 
Council Plan Aim 5  
Performance and Finance Report 

 
 
 
Julian Rudd, Head of Economy & Housing 
Phil Long, Head of Environment 
Gary Housden, Head of Planning 
 
 
 
Author:  Julian Rudd, Head of Economy & Housing 

Phil Long, Head of Environment 
Gary Housden, Head of Planning 

 
Telephone No: 01653 600666 
 
E-Mail Address: julian.rudd@ryedale.gov.uk  
    phil.long@ryedale.gov.uk 
    gary.housden@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers: 
None. 
 
Background Papers are available for inspection at: 
Covalent  
 

Page 8



1

�
�
�
�
��
��
	
�

�
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�

�
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��
��

	
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
��
�
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�





�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
�

�
�
�
�
	�
�
�


��


�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��

�
�
	�
�

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
�!
�
�


"
�

#
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�

��
��
�


��
��
�
��

�
�
�


�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
"
�

$
��
%
�
�
��

	
��
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�&
��
�'
��
��
�

��
"
�

(
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
"
�

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�



�
��





�

�
�
�
���
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
	�

�
�$
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
�


�
�



�



�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��


�

��
��
�


�	
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�$
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�'
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
� 



�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�$
�$
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
�


�
��
�
��
��


��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�#
��
�
�



�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
�
*
�	
�
��

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�	

�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�


	�
+&
�
),
,
-�

�
�$
�#
��
�
��
		

	
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�


�
�

��
��

�
	�

�
�
�$
�(
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��

Agenda Item 6

Page 9



2

�
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�





�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
	�

�
�


��


�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� �
�
�


�
��
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
��


��
��
�
��
		
�

�
��
�
�
��

�
	�
��
�
��
�
�.
�
�
��
�
�	
��
��
$
/
/
0
12
��
�
 
�
�

	�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
3�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�




�
�
�

�	
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��





�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
	4
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
�

��
��


��
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
0
��
��
�
 
�
�
�
�4
��
�
�
�	
�




�
�
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�



�
 
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�$
/
/
2
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
3�
��


�
��
��
�
�
�	
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
��
�

�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
 
��
�

�
	�
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
��
�
��
 
�
��
��
��
�
�


�
��
�


�
��
��
�
	�
��
��

�
�
��
��

 

�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

	
	

�
�
��
��

�
�
 
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
 
�
�'
	�
��
�
	�
��
� 

�
�
��
&
)	
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�

�
��

�
�

�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
 
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
��
�

�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

��
��


�

�
�

�
�
�

,
�
�

��
5
�!
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
,
��
�
��
�
�
��
2
��
�

�
	�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�

�
��

�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�$
/
/
2
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
2
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
	�
 

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


�

�
�

6

�
'
�
�
�
�
�
�	



�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�$
/
�
/
4�
 

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�'
�
��
��
 
�
�	
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

�

�
�

�
�
�$
/
�
/
1�
�
��
�
�
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�7
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�8
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
8
��
�
�
�

�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	

��
	�

�
��
�
�
3�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
�9
�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
:�


�
��

�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
	�
��
�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��

�


�

�
�
��
��
��
	�
�
�
�

	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�


�

�
�	
�
�
�

�

��
�

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
�
��
�
		

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�	

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��

	
��
�
�


��
��
�



�
�
�

�

�


��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
� 
�
�

��
�;
�
�$
/
/
0
12
�



�
��

�
�


��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
	�
��
��
$
�	
��
�
�
�
	�
 
�
��
�	
�
�
�

�
��


4�

�
�!
�
 
��
�
�1
�<
�
�


��
�
�+
�
/
��
�

�
	-
��
�


�

�
�,
�
�
��
��
��
�
�+
0
��
�

�
	-
��
�<
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
	�
 
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

	�


�

��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�9
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�	
�
�
3�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��


�
��

�
	�
�
�


��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�&
�
��

�
�
��
/
=
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�	
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�>
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
7�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�%
�
�'
�

	�

��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
		

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

��
�	

�
�
��
��
9

�
'
�
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�$
/
/
2
1�
/
��
�
�
��
 

�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
	�
�*
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�

	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��


��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
?
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
,
�
�
�
��
��
�

	
��
		

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
'

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

�	
��
�
�
�
	�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��

�

��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��





�

�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
<
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�


4�
!
�
��
�
�
� 
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��


�

�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�


��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
$
��
�
 
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�

�
	�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
;�
�
	
��
��
�
��
�


��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�7
	�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
	�
 

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�


�


�

�
�$
/
/
2
1�
/
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
 

�
�
�

�	
�9
��
�
�

�
�
�9
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
�
��
���
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
*
��
�
�
 
�
�'
��
�


��
�
	�
��
�
�
	�
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
 
��
�
��
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�


��
�*
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
9
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�7
	�
*
�
� 
�
�

�9
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
@

�
�
��
��
��
=
/
/
�

�
��

�
�


��
�
	�
�
�
	�
	�
��
�
�
��
�

�


�

�
�
��

�
	�
��
��
�
 

�
�
��
��
�
3�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��

	
�
��
�
��

�


��
�
��

�
�A
�
�
�
1A
�
��
�$
/
/
2
��
�%
�
�'
�
	
� 
�
��
��


��
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�
��
�
�


��
��
��
�

�
�
���
�



�
�
��
�

��
.
�

�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�)
�
*
���
�
��
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�&
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
�)
�
�


�,
��

�
�
�

�

�
�
�,
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
+&
�
),
,
-�

	
��
�
 
��

�
�
�

	�


��
�,
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�'
�
�
�
	
	�
�
	�

�
		
�
�

�
��


� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��

	�
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
'
�
��
��
��
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
1A
�
�
�
�
��
�$
/
�
/
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
;�
�
	
�

Page 10



3

�
�
�

�

�
�
��


��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
��
�

��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 

�
���
�
��
�
�

�
 
�


��
	�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�)
�
*
��
��
��
		
��
�

�
/
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�	
� 
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��


�

�
�$
/
/
0
12
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
B
�
0
/
42
#
0
��
&

�
��
��
�,
�
�

��
$
/
/
2
�0
��
��
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
$
#
4�
�
�
��
�


��

��
��
�
�
��
0
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
$
�
4=
�
#
��
;�
��





�

�
�
�#
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


� 

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
�
$
4�
$
0
$
��
�
 
�
�8
�
�
��
�9
��
�
�
��
�

C
��
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


�

�
�$
/
/
2
1�
/
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
#
/
4/
/
/
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
��

�
�
�B
�
�
4/
/
/
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�

�

�
��
��
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
	�
 

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
	�
��
��
�
��
D�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
 
�
�'
	�
�E
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
�F
�
��

�
��
�E
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


��
��
B
�
/
4�
�
/
��

9
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�


�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�&
�
��

�
�
	�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�8
�
�
�
��
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�



�

�
�
	�
	�
��
�
�
4�

 
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�



�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
� 

�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
�


�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�



�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
�	
��
�'
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
,
�

�
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
?
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
,
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�!
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
� 

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
� 
�
�'
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
,
��
�

� � �
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�

	�
��

�
�
	�
�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� �
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�


��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�

�

�

�
�

�
�
	�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�4
�

�
��
�



�
�
��

	
�
�
��


�*
�
�

�

�

�
	�
C
��
�
�	
4�
��
��
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
7	
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
��
��
�
��
�
�4
�	
�
��
�

�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�


�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
:�
��
�
�9
�

��
��
�&
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
 
�
��&
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�


�


��
��
�
�

�
 
��
��
��
�
� 
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�8
��
�
��
�
���
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�B
�
�
��
��
��
#
��
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��


��
�
 
�
�

	�
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
	�

�

�

�
�

��
	�
���
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�	
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
���
��
�
�	
�
�
D�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
�

	�
��
��
�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
�
'

�
�
��
���
�



�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��


��
�
�
�
��
� 



�
��
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
��
�
��
�
�	
��
�


��
��

�
�
��
��
�
	�
���
�

	
�
	
��
��
�
�


�
��
�
�

�
�
�




�



�
�


	�
 

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
		
�
�
		
��
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
��


�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�=
/
�
�
�$
/
/
�
1/
0
��
�
�(
�
�
�
�$
/
/
0
1/
2
��
�
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�$
/
/
2
1�
/
�+
�
�
��
�
��
�
�!
�
��
�
�
�
�-
��
�
�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
=
G
�

��


�
��

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
		
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�
��
�
�
�
��


��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�

�


�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
	�
�
�
�
��
�E
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�!
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
��
��

	
��

�
�
�

�
�$
/
/
0
��
�
�

	
�

	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�


��
�
�
	

�
�
��
��
		
�
��
	�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
;�
�
	
��
�	
�
��
��
�
��
�


��
�
�
��
#
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
	�
 

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
4�

�
��
�



�
�
��
�
�
��

�
	�
�	
�
�
��


��
.
�

�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

H
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

���
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
��
�	
�
�
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
 
�
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�	
��
�,
��
�
��
���
��
�
$
/
� 
�
��
��
 
�
�

�


�
�
�$
/
/
0
12
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

Page 11



4

�
��
B
�
�
�
4�
�
/
��
�
�
�

�
�
�,
�
�

��
5
��
�
�!
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
��
���
��
B
#
2
�(
$
/
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
#
�
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

B
$
=
4$
�
=
��
�

,
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�


�

�
��
�
'

�
�
��


�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
+�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
*
C
-�
��
�
��
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
 
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�

<
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�,
�
�

�D
��
�&
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
 
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
B
�
0
4�
�
�
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
�
��
$
(
��
��
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

B
$
/
0
40
=
�
��
�

,
�&
�
�
D�
�
�

�
�
�
���
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
C
�
�
	

�
	�
�
�


��
��
��
��
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
��

�
��
�
	�
��
.
�

�
�


�

�
�

�
�
�


�
��
��
�
��




��
		
��
�

	
��
�
�


�
	
�2
��
��

	
��
		

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

	

�
�
�
	
��
�


�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
�
��
��

	
��
�
�


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�)
�
*
��
��
��
		
�

 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
��

�
�


�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�
�
 
�	

�
�
	�

�
��
�
�
�


	
��

�
��
�

�

�
��

��
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�





�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�


��


�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	�

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
+
,
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
&
�
�
�
�
�

!

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
-
�

�
�
-
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


�

.�
�
�
�



��
�
*
�
/�

�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
+
+
�

�
'
'
�

�
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
	
��
�

&
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�2
$

�
�
�
3�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�*
�
�
+
+
�

4
�
�

+
5
�

�

#
�

$
�
��
�
��
5
+
�&
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
��

�&

�
�
$
&
��
&
�
��
�
$
��
�
�
��
%
!
�
��
�
��

%
�

�
��
$


�6
�1
)
'
�'
��
�

�
�
	
��
�

�
&
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�!
�

�


�
�

�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
+
�
�

�
'
'
�

%
�
!
!
�

��
��

�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
��
!
�

&
�
�
�
��
$
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
4
/�
7
�

�
�
4
/�
7
�

%
�
!
!
�

�8
�,
/*
-
�

�
�

�
�2
�
4
�
�

�
(
�
��
��
$
�
3�
��
9
��
$
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�
#
&
�
�

��
$
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
!
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
(
�
�/
��

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
�6
�.
�
�
�
�



��
�
*
�
�

�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

1
%
��
'
'
�*
�
�
'
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
:
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
!
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
4
��
,
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�;
�

9
�
&
�

�
�6
�+
�
�

 
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
��
!
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

%
�
!
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
!
��
�
��
$
��
&
�
�

1
�
(
�&
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�

Page 12



5

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
4
�
�

�
�
%
�


/�
#
&
�
��
:
��
�
��
��
�

(
&
��
&
��
��
�

�
!
�
�
!
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�&
�
��
�
!
!
�

�
��
&
�


��
�
�
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�
!
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
��

&
�
�
�
�2
<
��
�
�
��
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
,
*
/�
7
�

�
,
*
/�
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
�

��

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

1
%
��
'
'
�*
�
�
'
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
:
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
!
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
4
��
,
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�;
�

9
�
&
�

�
�6
�+
�
�

 
�
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
��
!
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

%
�
!
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
!
��
�
��
$
��
&
�
�

1
�
(
�&
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

	�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
�





�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�


��


�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
	

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
�
	
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
 
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
%
�

�
�
*
4
��
*
�
�
@
:
�
�
!
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
�

�

?
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
$
��
��
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
��
�
��
&
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
1
�
	
��
�
��
�


��
�
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
�1
�
'
�

��
�
�
��
$
�	
�
��
$
��
(
��
�
&
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
	
��
�

�
�
&
�
�
�
A�
!
�
��
�
��
�
��


��
��
�
��
��
�
$
��
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
%
�

�
�
*
4
��
*
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
$
�0
�
��
�

�

�
�
�

�
�
�

9
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�&
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�

��
!
�
�
��
�
�
�&
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
$
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
��
��
�

�
�
	
��
�

�
�
��
�
�&
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
��
&

�
�
$
&
��
&
�
�%
*
�
-
�

�
�
��
��
&
�
�
�

��

�
��
��
�
�*
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
%
�

�
�
*
4
��
*
�
�

�
�
$
��
��

�
�
�%
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�=
�&
�

�
B
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
��
��
�
�
��
��
+
�
�	
�
�
��
:
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�	


�

�
;
�
�
��
�
&
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
!
�
��
�
�
�	
�
$
�
�
��
�
�%
�
!
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
�
	
� 
�
��
�
��
�
�
�!
��
	
�
�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�"
	
�
�
�!
��
��
�
��
�
�
�!
��
	
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
%
�

�
�
*
4
��
4
�
�
@
�
!
�

�1
�
�
�
�
�%
�

�
��
$


�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
!
�

�&
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
$


��
�

�
�


�
�
�
��
�	
�
��
$
�

��
!
��
�
�
�
��
�
�(
&
��
�
��
�
;
�(
��
�
��
�

�
��
$


��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
/�
�

*
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

#

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
��
�!
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�$
%
&
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
(
��
�
�
��
(
�!
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�)
*
�
$
+
+
,

Page 13



6

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�B
@
�

�
�
*
4
��
+
�

�
�
�
��
(
��
��
�
'
��
�
�
�
&
�
��
��
$
�
�

�

�
�
�
��
(
��
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
�6
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
%
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�&
�
��
�&
�


�(
�
�
��
�(
��
&
��
�
�!
�

�
&
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
	
��
�&
�
�
�
��
$
��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
��
�)
�
��
�
�
/�
2�
�
��
��

�
�
�

�
��
&
�

�
�@
�&
�

�
�
$
��
�
3/
��

*
�
�'
�
$
��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�1
%
�

�
�
*
4
��
*
�
�
@
:
�
�
!
��
�
�
�%
��
�
�
�

�

C
��
��
9
�

�
�
$
A�
%
(
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
6�
!
��
�
�
��
$
��
!
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	
�
��
��
�
A�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
?
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
$
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
/�
�

C
�1
�
	
��
�
�6
��
�
��
�
��
�
	
��
��
��
�
A�

�
!
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
&
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
/�
�

C
��
��
9
�

�
�
$
�)
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�6
�!

�
�
�
�
�
��
$
�(
��
&
�*
�
�&
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�	


�)
�

�
&
��
�
*
*
/�
#
&
�
�

�
�&
�

�
�
�6
��
��
�
�
�(
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
	
��
/�
�

C
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
A�
1
�

�
�
��
�6
��
1
@
��
�





��
$
��
�
��
�
�&
�
�
�
��
$
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�


/�
�

C
�'
��
��
	


A�
)
��
�
��
��
�
A�
D

�
��
�
�
�6
�&
�
�
�
��
$
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�


��
�
�

	
�
��
�



��
�
��
�
��
�
&
�

�
�

/�
�

C
�%
&
�

	
�

�
A�
%
��
�
$
�
	


�6
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�(
��
&
��
�

�
�
&
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

��
9
��
$
�!
��
�
�
/�
�

*
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
�

�
�
*
4
��
*
�

�
?
B
�6
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
$


6

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
!
��
�
�
�

�

%
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�*
�
��
:
&
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
(
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
/�

�
�
(
��
�
�
�

�
��
$
�

�
�
!
�
�
�
�
�
/�
B
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
!

�
!
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�%
�
!
��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
�

�
�
*
4
��
,
�

%
�

�
��
$
��
�1
�
�
�
��
$
��
�
�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
	
��
��


�'
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�

?

�
��
�%
1
�
'
'
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�(
��
&
�

�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�



��
�
��
��
�&
�
��
�
�
��
��
%
�
!
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�

B
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
!
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

*
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
�

�
�
*
4
�*
�
�

#
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
?
B
��
�

�
�


�
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

(
�


��
�

�
�
�

�
�%
�

�
��
$


��
�
�
�

?
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�?
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
!
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
/�
2�

�
�
�
�


�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
9
��
�
�
�
��
�
�*
3�
�

�
-
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��

��
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
��
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��

�
�
	

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
#

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��
 
!
�
�
��
�
�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

1
%
�*
�

1
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
!
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�(
&
��
&
�

�
?
�
��
�
9
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
!
!
��
�
�
�
��

(
��
&
��
�4
4
�(
�

9
��
$
��
�


�
�2
(
�
�
�

�
*
��
�
�
�
�*
�
�
*
�
�
/�
7
�

*
�
�
/�
7
�

*
�
�
/�
7
�

'
�
�

�
$
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
�
��
!
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�4
*
��
�


�
/�
�

'
��
��
!
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�(
��
&
�

(
��
&
��
�4
4
��
�


��
�

$
�
��

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

Page 14



7

�
�
��
5
�
3�

�
��
*
,
*
�

�
'
'
�

�
;
�
�
/�
�
�

�
�
�
��
$
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
	
��
�

!
�
�
!
��
��
�
&
��
�
��
$
��
�
�
�
!
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
�
��
$
��
�
?
�
��
'
'
��
�
�
�
/�
B
�$
�

�
��
�
�

�


�
�
�
��
��
�
�

/�

�
*
��
�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
4
/4
�
7
�

5
-
/�
�
7
�

�
�
/�
�
7
�

�
��

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
*
�

#
��
�
��
�
9
�
�
��
�
�!

�
�
�
�
�
�1
�
�
�
��
$
�

<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�#
�
:
�<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
(
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
&
�
�
$
�
��
�
�
�
��
�6
�

'
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

)
�

�
&
��
�
�
�
�
*
�
/�
��
�


�
�
�

�
/�
��
�


�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
(
�
��
�

�
��
*
�
5
2�
3�

#
�
�
9
��
�
$
��
�
�
��
!
�
�
�

�


�E
�7
��
��

!
�
�
!
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
$
��
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
$
��
�
�&
�
�
�
�
�(
��
&
��
�

��
(
��
�
�

$


��
��
��
��
�
�


�

�
��
�
$
F�
2�
3�

�
�
(
��
�
�

$


��
��
��
��
�
�


�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

*
5
7
�

�
*
5
7
�

�

%
�

�
�


��
�



��
�
��
�
��
	


��
&
�
�

@
�
�

$


��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
��
�
��
�

�

	
�
&
�
��
/�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�&
�
	
�

'
!

�
��
�
�
/�
�
�
�
	
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

(
��
&
�1
�
�
	
��
��
�
�G
�%
�
�	


/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
5
2�
�3
�

#
�
�
9
��
�
$
��
�
�
��
!
�
�
�

�


�E
�7
��
��

!
�
�
!
��
�

�
�
�
��
��
$
��
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�

	
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
$
��
�
�&
�
�
�
�
�(
��
&
��
�

��
(
��
�
�

$


��
��
��
��
�
�


�

�
��
�
$
F�

2�
�3
�1
�$
&
��
�
�

$


��
��
��
��
�
�


�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
7
�

�
�
�
7
�

�

%
�

�
�


��
�



��
�
��
�
��
	


��
&
�
�

@
�
�

$


��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
��
�
��
�

�

	
�
&
�
��
/�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�&
�
	
�'
!

�
��

�
�
/�
�
�
�
	
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�(
��
&
�

1
�
�
	
��
��
�
�G
�%
�
�	


/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
-

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��
 
!
�
�
��
�
�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
+
-
�

�
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
&
�
�
�
�
&
�
��
�
��
��
��
$
�

��
��
�
�
!
�

�



��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

2�
�
�
!
�
&
�
�3
�

�
*
��
�
�
�
�*
�
�
*
�
�

�
*
�
�

�

=
�
�

��
,
�

�
��

�
�(
��
��
	
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

&
�
	
��
�
�
�!
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�(
��
��
	
�
�

>�
�
$
�
�
��
�
��
&
��
�H
�
�

�
�

�

�
��
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
4
�
��
'
'
�

�
�
��
�
�
/�
�
�
!
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�2
�
<
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
��


�
�
�	
�
��
�
9
��
�
��
'
'
��
��
(
��
&
�

��

$
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

*
�
/+
7
�

�
*
�
/+
7
�

"
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�


�
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
��
�
�

/�
,
�
�)
'
�
'
�
�
�

��
��


�
�
�
��
�+
��
��
(
&
��
&
�

(
�

�
�

�
!
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
/�

#
�

$
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
&
��
�

	


�5
7
��
�
�
�
6*
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

��
�

$
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

	


�,
�
7
/�
�

%
�
�

	
�

�
�
$
&
��


�
�
�
��
��
�

$
�
��

��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�	


�5
7
��
�
�
�
6*
�
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

1
%
��
'
'
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�&

�
�
$
&
�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�2
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��

$
�
��
��

�
�!
�

�
H
�
�

�
�

A
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
3�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�*
�
�
*
�
�
�

*
+
4
�

�
4
5
�

�
��

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

Page 15



8

�
��

��
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
� 
��

�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�	
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��

�
�
	

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
	
��
�
�
 
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�	
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
	
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
%
��
�
*
4
�

�
�
�
�

1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�%
�

�
��
$


�'
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

?
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�&
�
��
�(
��
&
��
%
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
(
��
$
�

�
�
��
(
��
�
�
�)
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
�

�
��
$


�'
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	


��
%
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
4
��
5
��
�
/�
�

*
�
�'
�
$
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�
� 
!
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
%
��
�
*
4
�

�
�
�
�

1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�%
�

�
��
$


�'
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

?
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�&
�
��
�(
��
&
��
%
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
'
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
(
��
$
�

�
�
��
(
��
�
�
�)
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
1
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
�

�
��
$


�'
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	


��
%
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
4
��
5
��
�
/�
�

*
�
�'
�
$
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

#

�
	
��
�
�
��
��
�
	
�
�
�
�
	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

	
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�	
�
�	
��
�
�.
	
�
��
�
�
�
�/
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��



�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
%
��
�
*
4
�

�
�
	
�

�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�)
�

�
$
�
$
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
&
�
�
�
��
�
�

!
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
�

�

#
&

�
�
�)
�

�
$
�
$
�
�)
�
%
��
�
�
�
�
��
&
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
�	


�?
�
�
�
�
	
�

�

�
�
�
�
/�
�

*
*
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

�

-

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
 
�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
 
��
��
	
�
�
�
�
	
��
�
��
'
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
�
�!



�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
%
��
�
*
4
�

�
+
�
�

@
�
�

$


�@
��
��
��
�
�


�0

�
�
��
�

�

'
!
!

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
4
4
�@
�
�

$


�@
��
��
��
�
�


�0

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��

I
�
�
A�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
�*
5
�$

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
$
�I
*
�
A-
-
-
��
�
��
&
�
�

!
�

�
�
�
�*
�'
!

�
��
��
��
�%
�
!
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
#
&
��
�	
�
�
$
�
��
��

�
�
�
�

$


�

�
��
��
��
�
�


�$

�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�*
�
��
�
�I
*
�
�
9
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

Page 16



9

�
��

��
��
�
�
	


	
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�


�
��
��




��
�
�
��
�
�


�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�




�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%
��

9
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
5
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�

	
�
	4
��
�
�
	

��
��


�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
	

�
�
		
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�


��
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
� 

�
�

�
��
��


�
��
��
��
��
.
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
		
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
D�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&
�

E
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�5
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�	
'

�
�	
��
�
��
�	
�

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
 
�
	
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
"
�

�
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
	�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
"
�

=
��
%
�
�
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�

	�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
		
"
�

0
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
���
��
��
	'

�
�	
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
���
��
���
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�


"
�

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

$
�#
��
��
�
�


�
�
�

��
�	
�
��

�

�
�
��
	

��
	�
��
��

�


�
	�
�

�
�4
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
�


��
�
��

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�)
�
*
��
�
��
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�

$
�#
�$
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
�

��
��
��
F
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

$
�#
�#
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�'
�
��

��
 
�
	�

$
�#
�#
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�'
�
��

��
 
�
	�

$
�(
��
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
		
�
	�

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
��
	�

$
�(
�$
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�.
�

�
�
��
�
�
�	
'

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
		
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�

$
�(
�#
��
�
��
��
�



�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�
�
���
��
�	
�

$
�(
�(
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
���
��
�	
��
��
	'

�
�	
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��
�

$
�(
��
�9
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�
�

Page 17



1
0

�
��

��
��
�
�
	


	
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%
��

9
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
5
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�

	
�
	4
��
�
�
	

��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
	

�
�
		
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�


��
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
��
� 

�
�

�
��
��


�
��
��
��
��
.
�
�
���
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
		
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
D�
�
�

�
�
��

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� �
�
�


�
��
��
�
	�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�
		
�
	�
�
�


��
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��

�

�
�
��
I
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
 
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
��
 
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�


�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
1	
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�	
�
��
�
�4
��
��
��
�
�
�
'

�
�
�?
��

�
�
�
��
�+
2
��
G
��
��
 
��
-4
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�?
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
+�
�
G
-�
�
�


��
�
�
�

'
�
�
 
��


�
�
�

�


�
	�
��
�+
(
�
G
-�
��
�
�
�
��
�

	�
�
�	
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
��
��
	�
�
��
��
��
�


��
�
��


��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
�
	�
+�

�
��
�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��


�
��
	4
��

�
��
�


��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
	4
�

�

�
��
 
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
��
	�
	�
�
�
	-
��
�


��
�
��
��

�
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
�
�

	
�
�

�
�
4�
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
4�
 
�

�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
�

	�
	�

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�

	
��
��
�



�
	�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
��

�
'
	�
 

�
�
�&
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
�H
�
�'
��
�
�
 
�
�
�
�4
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
 
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
�

�
�
��
�


�

	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��

�

�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��

�

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
�	
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�+
$
/
G
-�
�
�


��
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
C
��
 
��
�

�
��
?
�
4�
�
�
�
'

�
�
�?
�

�

�
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
�'
�
�
 
��


�
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
�
	
��
��
�
���
 
�	
��
��
��
�

�
�	
��
�


��
�
�

�
���
��
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�

�
�
�

	�
 
�
�
��
�
�

�


��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�

�
�
�
���
�
��
�	
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�


��
�
��
�
�
�	
��

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

�+
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
�
*
��
�


��

�
��
�
�
��
�


�H
�
�'
	�

�
�
�*
�
� 
�
�

D�
�


��
��
3�
��
	-
��
�


�
��
�.
�
�
�

��
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�

�
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


:�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�

	�
��
.
�

�
�


��
��
F
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�


�	
�
�
�
��

�
	�
 

�
�
��
�
�
�H
�
�'
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�


�


�
�
�	

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

��

	
� 
�
�'

�
�
� 

�
�
�H
�
�'
	�

�
�
�*
�
� 
�
�

��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�


� 
�
�'
	�
�
��
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
�
��
F
�
��
�
�
��
�


�9

�
'
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
 

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
 
��
�


�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
	

�
�
		
�
	4
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
� 

�
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
��
)�
�


�
 
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�

�
��
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
�	
�

�
�
�
��
�

	

��
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	
��
�	
�
� 
�
�'

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�'
��
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
	�
�

��
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
 
��
4�
�
�


��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
�


�
3�
��
�B
�
�2
�
�
��
�
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
 
�
�
��
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
F
�
��
�
�
��
�


�!
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�


��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
		
��
,
��
��
3�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

	�
�
�
 
��
�
'

�
�
��
�

	
� 
�
�'
��
�
� 
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��

�
�
�	
��
�
�
��
�


��
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
� 

�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
�A
�
�
1*
�
�
�$
/
�
/
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
 

�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�B
�
/
/
'
�

��
��
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	�

�
�
��
��
9

�
'
�
�

�
�
��
�;
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
	4
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
� 

�
�
�F
�
��
�
�
��
�


�!
�
��
�
�
4�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

��

	
� 
�
�'

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��

�

�
�
��
�


��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
��

�
��
��
�
�4
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
,
�

�
�
	

�
�
		
��
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�

�
��


��
�
�H
�
�'
	�

�
�
�*
�
� 
�
�

��
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
��

�

�
�
�

�
��
�
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
	4
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

��
�	
�
��
�
�4
��
�


�	
�
�
'
��
�
�

�
��
�



�
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
��
	�
� 
�
�'

�
�
� 

�
�
�!
H
�
�
��

�
�
 
�
�
	�
�

�
	�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�



�

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�


�
	�
�

�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
��

	
�	
�

�
�F
�
��
�
�
�

��
 
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
	�
�
��
��
	�
�	
��
�

�
�
�


�
��
��
�	
�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
�'
��
��
�
�


�
��
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
�
�
�

	�
��
�
�

�

�

�
	�
+�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
�?
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
1�
�
�
�

�
�
�	
�
�
��
-�
��
�
�

	
��
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�

	
�
��
�

��
�
�

	�
4�
��
��
 
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�

	�
	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
��
	�
��
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

��
 
�
��
�
3�
��
�
�
 
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�


��
�
�
�

	�
�

�
��
��
��

�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�


�
��
�*
�
�'
�F
�
	�
�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�*
�
��
4�
F
�
��
�
�
��
�

Page 18



1
1

�
��

��
��
�
�
	


	
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&
�

E
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�5
��

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�	
'

�
�	
��
�
��
�	
�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� �
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
��
�
��
���
�
'
�
D�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
4�
 
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
 
�	
'

�
��


� 
�
�'
4�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
�
�	
�
��
�


���
 
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�
�

 
�
�
�
	�

�
�!
�
��
�
�H
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�


��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�$
/
1$
�
G
���
		
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�



�3
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�


��
�
�


�
��
4�
 

�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
	



�
�
�	
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
��



	
��
�
��
	�
���
�

	
��
�


�
��

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
	�
��
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	

�
�
		
�
	�

�
�


�


�
�
�	

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�




�


��
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�	
� 

�
�
��

�
'
	�
��
��
�
�
�H
�
�'
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

,
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
3�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
���
�
	�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�


�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�	



�
��
�
�


�
��
��
�


�

�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

���
�
��
���
��
��


�
��

�
�
4�

�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	

��
	'

�
�	
�

		
�
�
	�
+

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�

��
��
��
��
�


��
�
�
�
��
��
-�
�
�


��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

	
�
�
��
�
��
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�


	�
�
��
��
��
���
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�


��
�
�
�	
'

�
�	
��
��
��
��
�� 
�
�'
�
�	
��
��
�

	
�

	�
�
�'
�
�
��
�
��
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	�
�
�
�

	�
�


��
�
�


�
��
�%
�
�'
��
�


�&
'

�
�	
�9
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
4�
��


��
�
��
�
�


�
��
�

�
�
4�
 
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�'
��
�	
'

�
�	
�
	
	�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
��
�
���
��
��
��
�

�

�
�
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
�
��




��
		
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�


�

�
��
�
�
�)
�
*
��
�


� 
�
�'
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
,
��
�


��
�
�

	
��
��


�	
�
�

�
���
�
�


��
�

	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	�
�
�	
�
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
�
��
��
�



�
��
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


�

�
��
�
�	
�

�
��
�
�


��

� <
�
���
�



�
�
��
�
�
�

�

�

�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
��

�
�


��
�


�
��
E
�
3�
��

�
�
�#
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��

	
�	
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
��

	
�
�

�
�
��
�


�


�
�
�	

�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
���
��
���
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
� 
�
�
�
�

��
��
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�	
�
��

�
	�
��
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	



�
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�




�
�
��
��
�
		
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
3�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
�
4�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
�

�



�
�
�

	�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
 
�
�'
	�
 

�
�
�<
�
	

�
�
		
�)

�
'
��
�
��
��
�



�
��


�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
 
��
�
	

�
�
		
�
	�
�

�
�	
�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�


�
��
��

�
��
�

�
	�
�

� �

Page 19



1
2

� �
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
(

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�'
�	
��
��
�
�/
!
�
�
�
��
��
�
	
�
	
�
!
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

@
�
�,
�

%
&
�

�
��
��
��
��
��

�
$
��
�
�
��

�
�
!
��


�
�
�
�/
�2
(
�
�
��
�
��
+
,
3�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
*
/�
,
7
�

�
*
/�
,
7
�

%
�
�

�
�
�6
�'
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
!
�
��
��
�
�
�

%
�

�
�


�.
�
�
��
�
�
�
�6
�?
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
?
�
��
�%
�
�

�
�
F�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
(
��
�
$
�
�

'
�
�
�
�
��
<
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
H
�
�



�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
5
�
�

�
!
?
�
/�
7
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
&
�
(
��
$
��
�
!
��


�
�
�
��

$

�
(
�&
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�	


�

?
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
��
��

�
<
�
�
��
�
�
�
A�

@
�
��

!

�
�
�
�G
��
�
$
�
��
��



��
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�?
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
5
*
�

�
'
'
�

�
!
?
�
/�
�
�
(
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
$
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�!
�

�

*
�
A�
�
�
�!
�
!
J�
�*
-



�
K
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�	


�

?
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
��
��

�
<
�
�
��
�
�
�
A�

@
�
��

!

�
�
�
�G
��
�
$
�
��
��



��
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�?
�
�
��
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

@
�
��
'
'
�

4
-
�

0

�
(
��
&
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��

�

�
�
�
-
��
5
�
*
5
5
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�
<
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
-
6�
5
��

�
'
'
��
�
�
��
�
��

/
�#
&
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
� 
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��


��
�
�
�
�
��
$
�
��
�
$
��
��
��

�
�
��

(
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
$
�E
�

�
�
�
��
�
�

&
�
!
�
��
��


��
�
�
��
�
	
��
�	


�?
�
�
�
�
	
�

�

�
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

@
�
��
'
'
�

4
5
�

��
�

�
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
��
$
�
�2
I
�
�
3�

�
�
�
5
��
�
�
I
*
,
4
�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�

9
�
��
�
$
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�


�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�!

�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
�H
�
�
��
�

��
��

�
��
�

�
�
��
��
&
�
�)
�
�

�
�G
��
�
�
�
��

#
�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
A�
�
�
��
$
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
I
�
�
*
9
��

�
�
�

;
�

9
�
&
�

�
�B
�

(
�

�
/�
�

�
'
'
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
(
�
��
��
$
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
0

�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
��
�
�
	
�
	
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

B
�
�-
�

7
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�&
�
��

��
9
�
�
�!
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

9
�
��

��
(
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
$
�
�
F�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�
�

B
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�

-
+
	
�2
�
�
��
-
+
	
3�
(
��
��
	
�
�

�
�
��
(
�
�
��
�
�

�&
�
��
?
B
��
�

�
�%
�

�
��
$


�!

�
$

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��

� 
��
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%
��

9
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�5
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�

	
�
	4
��
�
�
	

��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
	

�
�
		
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�


�

�
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��

�
�
�
��
� 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
��
.
�
�
���
�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
���
�	
�
��
�
		
��
���
�
��
���
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
D�
�
�

�
�

Page 20



1
3

@
�
�
�
�
�
��
�?
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��

2(
�
�
��
�
��
-
+
	
3�

�
�
�
�!

�
!
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�

9
�
��
��
(
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
$
�
�
�

��
��
$

�
�
�
/�

�
��
*
�
�
�

%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

(
��
&
��
'
�

�
$
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
5
7
�

�
�
�
7
�

�
��

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
5
+
�

�
'
'
�

'
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
��
�
�	


�!
�
	
��
�
�

�

�
�
�
!
�

�
A�
(
�
�9
��
$
��
�
�
�

�


�
��
�
$
/�
�B
�$
�

�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�G
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
/�

�
*
�

�
�
�
�
�*
�
�
�
-
+
�
�

�
�
+
,
�
5
�

�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
!
�
�
�
�
�
$
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
��
$
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��


��

�
�
�
!
�

�
��
��
��
	
�
�
�
�
�

2�


�
�
�
�3
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

� 
��
$�
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�%
��

9
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�5
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	

�
�
	�
�
�


��
��
�

	
�
	4
��
�
�
	

��
��

�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
	

�
�
		
�	
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
 
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�


�

�
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
� 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
��
.
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
���
�	
�
��
�
		
��
���
�
��
���
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
D�
�
�

�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

#

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
��
�!
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�1
� 
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�$
%
&
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
��
�
*
4
��
*
�
�
?
B
�6
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
$


6

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
!
��
�
�
�

�

%
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�*
�
��
:
&
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
(
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
/�
�
�
(
�

�
�
�
�

�
��
$
�

�
�
!
�
�
�
�
�
/�
B
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��

!

�
!
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�%
�
!
��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
��
�
*
4
��
�
�
�
?
B
�6
�B
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
$
�?
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
?
�
?
�

�

��
��
��
��
�
�
$
�
��
��
�
�
��
+
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�!
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�%
�
!
��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
��
�
*
4
��
4
�
�
?
B
�6
�1
�
��
�
��


�?
�
?
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	
�
��
��
�
�
!
��

�

��
��
��
��
�
�
$
�
��
��
�
�
��
+
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
��
�
�!
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�%
�
!
��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

#

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�!
�	
��
.
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�@
�
��
�
*
4
�

�
�
�

)
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��

�

)
�
�
��
�
$
�
�	
�
��
$
�&
�
��
�(
��
&
��
;
�
�
��
�	

�

�
�
�
A�
�
;
�
�
�	

�
$
&
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
;
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�!
�
��
�
��
�
��
>�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
)
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
/�

?

�
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�;
B
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�@
�
��
�
*
4
�

�
4
�

)
�
��
�
�
�#
�
(
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
	
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�)
�
��
�
�
L�
�
&
�
�
�
�*
�

�

�
��
��

�
	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
$
�6
��
�
�

�
�
$
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
$
��

#
&
�
�%
&
�
�
	
��
�
�

�
!
�
�
��
$
��
�
�
��
�$
&
��
�
$
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
/�
'
(
�
��
��
$
�

�
;
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��


��
�

�
��
$
&
��
�
$
/�
�

�
�$
&
��
�
$
�6
�=
�
$
�
��
$
��
�
��
;
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��

�
��
�
9
��
$
��
�
�
$
�

�
�&
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�!
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�!

�
!
�
�
�
��
��
(
�
��
��
$
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�!
&
�
�
�
/�
�

B
��
�
�
��
$
&
��
�
$
�%
��
)
��
&
�
�
��
��
&
�

�
&
�6
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
!
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�*
�
��

1
�$
&
�%
!
�
�
�
�<

�
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
��
�


�6
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
(
�

�
�
�
��
�
�J
%
�
�
�
��
J�
�

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

Page 21



1
4

@
�
!
�

��
!
�
�
�
�
�!

�
!
�

�


��
��
�


�6
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�

%
?
�
�@
�
��
�
*
4
�

�
+
�

)
�
��
�
�
�#
�
(
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
	
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

6�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�)
�
��
�
�
L�
�
&
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�4
�

�

*
6*
�
6�
�
��
G
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
!
!

�
�
�
�
�>
�
��
��
(
�

9
��
$
�(
��
&
��
;
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�&
�

�
��
��
�
&
��
�
�
��
&
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�)
�
��
�
�
LA
�

(
��
&
��
?
�
��
�
�
�

�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
$
�
��
�

�
�&
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
/�
'
��
�
!


��
��
�&
�
�

�
!
�

�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
&
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
J�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
J/
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

#

#

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
��
�	
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�@
�
��
�
*
4
�

�
,
�

�
�
$
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
&
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
9
�

�
�
$
��
�
�
�

�
�

9
	


�
�
�

�
��
�
�

�

?
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
$
�
��
$
�(
��
&
��
�
(
��
(
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
9
�

�
�
$
�%
&
�
(
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
��
�

�
�
�

��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
$
��
�

9
��
�
�
��
��
�
A�

�

�
!
��
�
�<

�
(
�



��
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
A�
@
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

?
��
�
�
�
�



��
�
�
�#

�
��
��
$
��
�
�
�

�
A�
@
�
�
6�
�
�
$
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�!
�
��
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
$
�
�
�(
�

9
�
!
�
�
�
/�
�

D
�

9
��
�
�
�

(
�


�(
��
&
�;
B
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�

�
��
�
)
%
��
�

�
�
�6
�

�
!
�

�
��
�
�	
�
�!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�(
�


�

��

(
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�?
�
�
��
�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

� 
��
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&
�

E
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�5
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�	
'

�
�	
��
�
��
�	

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
2

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
	
��
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
*
�

#
��
�
��
�
9
�
�
��
�
�!

�
�
�
�
�
�

1
�
�
�
��
$
�<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�#
�
:
�

<
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
(
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
&
�
�
$
�
��
�
�
�
��
�6
�

'
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

)
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

*
�
/�
��
�


�
�
�

�
/�
��
�


�
�

�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
(
�
��
�

�
��
*
+
*
�

=
�
�

�
��
�@
�
!
��


�
�
�
��

�
��
�

2(
�

9
��
$
6�
$
�
3�
2�
��
�
�
�&
��
�
$
�

��
��
�$
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
3�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�

�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�	


�

?
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
��
��

�
D
�

9
�G
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
:
!
�
�
��
�
�'
�
$
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
+
�
�

D
�

9
��
$
��
$
�
�!
�
�
!
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
��
(
�

9
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�

�

D
�

9
��
$
��
$
�
�9
�


�	
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
��
�
�
��
F�
�
A,
�
�
�2
�
7
A�
(
&
��
&
�

�
�
�
!
�

�
�
��
�
�*
,
/�
7
�

�
$
��
�
�
��


�

�
�
�
�*
,
/�
7
��
�
��
�
�
�
��


3/
�'
!

�
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

Page 22



1
5

�
��
*
-
-
�

)
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
$
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
!
��


�
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��

�
�
�2
'
!

�
��

�
�
�
!
�
&
�
��
'
�
�
�
�
��
%
�

�
�


�

1
�
�

�
�G
�@
�

�
��
$
�
�6
�=
�
%
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

I
4
�
+
/�
�
�

�
I
4
�
+
/�
�
�

-
/5
7
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
�
�

#
&
�
��
�
�
	
�

�
�
��
�
&
�
�
$
�
�
��
��

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�(
&
��
&
��
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�

�
M�
1
<
��
#
<
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
(
��
&
��
��
&
�
�



�
�

/
2!
�

�
*
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
3�

)
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

+
�
5
/�
�

�
*
�
+
�
/�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
&
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�

�
�
�?
D
�
�(
�
	
�
��
�
�1
�
<
=
?
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�	


�?
D
�
�

�

�
�
��
&
�
�%
1
<
@
�2
%
��
$
��
�

1
�
�
�
��
$
�<
�
�
�
��
��
@
:
�

�
�
�3
��

��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
(
�
��
�

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
3

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
!
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
-
,
�

%
�

�
�


��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�/
��

�

�
!
�

�
��
�
��
��
!
�
!
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
$
�
�
�*
�
6-
,
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

*
�
6+
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�H
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
4
��

�
&
�$
&
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

+
�
/*
7
�

�
+
�
/*
7
�

?
�
��
��

�
�
�'
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
!
�
��
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�


��
�
�
,
6

�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�?
�
!
��
��

�

<
�
�
��
�
�
�
A�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

%
9
��
��
��

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�

	


�?
�
!
�

�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
A�

 
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�G
�%
9
��
��
��
:
!
�
�
��
�
�

��
��
�.
�
�

��
�
�
�
/�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

� 
��
�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�&
�

E
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�5
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
�
�
��
�


�	
'

�
�	
��
�
��
�	
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
 
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
	
�
	
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�@
�
��
�
*
4
��
-
�
<
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�

<
�
�
��
�
�
�
�@
�
$
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�


��
�
�
!
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

��
9
��
��
��
�
�
��
�&
�

�

��
�
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
?
�
��
�
�
�!
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�&
�
�!
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
/�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�!

�
!
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�2
��
�!
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
�(
��
&
��


�
�
�
��
�D
�

9
��
�
�
�%
9
��
��
�!
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
3�
��
�	
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
-
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��


�%
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
:
��

�


�
�
�
��
�%
�

�
��
$
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
/�
J=
!
!
�

�
�
�
��


��
�
�
�
9
�
J�
�
�
�
�
��
!
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�

%
!

�
�
$
��
�
*
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
!
��


�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
*
,
6*
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
/�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

�

�
�
	
��
�
��
��
�
	
�
��
��
	
��
�
4
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
!
��
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
!
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�@
�
��
�
*
4
�

�
-
�
�

D
�

9
��
�
�
�%
9
��
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
�

�

�


�
�
�
��
�D
�

9
��
�
�
�%
9
��
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
��
�
(
�

�
�

�
�
&
�
�
/�
,
�!

�
�

�
��
�
�
N�
�

O�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�&
�
(
��
�
�
�(
&
�
��
�&
�
��
�
!
��


�

�
�
��
�

�
��
/�
�

O�
�
��
9
�
�(
��
&
�1
@
��
�
�
��

�
2�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

!

�
�
�
��
�
�
�9
�
�
(
��
�
$
�
��
�
/�
�
9
��
��
3�
�

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

Page 23



1
6

O�
@
�
!
��


�

�
@
�
�
�
��
�&
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�*
,
6*
�
N�
�
�:
�
�
��
$
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
!
��


�

�
/�
2'
��
�
�
9
�

�
�
�
��
��
��
&
�$

�
�
!
�(
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
!
��
&
�
��
�
�
!
�
��
�
�
�!
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
�3
/�
�

O�
'
�
��
�
!
��


�

�
�
�

�
��
$


��
�
�
��
�
$
�(
��
��
	
�
��



�
�
$
�
�
��
�
��
�
9
�
��
�

(
�

�
��
&
�
�

��
�
�
��
$
�
��
��
�&
�
��
9
��
��
�

�
�
�
�

�
&
/�
�

�
?
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
��
�
��
�
!
��


�

�
�
�
$
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�!
��
�
�
��
$
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
*
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
!
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
9
�
�(
��
&
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

Page 24



1
7

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

#

�
�
	
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�@
1
��
�
*
4
�*
-
�
?
�
�
�
��
!
��
��
�
!
��
�
��
!

�
>�
�
��
��
��
�
!
!
�

�
�

$

�
(
�&
��
��
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�

'
�I
*
�
�
9
�$

�
�
��
�
�
&
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
�


�
�
�
��
�
��
��
'
!

�
��
�
�
*
�
/�
I
4
�
A5
�
4
�&
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
!
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
(
�

�
�
�*
�
�

	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
/�
=
�
�

�4
��
!
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�&
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

�
>�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

/
��

�
�
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

-

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
��
��
��
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�/
!
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�=
?
��
�
*
4
�

�
�
�

@
�
�
��
�
��
�
$
��
�
�

�
��
$
��
�
�
�?
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�

@
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
6�
�	
�
��
$
��
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
�	


�1
�
��

�
>�
�
��
=
��
��
�

�
��

�

�
�
�
!
��
��
�
�
�	


��
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�%
�
�
�
�
��
�

%
?
�
�=
?
��
�
*
4
�

*
,
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
$
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�

�

<
�
�&
��

�
��
�
��

�
��
(
�
��
��
$
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
�!

�
�
��
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
��
�&
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
��

�
��
��
$
/�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�	
�
��
$
��
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��

!

�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
&
�
�
9
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�


��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

*
+
�%
�
!
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�%
�
�
�
�
��
�

%
?
�
�=
?
��
�
*
4
�

*
+
�

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
��
$
��
!
��
�
�
�
�

�

#
&
�
��

�
��
��
�

!
�

�
��
�!
��
�
��
�
��
(
�
��
��
$
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�


�
$
�

�
��
$
��

�
��
��
$
�!

�
�
��
�

�
/�
#
&
�
��
�
�

�
��
$
�P
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�$

�
(
��
�
�

(
&
�
�J
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�#
��

�
��
��
$
�!

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�	
�
��
$
��
�
�

�
�
�
�

�&

�
�
$
&
��
&
��
�!
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
�(
��
&
��
;
�
�
/�
�

*
+
�%
�
!
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�%
�
�
�
�
��
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
��

-

(

�
5
�
!
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
�
�
��
��
�	
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
<
��
�
*
4
��
5
�
�
�
�
��
(
�	
�
�
�
��
��
��


�
��
�
�G
�(
&
�

�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�

��
!
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
(
��


�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
9
��
$
��
��
�
�>
�
��
��
�


�
��
�
��
�
�
�(
�

9
��
$
��
�
��
�
&
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
�
/�
�

�
�
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
(
�
��
�

%
?
�
��
<
��
�
*
4
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
(
�G
��
�
�
�
��
!
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�

!
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
�(
��
&
�%
�
�

	
�

�
�
$
&
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
!
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��

�
�!
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
��
�
��
�
�



��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
/�

#
�
�
!
�

�



��



�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�



��
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�!
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
�(
��
&
�

%
�
�

	
�

�
�
$
&
�<
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
$
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
��

�
�
/�
�

�
�
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
(
�
��
�

%
?
�
��
<
��
�
*
4
�*
*
�
'
�
�
!
��
�
�
=
@
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��
!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
!
��
�
�

�

�
�
=
@
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
!
��
��
�
A�
�
�
��
�
�
�!
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�!
�
	
��
�
&
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
>�
�
�
��
�
�
�(
��
&
��
;
�	
�
�
�
��
��
�$

�
�
!
/�
�

�
�
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
(
�
��
�

Page 25



1
8

�
��

�%
��
�
��
'
�#
�


��
�"
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
4�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�	
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�)
��

�
�


�
�

�
�
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�*
��

9
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�+
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

2
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
� 
�
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
	�
�
�

	�
�
��
��
��
�
�


�

��
"
�

�
/
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
E
$
���
��
�	
��
�


�
�

�
�
"
�

�
�
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
�
"
�

�
$
��
%
�
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

	
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

��
�


�
	
�


�
�

�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
	"
�

�
#
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
�
	
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�
�


�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
��

�
�


"
�

�
(
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

	
��

�

�
��
�



�
�

�
��
�
�
	

�
�
"
�

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

#
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
��

#
��
�$
��
�


�
��

�
�
�
�
�'

�
�
	�
�
��
��
	



�
�
��
 
�
	�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�

#
��
�#
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
��


�
� 
�
	�
�
�	
�
�
��
��
�!
H
�
�
�

��
�


�

��
�	

�
�
	�

#
��
�(
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
 
�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�	
��
E
$
��
�


�
��

�
�
��
��
�
�

#
��
��
��
�
	

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

#
�=
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�)
�
*
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��



�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�	
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
� 
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��

��
��
�

�
�
	�

#
�=
�$
��
�
��
��



�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
�


��

	
'
��
��
�
	�

#
�=
�#
�*
��
�


��
�


�9
;�
�
��
�
�

�
 
��

	
'
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

#
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
	�
��
	�
�
��
�
�

�
��

�
�


��

�
�

.
�
�
�

��
��
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�



�
�

#
��
�$
�;
�
�
��
��


�	
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
		
�

#
��
�#
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
���
�
�
�	
��
��
��
��
���

�



�
�
�	

�
�
��
�
�

 
�
�'
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
��
 
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�	
�

Page 26



1
9

�
��

�%
��
�
��
'
�#
�


��
�"
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�)
��
��

�
�


�
�

�
�
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� �
�
�"
��
��
�
��
�9
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
	�
�.
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
$
/
/
2
1�
/
�
�



�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
��
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
	�
	�
��
�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�


��
/
G
�+
��
�
�C
�
��
��
�
�
�
�	
�

$
/
$
/
��
�
��
�
�-
��
�
��
��
�
�(
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�

	
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
4�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�


��
��
�

�
�
	�
�
4�
��
�
�9
),
�
8
�	
�
��
�
�
�

�



�
�
��
	�
��
�
��
	�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
��
	�
��
�


��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��


�
�
��
��


��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�



�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��

	
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
�,
%
�
�	
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
 

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
� 
�
�

D�
�
D 
�
�

��
�
	

	�
��
�



�
��
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

		
�
�
	�
�
�

	�
��
�
� 
�
�
�
��
��
 
	4
� 
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��




��
		
�


��
&
�
�
8
8
�
&
�
8
!
8
� 

�
��
	�
�
��
��
��
�
�

		
�

�
�
��

�
��
�
�
	�
��
��
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
�


�

��
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�


�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�

	�


��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
��
 
�
��

�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
� 

�
���
�	
�
��
�
�
��

�
�

�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
�

	�
�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
��
�

(
�
�
��
"
�(



��
��
�
�"
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
��

�

�

�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�

�
	�
�
�
��
��
�'
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�
	�
 

�
��	
�
�
	�
�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�$
/
/
2
D$
/
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�	
J�

•
 
,
��
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
�

�
	�
�
��
�


��
��
�
�
�


�
��
��
�
�
	�
�

•
 
�
�
�
��
�
 
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
� 
�
�
��
9
�
�
��

	�
��
��
�
�
�
	�
�
��
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
;�
	�
�
��
�
�

�
�
� 

�
��
�
�
��
		

�
�
��
��
��
��
	�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
 
�

�
�
� 

�
��
�
�
��

�
�


��
�
��

�
�

�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
))
�

��

	
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�

�

@
�
�


	
��
�
�

�
�
��

•
 
�
�
�
�9
��
�
�
��
�
�I
�

�
��
�
	�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�


��
�
�
��
�
D�
�
��
��


��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
	�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
		
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�
��
�
��
4�
 
�

�
�
� 

�
���
�
��
��
�
� 
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
 
�
�
��
�

	�
�
��
�
	�
���

•
 
F
�
�
��
��
�C
�
�

�
�
�%
�
	�
�
��
2
�
��
�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�	
��
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

•
 
*
��
�
��

�

�

�
�

��
	�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	�
�
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
�&
�
�
��
��
��
��

	
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�	
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
��
 
�
	�
�
�

��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�


	�
�
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
	



�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
� 
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
	�

�
� 

�
��
��
 
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
� 
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
	�
�

� � � � � � � � �

Page 27



2
0

� � �
��

�%
��
�
��
'
�#
�


��
�"
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�*
��
��

9
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

9
��
�
��
		
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
	�
��
��
�
��
�


�
�

�
��
�

	
�


�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��

•
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�
	�
	�
�
�
�
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

	
��
�

.
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
� 

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
�'
��
�

��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�


��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�
�E
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

	�
�
��
 
�
D�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
4�
�

�	
��
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�


�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
��	

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
'
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�


��
�
�
��
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
	�


�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
		
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
K
�
�
	�

�
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�


��
�


� 

�
��
�
�
�


	
��

�
�
��


�	
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
&
�
��

�
�
�

•
 
;�
��





�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

�

�

�
�

��
�

	�
�
�

�
�
�


	
��
		
�


� 

�
�
�8
&
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
��
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
���
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�


	
��

�
��
��
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
��
�
��
� 

�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
	�
 

�
�
��

�
�
���
��
�	
��
��
��
�
���
�
��
��
�
���
�
�
�
�


�
�
���
�
��
��
�


��
�
�

��
� 
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
	�
�
	




@
�


��
�
	

	�


�
�
�
�



�
�
��
�
�.
�
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�

 

�
��

�
��
��

�
�

�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
	

�
�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
�

� �,
��
�
3�
��
�

�
��
��
��
 
�
�'
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�F
�
��

�
,
�
�
�
��
�*
��
�


��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
D�
�


�
�
�

�
�
�9
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�


�
��
��
�


�
	
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
		
��
��
�
�

�
�
�	

�
�
�


�

�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�

��
�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
� 

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
	
	�
�


��
8
*
�
,
��
�



�
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��



�
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
1�

�
��
�
	�
�
��
�

	'
��
�


��
�
��

�
�
	�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
7	
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�

� �
�
E
��

�
�
�	
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
		
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�*
��
�


��
�


�%
�
��
��
F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
<

�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
��

�
��
	�
�
'
	�
��
��
�
�

	�
4�
�
�


�
��

	
�
��
�


��
�
�
	�
�



�
��
�

�
�

	�

�
�
��
�
�

	
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�



�
�
4�
��
�


�

��

�
�
�
�
4�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
	

�
�
��
�


��
�
	�
��
�

�
�	
�
��
��
��
)�
�
'

�
�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�



�
�
4�
��
�
�

��
��
�<

�
��
��
�
	



�
�	
��
�
 
��
�
�

�
�


�
��
��
�


�	
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�



�
�
��
�


� 
�
��
��
��
�

	
��
�

�
�
4�
��
�
�

��
��
�
	�
�
�
	

�

�

�

�
	�
�
�


��
�
�

�

��
��
��
��
�


��

	
'
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

� 9
��
�
��
		
��
�
 
�
�

	�
!
;�
�
0
0
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��

	
��
�	
�
��
�
'

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
��
�9
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
�
	

	�
 

�
�
�!
H
�
�
��
�


��
��
�!
�
��
�
�H
�
�'
	�

�
�
��

	
��

�
�	
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
� 
�
�

��
�
���
�
�
���
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�3
�

�
��
)�
��
���
�

�
�
��
�;
�
�
�
��
	�
9
��
�

��
�+
)�
);
9
-�
��
�

	
� 

�
��
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
��
��
�


	
��

�
��
�
��
�
'


�
 
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�

	
�
�


�
��
��
�
��
	�
�,
	�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
�,
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
;8
9
��



��
�
� 
�
�

��
�
��
��
�
��
		
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
��
�
��
��
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
�

� �
�
�
��
;8
9
��
�
�


�


�3
�

�
��
!
�
��
�
�H
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�)
�
�


�
�	
�

�
�9
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

	�
�
�


�
� 
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
	�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�


��
�
�
�
�

��
��
�


��
��

�
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��

��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
	�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�

�
�
�

��
�

�
�
	�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
J�

•
 
�
�
�
�
�

��
�
�	
4�
	�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
�	
��
�


�	
��
'
�
�
�
�

�
�	
��
��
�
�!
�
��
�
�H
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
� 

�
��
��
'
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
	�
		

�
�
	�
�
�
� 
�
�
�
�E
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�


�A
�
�
�
�
��
�$
/
�
/
� 
�

�
�
�

Page 28



2
1

 

�
���

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
!
H
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
�
�


�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
:�



	
��
		
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
	�
�
�


��
��
��

�
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

�	
4�

��
�
�
�

��
�
�	
��
�


�'
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�'
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
	�
�	
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
	�
 

�
��
�
�
��
�
�$
�
��
�!
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

� 9
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
��

�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�>
	�
��


7�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


�
��
�)
�
��
��9
��
�
��	
�
�
'
��
�
��
�
�

�

��
��
�	
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

��
4�



�
�
��

�
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�'
�
��
��
 
�
	�
�
�


� 

�
�

�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

�

�
	�
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
	�
�

� 9
�
�

�

�
	�

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�)
�
*
� 

�
��
	�
�
'
��
�
��
��
�



�
��
��
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
��
�
 
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
��	
�
	�
�

�
�
�
��
1�
��
�
		

�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
	�

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
��
�
�
�4
�

�
��



��
�
��
�
	�
�
��
��
�
�


��

	
'
��
�


��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
	

�
�
�
��


���
�


	�
�
�
�
	�

�
��
�
�
�


	
��

�
��
��
8
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�

��
� 

�
���
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
��
��
�
��
 
�
�

�
�

���
�


� 
�
�
��
�

�
�
		

�
��
��
�


�	
�
�
'
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
 
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
���
��
�	
��
��
��
�
�
�	
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
��
�


��
��
��
�
��
��
�
	�
��
��


�
��
�
��
�
�

	�


��
�


��
�
�
�
 
�
�
��
��
��
���
 
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

� ;�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�)
�
*
��
�
�
��
�
��
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


�*
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
9
�
��
�
.
�

�
�
��
�
D�
�
D

�
��
��
�
�'
�
��
�
�


��
�



�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

��
��
��
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
��

�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
�

	�

�
�
�&
��
�
��
�

�
�*
��
�


��

	
'
�,
		
�
		
�
�
�
��
�
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�


�
��


��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
� 

�
�
�9
9
&
�$
�
��
�


��
�
�
��

�
�
��

��
��
��
�
�	

�
�
�
	
��
��
�
��
�


��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�


��
��
!
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
/
/
2
��
�
�
�
�&
*
�
,
� 

�
��
��
�



�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
 
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�


��

	
'
���
��
�
	�
�
�


��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�


�	
�
�
	

�

�
�
��
	�
	�
�
��
�




�
�
��
�


��
 
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
	�
�
��
��
��
�
��
	�
��

	
'
��
�

� �
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
	�
��
�
	�
��
�


��
�
�
�8
,
��
�
���
��
�	

�
�

�

�
�
�
��


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�

�
��
��
�


��

	
'
���
��
�
	�
�
�


� 
�
�
��
��
�
�
�8
,
��
�
	�
�
�
3�
��
��


��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�


	�
�
��
��
�
�


��

	
'
���
�
�
�)
�
��
��

9
��
�
�

�
�
�,
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
	�
��
��
	�


��
�
��

	
	

�
�
��

� �
��

�%
��
�
��
'
�#
�


��
�"
�(
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�+
��
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
���
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

� 9
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
	�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��

•
 
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

���
�
�
�

�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
.
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
�	
�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
'
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�


��
��
�
��
�
��
�

��
�
��
�
�


��
�
��
	�
��
�
�
'

�
�
�#
2
��
�
��
�
��
$
/
�
��

	
��

�
�	
��

•
 
!
�
 
�
�

�

�
�

��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
D�
	�
��
��
�
��
�
�

�
�	
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
� 
�
	�
�
4�


�
�
�
��
�
�


�


�
��
�
�
3�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
���
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��





�

�
�
�
��
	 
�
�
�

�
�
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
	�
��
��
��
��

	
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
��
�


��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
		
�	
��
�


�
�

	�

Page 29



2
2


�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
�
�=
��
G
��
�
�(
��
G
��

•
 
�
�

	
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
'
�
��
	�
�
�
�
�
	�
3�

�
��
�
��
�
�


�


��
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
�


��
�
�
�!
�
�

�
�
�
��
9
�
�'
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��


��
�
�
��
�
D�
�


�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
�

�

��
��


��
�
�
�	
 
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
	�
�

�

�
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
 
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�


��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�


��
�
�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�,

�
�K
�
�
�

��
�F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
,
��
�
�+
,
K
F
,
-�

�
�F
�
��
�
�
J�
�

•
 
�
�
��
�
��
�
.
�
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
 
��
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�

�
�
	�
�
�


�	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�


�
�

�
	�
�
��
��
�
�,
K
F
,
��
�
�

�
��
�


�
��
�
��
��
�
� 



�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
��

�
��
�
�


�
�
��
	�
	�
�
�
�
	�
�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�


�
��
��
�

	
� 

�
���
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�,
K
F
,
� 

�
��

�
��
�


�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��


��
��
�
�


�
�
��
	�
��

,
�

��
��
��
��
�
�

	�
��
��
�
�

��
 
�
��
�
��
�


��
�
�
	�
��
�


��
�
��
�

�
��
��
��
�
�

�

��
�

�
�
�

� �
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
	�
	�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��

�
	�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�
��

�
�


�

�
��
�
�
�<

�



�
�
�	

�
�
�,
��

�
�
�9
��
�
��
,
��
��

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�

�
�
	�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
��


��
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
�
�

�
	�
��
��
�
�
�'
�

	�
��
��
	�
�
	

�

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��


�
.
�
�
��
�

�
��
	�

�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�


��

�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
	�
�
	

�

��
��
�
�

�
�
�	
4�
��
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

	
�


��
�


��
��
��
��
�


��

� *
�
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
	�
	�
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
	

�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	

��
	�

	
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�


� 

�
�
�!
H
�
�
���
	�
��
�
��
�
	�
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�

��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�)
�
��
��,
��
�
�,
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
+!
�;
��
2
�
-�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�7
	�
�
�
��
D�
�
�


�


��
�
�
�
��
�
	



�
�F
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
E
��

�
�
��
�
�
	�
�

	�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�

�
�
�

	�
	�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��


�
�
��

	
�


� 

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�

�

�
�
��


�
�
��
�
�
��
�
 
��
�
�
��
���

� �
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�)
��
�
�


�
�

�
�
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
6

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
*
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
&
�
�
�
�
&
�
��
�(
�
�
��
�6
�

9
$
�!
�

�
&
�
�
�
�
&
�
��
�2
(
�
�
��
�
��

-
�
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
,
5
4
9
$
�&
&
�
,
-
-
9
$
�&
&
�
,
5
4
9
$
�&
&
�

 
�
�
:
!
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

$
�

�
�
�
�(
�
�
��
A�
&
�
�
�
�
&
�
��
�

(
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
$
�
/�
�
�
�
�
�	
�

��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�/
��

��
�

�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
4
�

�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
$
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
�!
�
��

(
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�2
�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�/
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
:
��

H
�
�

�
�

3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
+
,
/,
5
7
�

+
�
/�
�
7
�

+
,
/,
5
7
�

�

*
�
��
�
�

��
�
�*
�
��
�
��
�



�
�
��


�	
�
�
�
�

��
!
�
��
�
�
��
�D
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
(
�

2�
5
��
�
��
�
3�

�
�
�
��
�
�(
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
�

�
&
�

�
�

�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
�
�

�
'
'
�

7
��
��
&
�
�
�
�
&
�
��
�(
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

��

�

�
�
�
�
A�

�
�


�
��
�
$
��
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�*
�
�
+
5
/�
5
7
�

,
�
/5
�
7
�

+
4
/*
�
7
�

�
��

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

Page 30



2
3

�
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
$
�2
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
�/
�

�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
:
��
H
�
�

�
�

3
�

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
�
��
�
�
�
�"
7
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
+
�

�
'
'
�

�
=
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
��
'
�

�
!
�

�
��
�
�
�
/�
�'
��
��
�
�

�
�
:
��
��
�
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�'
�

�
�
�'
�

?
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
�
��
/�

�
�
�
�
6�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
6�

��
�
��
�
��

�
��
�7
��
&
�
�
$
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�



�
�

/
�B
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
�(
��
��
	
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
�.
�
�
�
��
�
*
�
/�
�

��
�

�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
-
�

�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
�
!
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
=
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
'
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�

%
��
��
�
��
�
�
�!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��


�	


�

?
@
B
�
'
/�
?
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
5
�(
��
��
	
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
�%
�
!
��
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��

�%
�,
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�)
��
�


�
�

�
�
��
E
$
��
�

	
	

�
�
	�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

�

�
8
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
!
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	
�
�(
�
9
��
	
�(
(
9

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
*
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
!
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
�


�
��
��
�(
&
�
�
�

�
�
&
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
*
�
��
�
*
*
�

�

"
�
&
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
*
�
��
�
*
*
/�
�
�
(
��
�
&
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
:
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
:
��
��
�
$
�(
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
&
�
�
/�
1
�
(
�
�
�

�
��
��
&
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
?
�
�

�
�

�
�
�


��
:
�
�
�
�
�
�0
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

$
�
��
/�
�

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
�
�
@
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
��
�

�
(
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
��
��
�
�

(
�
�
��
�

�

)
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
��
�

�
(
�
��
�
9
��
$
�!
��
�
�
��
�
�!
�

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
��
�

$
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�

!

�
�
�
�
�
�
�!
�

�
9
$
�
�(
�
�
��
�$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
&
�&
�
�
�
�
&
�
��
��

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
4
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
��
�
$
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
$
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��

�
�
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
$
��
�

�
�
$
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�=
�
�6
)
�

�
&
�

�

%
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�&
�
�
��
�
$
�
��
�
��
�
��
$

�
�
�
�
�
��
(
��
&
��
;
�
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
�

�
�


�
��
�
$
��
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
$
/�
'
��
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
$
��

�
�
��
&
�
�
��
�
9
�
�
�!
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
�
�
�
A�

�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�*
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
&
��
&
�
��
�
&
�
�
�
�

(
��
��
	
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
$
��
&
�
�'
�
��
�
�
�(
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

�

�
/
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�:
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
	
�-
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
	
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
*
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
!
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
�


�
��
��
�(
&
�
�
�

�
�
&
��
��
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
*
�
��
�
*
*
�

�

"
�
&
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
*
�
��
�
*
*
/�
�
�
(
��
�
&
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
:
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
:
��
��
�
$
�(
��
��
	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
&
�
�
/�
1
�
(
�
�
�

�
��
��
&
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
?
�
�

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

Page 31



2
4

�
�

�
�
�


��
:
�
�
�
�
�
�0
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�

$
�
��
/�
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
�
�
@
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
��
�

�
(
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
��
��
�
�

(
�
�
��
�

�

)
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
��
�

�
(
�
��
�
9
��
$
�!
��
�
�
��
�
�!
�

�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
��
��
�

$
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�

!

�
�
�
�
�
�
�!
�

�
9
$
�
�(
�
�
��
�$
�
�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
&
�&
�
�
�
�
&
�
��
��

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
4
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
��
�
$
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
$
�
��
�
�
��
��
�

��

�
�
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
$
��
�

�
�
$
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�=
�
�6
)
�

�
&
�

�

%
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�&
�
�
��
�
$
�
��
�
��
�
��
$

�
�
�
�
�
��
(
��
&
��
;
�
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
�

�
�


�
��
�
$
��
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
$
/�
'
��
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
$
��

�
�
��
&
�
�
��
�
9
�
�
�!
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
�
�
�
A�

�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�*
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
&
��
&
�
��
�
&
�
�
�
�

(
��
��
	
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
$
��
&
�
�'
�
��
�
�
�(
��
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

#

�
/
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
�
��
	
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
�;
<
"
"
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
,
�
�
�
�
��
(
��
��
�&
�
�(
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�(
��
&
��
&
�
�

!
�

�
�
�

�
&
�!
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
&
�
�
	
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��
$
�

�
�
��
(
�
�
��

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
+
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
$
��
��
��
&
�
��
�

�
��
�
�(
��
&
�

�

�
�
�
�

�
�


�
��
�
$
��
�
�	
�
�!

�
�
��
�
�
�	


�!

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
!
�
�


�

�

D
&
��
�
�

�
�
�
$
�$

�
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
��
��
$
�
��
/�
�
�
!
�

�
��
�
�
�?
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
��

�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�
�



��

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
-
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
�
��
	
��
��


��
&
�
�
!
�

�

�
�

�
��
�
�!

�
�
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
$
�
��
��
�
�
!
��
��
�

�
!
�

�
�?
�
�
��

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
5
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
&
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�


�
��
�
$
��
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
$
�
��
��
�
�
!
��
��
��

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
$
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�(
�
�
9
�

�

(
&
�

�
��
!
!
��
�
�
	
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
9
��
�
��
�
��
��
$
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
'
(
�
��
��
$
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
D
;
0
��
�
�
�
�
��
$
�
��
�
�
��

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

-

�
�
	
�/
�
�
�
�
�
�"
7
�
��
�
��
�
�	
�
�
��
�
	
�
�	
�
�
�	
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
	
�
�	
��
��
�
�"
	
�
�
�
��
�
�"
7
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
�*
,
�
0

�
�
�
��
$
��
��
�
��
(
��
&
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�
:
!
�
�
�
��
$
�

	
��
��
��
�
�
��
�

��
��

�

6�
�
&
��
��
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
(
�
��
!

�
$

�
�
�
�
��
�
!
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
��
�
��
�
��
@
�

�
�

B
��
�
��
�
$
��
�
�
��
�



�
�
��


�+
�
7
��
��
�
��
@
7
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
0
6�
(
�

9
��
�
�

$
�
��
$
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
$
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�	


�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
�*
+
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

$


��
��
��
��
�
��
	
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
?
1
�

�
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
�!
�
�
��

�

'
��
�
��
$
�
�(
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
�!

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�(
�
�$
�
�
A�

�
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
H
�
�

�
�
�

�
�	
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
�*
-
�
?
�
�
�
��
!
�#

�
�
�
��
!
��
�
��
�

�
�
?
�
�

�

#
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�!
�

�
��
��
=
�
�
��
�
�=
�
�
�@
%
#
��
(
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
!
!
�

�
�

!

�
$

�
�
�
�
/�
��
��
��
��
�

�
��
��
$
�6
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
6�
!

�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
?
�
��
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
	
�

�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
$
��

�

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

Page 32



2
5

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
�*
5
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
(
�

�
�(
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
!
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�


�

�

�
�
�
��
�%
�
�

�
��
�
��
(
�

�
�!
�

�
&
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�!

�
>�
�
��
�
�
�
�

(
�


��
�
��
��
��
�Q
�
�

�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
&
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
/�
�

�
*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

(

(

�
%
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�B
@
��
�
*
4
��
,
�
?
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
!
��
�
��
�
�
&
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
!
��
�
��

�

�
$

�
�
�
�
�

�

)
�
>�

�
�

��
��
!

�
>�
�
��
��
�
�
�

(
�


��
�

�
!
�

9
�

�
!
�
�

�
�!

�
$

�
�
�
�
�
A�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�

�
��
�
�A
��
�
(
�	
�
��
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
9
��
�
�$
�
�
�!
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�!
��
�
�
�	


�

=
�
#
��
�
�
A�
�
�
��
��
�
��
(
�
��
�
�
�

�
�	
��
��
�
�
�
��

�

�
�
�.
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�*
��
9
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
#
�

$
�
��
"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
$
��
�
�'
�
�
!
��
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
&
�
�
$
�
�2
�
�
�
�
��

�
8
��
(
A�
,
8
&
�$
&
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�
!
�

�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�

�/
�

'
�
�
��
�
�
�	


�0
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
=
��
��
�
��
&
�
��

�
�
�

�
$
�
�!
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
	
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
&
��
�

�
�

A
��
&
�
�
$
&
�

�
�
�
�
�?
��
�

��
��
�!
�
��
�
��
�
��


��
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
��
*
�

�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
N�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
�
�

�
'
'
�

B
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�

�
�
��
�
�

��
9
�

�
�
�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
*
�
�
7
�

*
�
�
7
�

*
�
�
7
�

6)
�
��
��
�
$
�
�
�


��
��
�
�
�6
!
��
�
�

�
$

�
�
�
��
(
�
��
��
$
��
�$
�
��
��
��

�
'
'
��
�
�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�	


��
;
�
�
�%
�

�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
$
�
��
�
��
�
!
�(
��
&
��
;
�
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
�

�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
�&
��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
>�
�
�
��
�
�
�

(
��
&
�@
'
/�
@
'
��
�
�

�
�
��
(
��
�

�


�(
�

�
��
$
�

�


�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
!
��
�
��
��
�
$
�
�
�


��
��
�
�
�

!
��
�
�
�(
��
&
�!
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
4
5
�

'
(
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�

!

�
��
�
��
�
�
��



�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
�

��
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
�

2<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
/�
7
�

�
�
�
/�
7
�

6�
�
�
�
	
�
$
��
�
��
&
�
�
�
�
��

&
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��

��

�
&
�

�
��
��
�#
&
�

�
��
�
�

?
�
��
��
��
/�
)
�
��
��
'
$
�
�
�


�

B
��
�
�
�!
��
�
��
$

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

(
�
��
��
$
��
�
�	
�
��
�$
�
�
�
��
��
��

D
�

9
�&
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
�

�
�
��
&
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
	
�
$
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
&
�

��
�
�
�
�

��
9
�	


��
?
�
/�
B
�

�
&
�

�
(
�

9
�	
�
��
$
�

!

�
$

�
�
�
�
�
�	


��
&
�
�@
'
��
�
�
��
;
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
$
�
�
�


��
��
�
�
�!
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
(
��
��
@
'
�

�
�

�


�(
�

�
��
$
��
�
�
&
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
	
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

�
�



�
�
��

�
�



�
�
��
#
�

$
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

�
�
�
$
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

Page 33



2
6

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

 
!
�
�
��
�

"
�
��
�
�

�

"
�
��
�
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�

B
�
�*
�

�
�
(
�&
�
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
�

!

�
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�

��
�
�
�2
(
�
�
�<
"
�*
�
-
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
/�
�
7
�
,
�
/�
�
7
�

�
�
/�
�
7
�

*
�
�
�2
$

�
�
�
3�
&
�
�
�
��
$
�

�
�
�
!
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

2$

�
�
�
3�
&
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
?
�
/�
�

��
�

�
0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

B
�
�+
�

7
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��

�&
�
��
��
9
�
�
�!
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�

9
�
��
��
(
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
$
�
�
F�
1
�
�
�
��
$
�

2(
�
�
��
�
��
-
+
�
3�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�

�
��

�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�*
��
9
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��


�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
� �

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

0

�

�
�
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�$
%
&
��
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
	
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
��
�
*
4
��
*
�
�
?
B
�6
��
�

�
��
�

�
��
$


6

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
!
��
�
�
�

�

%
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�*
�
��
:
&
�	
��
��
�
�
��
�
(
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
/�
�
�
(
��
�
�
�

�
��
$
�


�
�
!
�
�
�
�
�
/�
B
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
!

�
!
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�%
�
!
��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
��
�
*
4
��
�
�
�
?
B
�6
�B
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
$
�?
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
?
�
?
�

�

��
��
��
��
�
�
$
�
��
��
�
�
��
+
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�!
�

�
��
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
/�
�

�
�
�%
�
!
��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
��
�
*
4
�*
�
�
#
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
?
B
��
�

�
�


�
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

(
�


��
�

�
�
�

�
�%
�

�
��
$


��
�
�
�?
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�?
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

��

�
�
!
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
/�
2�

�
�
�
�

�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
9
��
�
�
�
��
�
�*
3�
�

�
-
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

0

�

�
�
	
��
�
	
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�	
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
��
�
*
4
�*
�
�
%
�

�
��
$
��
�B
��
�
�
��
��
9
�'
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
B
��
�
��
�

�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
�

*
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
�

�
��
�
�=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
F�
#

0

#

�
&
�	
	
�
��
�
�
�5
8
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

Page 34



2
7

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�+
��
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
#

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�4
�
�
��
�!
�	
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�/
!
�
�
�
��
� 
�
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
-
�

��
!

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
6B
�

��
�!
!
��
$
�

2(
�
�
�<
"
�*
�
�
�
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
,
�

�
�

,
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
&
��
�&
�
�
�

�
�
��
	
�
�
�
��
�&
��
��

�
�
�!

�
	
��
�
��
�
��
��
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�!
��
�
�
�
�
�(
��
&
�

�
�
�$
&
	
�
�

�
�
$
�!
�

�
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
&
��
��

�
��
&
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
�
��
�
�!
�
�
�
�	
��
/�
�

��
�

�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
,
�
�

'
�

�H
�
�
��
�

�E
�7
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
=
:
�G
�!

�
�
�



��
)
*
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
&

�
�
$
&
��
'
J�
�

�
�
��
��
�G
��
!
�

�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�
$
�
�

�
<
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
	
��
��
�
�

��
�

�

�&
��
�

�
�

�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
5
�

�
'
'
�

��
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��

<
��
�
��
�

�
��


�E
�7
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

%
��
�
�
�(
&
�

�
�!
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
&
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��

�

��
�	
�
��
$
��
�
!
��
�
�
�
��
�
/�

�
;
�
�
��
�
�
�
�/
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
/�
7
�

�
�
�
/�
7
�

*
�
4
�%
��
�
�
�6
��
�
�(
��
&
�!
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
*
/�
,
/�
�
��

� <

�
�
9
�
�
(
�
�	


�'
=
�
<
F�
�

%
��
�
�
��
�
�1
�
(
�

�
��
�
�1
��
��
�'
=
�
<
�+
,
�6
�

�
4
�(
��
&
�!
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��

2,
�
/-
7
3�
�

%
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�'
=
�
<
�-
�
�6
�+
�(
��
&
�

!
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
25
/�
7
3�
�

��
�

�
0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
�
+
�
�

��
!

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
6�
��
��

�
2�
�

�
�


�

�
�
�



�,
��
�
�
�&
�
3�

.�
�

��
�
�
�
�
*
7
�

+
7
�

+
7
�

�
#

�
�
�
&
�
�*
�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
+
	
�

��
!

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

2�
�
�
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

A
��
�
�

��
�
�
A�

$

�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�

�!
�
�
��
�
$
3F
�

?
�
�

��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�*
�
�
*
�
7
�

+
7
�

+
7
�

�
#

�
�
�
&
�
�*
�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
+
�
�

��
!

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
60

�
��
��
��
�

.�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
7
�

+
7
�

�
7
�

�
#

�
�
�
&
�
�
�*
�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
�
+
�
�

��
!

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
6B
�

6!
�
�
��
�
$
�

2�
�

�
�


��
�
�



�,
��
�
�
�&
�
3�

.�
�

��
�
�
�
�
�
7
�

+
7
�

�
7
�

�
#

�
�
�
&
�
�
�*
�

�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

Page 35



2
8

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
-

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
'
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
+
�

=
�
�

�
��
�$
�
�
�

�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�(
��
&
��
�
�
�
��

�

�
�
�2
<
��
�
�
�
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
5
7
�

�
�
5
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
�

��

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
�%
��
��

�

�
��
*
4
�
�

%
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
!
�
�
!
��
�

�
�
�

�
-
+
�(
��
&
�	
�
�&
�&
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�$
&
	
�
�

&
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
*
/-
7
�

�
�
*
/-
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
	
��
�

��

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

�%
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�+
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�.
�
�
�

��
��
��
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

2

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�	
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�4
�
�
��
�!
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
��
��
�
	
�
�
�
��
�	
'
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�?
�
��
�
%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
@
��
�
*
4
��
�
�
��
!
��
�
�
�
��
�&
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�&
�
�?
�
��
��
�
�
�'
�

�

�
�
�
��
�

�'
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��

�
$
�
�
��
��
:
��
�
��
�

�

+
�=
�
��
	
�

6
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
K
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
A�
�
��
��
��



��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
A�
#
�
(
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
:
��
�
��
�
��
�&
�
�'
�
)
'
/�
�

�
!
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
9
�
�


�
!
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��


�%
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
-
��
�
�
�
�
	
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��

�
�'
�
)
'
/�
�

*
4
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

2

�

�
8
�
�
�
	
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
��
!
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�6
�

�
�

�
�
��
G
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

=
�
6$
�
��
$
6�
�

�
�
�
��
�

$
�
��
�
�	


�

�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�@
B
�
)
��
�

�
�


��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

�

*
�
+
�
�	
��

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
�*
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
��
$
��
��
��
Q
��
$
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
(
�
�
!
�

�

�

�
�
$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�(
��
&
��
;
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
��
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
$
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
�(
&
�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�!
�


�
�
�
��

�
�

�
�


�
��
�
$
��

�
�
��
�
/�
=
��
��
�

�
��

�
��
��
�
��
�



�
�
��


�

�
�
$
�
��
�
��
�
$
��

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��
;
�
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
�

(
�
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�


�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
/�
#
&
��
��
�
&
�
�
�
�2
�
��
?
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
3�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
&
�
�
��
�&
�
�!
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
��
(
�
�
!
�

/
��
;
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
�

�
��
��
$
��
�
��

�&

�
�
$
&
�
�
��
�
�

�
&
�;
�

9
�
&
�

�
/�
'
�!
��
�
��
�
�



��
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
$
��
�
�
�
�!

�
�
�
�
�
�
�&
�$
&
�

H
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
!
�
�
��
�

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
�*
*
�
@
�
&
�
�
�
�
��
��
9
�
&
�
��
�

�
!
�

�
��
�!
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
$

�
�
!
�
�

�

66
�$
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�#
��


�<

�
��
��
��
�
�
�<
�<
�1
�
��
�
��


�0
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
9
�

�
�
$
��
�
�
��
)
%
�

�
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

Page 36



2
9

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

2

#

�
�
	
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�	
��
�	
�
�
��
 
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
��
��
�
*
4
�*
*
�
��
!
��
�
�
�
��
<
��
�
��
�

�
��


�'
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�

?
�
�
��
�
��
�$
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
$
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
;
�
�
��
&
�
�>
�
��
��
!
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�



�
��
�
�

)
�
�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
=
��
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�/
��
?
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
$
��
��
�!
��
�
�
��
$
��
!
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
!
��
�
�
�
�
�(
��
&
��
&
�
�<
'
�
A�
��
��
&
�
��
�
��

�
�
/�
�

�
$

�
�
�
�(
��
&
�

�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
!
��
�
�
�&
�
�
��
&
�

�
��

�
��
��
��
�
�
/�
�

�
-
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
0
�



�1
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�#

2

-

�
�
	
��
	
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
!
��
	
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
��
��
�
��
�	
�
�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
�*
�
�
D
�

9
�(
��
&
��
�
�
�
��
$

�
�
!
�
��
&

�
�
$
&
�<

�
��
��
�

��
�<
��
�
�
A�
�
�

�
�
&
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
A�
#
��


�<

�
��
��
�

�
=
�
$
�
��
$
�(
�

9
�(
��
&
��
�
�
�
��
$

�
�
!
�
�

�
�<
�<
��
�
�
�<
�$
�#
��


��
!
��

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�%
%
��
�
*
4
�*
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
Q
�
��
��
�
�
�

��
9
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
!
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
&
�
�
�
�M
�
��
��

�
�
�
�
	
�
$
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�&
�
�!
�

�

'

�
�
�
�!

�
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	
�
$
�
��
�
��
&
�
�
��
�
�!

�
�

�
�

��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
	
>�
�
��
��
��
��
�
&
�

��
�
�
�
�

��
9
/�
�

*
+
�)
�


��
�
�
�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

Page 37



3
0

�
��

�&
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
	



�
�
�	
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
� 
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��

�
�
	�
�
��
4�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
 
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

��
�
�	
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��

�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�-
��

�
�
��
�
��
�	
�
��
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
 
�
	�

!
�
"
�	
�
�

�
��



�
��
�#
�
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
��
��
� 
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�
��
��

�
�
��

��
	�
�
��
	"
�

�
=
��
�
�
 
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
�

�

�
	"
�

	
��
�
��
�"
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
��

(
�0
��
��
�
��

�

�

	
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
�

D	
�
�

�
���
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
	�
 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
��
�


�
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
��
��
��
���
�

�
�
���
��
�	
��

(
�0
�$
��
�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�	
�&
�
�
��
	�
&
��
�
��
�
�
� 

�
�
��
��

	

�
�
��
�
 
�
�

	�
��
�
���
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�$
/
�
$
�E
��
�
�

�
	�

(
�0
�#
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�


�	
�
�

	�
�
��

�
�
� 

�
�
��
�
�
�	
�
�
��
4�
�
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
��

�
��
�
��

�
��
�
�


�
��
�

�
��

�&
��
�
��
��
�
��



�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�

�
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�-
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
 
�
	�

	
�
�

�
��



�
��
��


��


��
�
�
��

,
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

�
�
��
�
�

�
 
��
�
	�
��
'
�
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
))
��
�


���

	
�
��
��
��
�

	

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
�

�
�
��


J�

•
 
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
.
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
 
��
�


��
�
�
�


�+
 
�
�
��
��
�
		

�
��
-�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	
� 

�
�
�)
�


�
�)
�
�
��
�
7	
�	
��
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�



�

�
�
	�

Page 38



3
1

 

�
�
��
))
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
�


��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
	�
�'
�
�
�

�



�
�
��
�	
��
�


��
��
3�
��
�

�
�

��
��
��
�
�

�
	�
��
�
�
��
�
	

�
�
		
��
��
�
��
�
��

�

�

	
�
�

�

	'
��

•
 
E
��

�
�
�	
��
�
��
�
�

�

�
��


��
�
�
�

�

�
��



	
��
		

�
�
� 

�
�
�&
�
�
��

�
�

��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�


�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
	�
��
�

�

��
��
�	
��
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�


��
��


�
��
��
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
��
��
��
�
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
	

��
�	
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��
�


��
��

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
		

�
�
�'
�
�
�	
��
'
�
�
�
�

�
�	
�

�
��
�



�
�
��
))
4�
9
�
�
4�
!
H
�
�
4�
!
�
��
�
�

H
�
�'
	�

�
�
�&
�
�
��
	4
�,
��

�
�
��
�
�


�
��
��
��
��
+�
))
��
�
	�
�
	�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�


��
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
��
�

	
��
��
�
-�
�,
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�


��
�
��
�
'
�
��
��
��
�$
��
�
��
�
�
�
��

$
/
/
2
��

•
 
E
��

�
�
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��

�
��
��
��
��
	�
�
��
�
�


�
�
��
�
	

�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�

�
��
�
�
�
��
�


�
�
��
��
�
�


�
�	
��
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

	

�
�
��
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�

	
�
��
�
��
�
'
�
��
��
��
��

•
 
�
�
�
�)
�
�
�
��
	�
��

�
�
�
	
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
		
��
��
��
�

�
 

�
�
��
�


��
�
�
�



�
�
��
�
�
��
�

	�

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�



�

�
�
	�
��
�

	
�

	�
�
�


�
�

��
��
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
	�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
��

��
�
	�
��

�
�	
��
�
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
	�
�
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
� 
�
�'

�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��
�,
��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
	�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�


� 

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
��

��
�
	�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�



�
��
�
�
��
��
��
		
��

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��


��
.
�
'


�
��
�
��
+,
&
<
-�
�
��
�



�


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

��
�	
�
�
 
	�
��
�
��

�
�



�
�
�	
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
	�


��
��
�
�$
4#
/
0
�

�
 
�
��
�
G
��
�
�$
4/
#
#
��
��
�
�
�

�
��
��
��
�
�

��
�
�*

�
�
�&
�
��

�
�
��
�	
�
�	
�
�
 
	�
��
�
��
,
&
<
�

�
�



�
�
�	
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
	�


�

�
�$
/
/
2
��
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
�$
/
/
0
��
�;
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�,
&
<
�+
�
��
��


�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
4�
��
�
��

�
�

�
�
4�
�
��
��

�

-
��
��

�
�
�
��
�

��
�
�
��
�
�
��

	
��

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�	
�
	
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�	
�
��

�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
	�
��
�


��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
��
	�
�
D�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�


�
��
�




��
��


��


��
"
��
�
��
	�
�
�
��
��
�


�
��


�

�
�

�
�
��
�!
�
��
�
�H
�
�'
	�

�
�
��
	�
�
� 
�
�
��
��
�


� 

�
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
�

�
�$
/
/
0
4�
�
�


��
�
��
�
�	
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�4
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
	�
� 
�
��
�
�
�	
4�
�

�
�
��
	�
��
��
6

�
��


��
�


�&
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�

;�
3�
��


��
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�
 
��
�
��
�
 
�
�

��
��
�


4�
 
�

�
�
�

�
��
�


�
	�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�


��
#
�	
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�
�
3�
��


��
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
 
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	4
��
�
�
�&
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�	
�

�
�

 

�
���
�
��
	�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
3�
��
�
�

�
�

�

�
	J
� �

/
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
J�
9
��
��
��

�
�
��
�


�	
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
	�

�
��
�
�
	�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�


�
��
��

	
��

�
��
��%
�
��

�
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��

�
�



�
�
�	
��
��


�
�
�
	�

�
�

�

�
��
�
��
��
�
�

�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��


�
��
�

�
�
��
�


��
 
�
��
�
�
		
��
�

	

�
�
��
�
�'
�
�
�
	�
 

�
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
� �

�



�
��
�
�


�
�J
�<
�
��
�
	�
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
		

�
�
��
�


�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�	
�
�
�


��
�


��
�
�

�
�

��
�

�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

	
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
		
�

�
�


�
�
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
 
�
�'
��
�


�
��
�
'
�
�
4�
 
�
��

�
��
�
��

�

�

	
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�	
��
��
'

�
��


��
�


�	
�
�

�
�
	�
�
�

�
3�
��


��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�


	�
�
��
�
�
�


�
��
� �

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
"
�	
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
	�
�
��
�
�
�

�	
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�


��
�


�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
	�
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

��
�
�

�
�

�

�
	�
�

�
�
�

�
�
��


�

�
�
��
�
�
	�
��
�
�

�
�
�	
�
��
�
�
	4
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��

�

�

	
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
	�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�


��
�
�

�	
�
�

�
���
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�

�
	4
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
	

�

��
��

�
 
��
��
��
�
�

�

	
��

�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
�
��
4�
�


�
��
�

�
�
��
�


��
��

�

�

�
	4
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�



�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��

	
��

�
��
�

�
��
�
'
�
��
�


��

��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
,
��
�
�
�
���
�
��
��
�


�
��

�
�
�&
��
�
��
�
�
��
�


��
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
�
���

	
�
	�
��
�


�	
�
��

�
�
	�

�
��

�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�


�
��
4�
 
�
��

�
��
�
��
�

	
�
��
 
�
��
�
�
		
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
	�
.
�
�
�
��
	�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
���

	
�
	�
�
�
��
�

�
��
��
��

�

�

	
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
�

�



�



�
�
�	
��
�


��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
4�

�
�


��
�
��
�


�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�



�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
���
�
��
��


��
�

�
�
��
�


�


	
�
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
��
	�
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
"
�/
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��<
�
�

�
��
��
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

�
	�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�

�
��
�

	

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
	�
�
�


��
�
�	
�
��

�
�
��
�

�
�

�

�
	4
� 
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�

��
�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
� 
�
�'
��
��
&
�
��
��
�
�
�


�
��
� �

� � �

Page 39



3
2

�

Page 40



3
3

�
��

�&
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�-
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
 
�
	

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
(

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
	
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�!
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

1
@
�*
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�(
��
&
�

�
!
�

�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�7
�

2(
�
�
�<
"
�*
*
�
�
3�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
,
�
7
�

-
+
7
�

,
�
7
�

6�
�
!
�

�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
(
�

�
!
�

�
�
��
�

�
��
$


��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
9
�
�
��

?
�
��
��

�
�
��
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�


A�
�
�
A�
�&
�
�
$
&
��
�
��
�
��

�
��

�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
%
�*
�
�

��
!

�
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
��
&
�
��
�
0
*
5
�

�
�

��
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
	
��
�
�=
!
�
�
�

%
!
�
�
�
�H
�
�
��
�

�2
(
�
�
��
�
��
-
�
3�
�
�
�
5
��
�
�
�
7
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
�&
��
�


�
�
$
�
�

 
�
�
��
��
�
!
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
�	
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�!
�

�
��
��
�&
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
�%
�

�
��
$


��

��
�

�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
�
��
'
'
�

'
�
�
��
�!
�

�
��
�!
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
!
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
/�
�

%
!
�

�
�@
�
$
��
�
�
�'
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
!
��
�%
�

�
�


6'
�
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
*
5
/�
7
�

�
+
/5
7
�

*
5
/�
7
�

<
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
-
�5
�

�
4
/�
7
A�
�
�
�
5
��
��
�
/�
7
��

#
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
�!
�

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��

%
!
�

�
�
��
�
�
�'
�
��
�
�
��


�
�
�
��
�%
�

�
��
$


�

�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
+
-
2�
�3
�
�
;
�
�
/�
=
	
�
�
��


��
�
�!

�
�
�



�

�
�
&
�
�
��
�
$
�
��
&
��
�

�
�
��
�
�;
�
�

�

-
F�
�
��
�
�-
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
�&
��
�


�
�
$
�
�

�
�
;
�
�
��
�

$
�
�6
�#
�
�	
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�!
�

�
�	


�

�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
%
!
�

�
��
�
�
�'
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
��
$


�

�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
�
�

7
��
��
!
�
�
!
��
�(
&
�
��
�
�
��
�&
�
��

�&
�


�	
�
��
�
$
��
�
��
&
�
�

�

�
�
�$
&
	
�
�

&
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
5
�
/�
7
�

�
5
�
/�
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�

��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
�%
��
��

�

�
��
*
�
�
�

%
�

�
�


�2
#
�
��
 
�
3/
��
&
��
�

�
�
�

�
�
�
�

�
�
�
$
�!
�
�
!
��
M�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
�
�(
��
&
�!
�

9
�
��
�
�
�

!
��


��

�
�
�
�2
<
��
�
�
��
�3
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
+
,
/,
7
�

�
+
,
/,
7
�

�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
;
�
�
��

�
�
/�
�

��
�

�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

�
��
*
��
'
'
�

7
��
��
!
�
�
!
��
�(
&
�
�	
�
��
�
�
�
�

!
�
�
!
��
��

�
�
��
��
��

�
�
��

	
�
�
9
$

�
�
�
�
�
�$
�
��
�
�
�(
�
��
�

��
$
�
�&
�

�
��
��
&
�
�

��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
*
/*
7
�

�
�
*
/*
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�

��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
�%
��
��

�

�
��
�
4
�

�
�

�
�
!
��
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
!
�
�
!
��
��
�
�

�&
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
�&
�

�

(
��
&
�

�
�
!
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
/�
7
�

�
�
�
/�
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�

��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

1
@
��
'
'
�

-
,
�

�
&
��
�

�
�
�G
�;
�
�
�
$
��
�
�
!
��
J�
�

�
�

�
��
�!
�
��
�
�
��
�
�&
�$
&
�H
�
�
��
�

�

�
!
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
7
�

�
�
�
7
�

�

�
�
!
�

�
�
�
�H
�
�

�
�

�


�	


��
;
�
�
/�
�

�
$

�
�
�
�

��
(
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
��
�$
�
�
��
2�
�
�
�
�
��
��

$
�
�3
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
&

�
�
$
&
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
@
%
%
�
�
��
�

�
�


A�

!
�
	
��
�
&
�
�
��
�
�
&
�=
�
�/
2%
�
�

�
�
��
;
%
�
3�
��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

Page 41



3
4

(
��
��
	
�
��
��
�
$
$

�
$
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
�

��
��
��
�
�
�/
�

�
�


��
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
0

�
�
	
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
	
��
�
	
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�	
�
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�

��
�
��
�
��

�

�
�
�
��

 
!
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�



�
�
��

#
�

$
�
��

"
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�



�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�

%
&
�

�
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

�
�
�
$
�

#
�

�
�

#

�
�
�
�

'



�
(
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
5
�

�
'
'
-
5
�

�
�

�
�
!
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
6�
�
�
��
��

	
�
&
�
�
��
�

�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
*
�
/�
7
�

�
*
�
/�
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�

��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

�
;
��
'
'
��
�
4
�

�
!
�

�
�6
��
�
�
�
6�
�
�!

�
�
��
��
�
�
��

	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
;
�
�
��
�
�*
*
/�
7
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
,
*
�

�
'
'
�

�
�

�
�
!
��
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�
9
��

�


�
(
�


�	
�
&
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
��
�

!

�
	
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
*
/�
7
�

�
�
*
/�
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�

��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

��
�

�
.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
*
*
�
�

%
�
��
6

�
!
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��
��

!
�
�
!
��
M�
��
�
�

�
��
�&
�
�
��
&
��
�
�
�

(
�
��
	
�
��
$
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
�
5
+
/4
7
�

�
5
+
/4
7
�

'
(
�
��
��
$
�!
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�2
�
�
�
��
��
.�
�
�
3�

��
��
�
�
	
��
��
�

�
&
�

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
/�
�

��
�

�
�
��

�
�%
��
��

�

�
��
,
5
�

�
'
'
�

�
�
�
!
��
�9
��
��
�
��

�
�
�

�
�
�
�
�

�

��
>�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��

�
��
��
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
��
�

��

�
�&
��
�


�
�
$
�
�

�
�
4
�#
�

$
�
��
,
�
4
A�
�
4
�=
�
��
�

�
�,
�
�
/�
�


�
�
�
��
�

B
�$
�

�
��
�

�
�
4
��
�
�
�
A�
,
�
�6
��
�
��
�
�
�
A�
4
�
�

�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�
��

�&
�$
��
��


��
�
��
��
�
��
��
��
�
�-
��

�
�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�


�	
�
��
��

�
��
�
�
	�
�
�


��
�
 
�
	

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�-

3

�

�
	
��

��
��

��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�	
��
�
�
��

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
=�
	
�
��
��
 
�
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�	
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
��
��
�
��
�/
!
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
�
�	
��
�	
�
�
��

�
�
��

�
��
�
�
�
��



�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
�
�
�
*
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�!

�
�
��
�
�)
�
��
��
'
$
�
�
�


��
�
��

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
	
�
�
�
��
&

�
�
$
&
��
&
�
�

!

�
�
��
��
�
��
��
)
�
9
��
$
�%
�
��
�

�
#
&
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
�$

�
�
�
��

*
�
�'
�
$
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
�
�
�
*
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
��
�

��
�
��
�$

�
�
!
�
��
�

�
��

$
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

��
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
�?

�
�
�
�'
��
�
�
A�
?

�
�
�
�D
��
�
/�
��
�
�

�
�

�

?

�
�
�

�
A�
;
�
�
�&
�0

�
�
!
�
A�
@
��
�

�


A�
)
�$

�
�
��

(
�

9
�

�
A�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

�

?

�
�
�
�D
��
�
��
�
�
�?

�
�
�
�'
��
�
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��

�
��
�



�
�
��


�	
�
��
$
��
�

$
�
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
&
�
�
��
A�
��
�
�
��
	
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
�
�&
�$

�
�
!
�
��

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
�
�
�
*
�
�*
�
�

?
�
��
�
�

�
�
�=
!
�

�
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�

��
��

�
�
�
�	


��
�
��
��
�$
�
�
�
�
�$
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�'
#
�
�

�
�
!
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
��


��
�
�
�
	
�
�
9
�

�
�
�



�
�
��


�(
�
�&
�
�
�
��
�
�
!
��
��
�
�+
�=
!
�

�
��
�
�
�%
�

�
�
��
�
�
�
��
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
/�
�

�
�
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

Page 42



3
5

%
�
�
�
*
�
��
�
�

'
�
�

�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
$
��
�
�
��
�
$
��
�

�
�
�


�

��
�
�
��
��
�
�
�	


��
�

�
�
��
�
�

�
�


�
A�
�&

�
�
$
&
��
��


�
��
�
�

�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�

�$
�

�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
�
�
�
�/
��

)
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�	


�!
�
	
��
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�

#
&
�
�J
#
�
9
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
�#
�
9
�
��
&
�
�<
�
$
J�
�
�
�
!
�
�$
�
�(
�
�
��
!
!

�
�
�
�
��
��
?
�
��
�
�



�

#
�
�
�
A�
�&
�
�!
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
�

�
��
��
$
��
&
�
��
�
$
��
�
�
��
�
$
��
�
�
!
�
�$
�
�&
�
�
��
�
(
�	
�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�
A�
�&
��
�(
��
��
	
�
��
��
!
��


�
�
��
�
��
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
&
��
��
/�
�
�
��
�

�
�&
�
�
�
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
��

��
��
��
�#
�
(
�
��
�

�
�
&
��
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�
$
�

�
��
$
��
�
$
�(
�
�
��
�	
��
�
/�
�

�
4
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
�
�
�
*
�
�4
4
�

)
�
��
��
��
�!

�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
��
�
�



��
�
��
�
��
��
�
��
�

�



�
�
�
$
�!
�
�
!
��
��
�
��


�
�
�
��
��
�
�?



�<
�

�
A�
;
�
"
A�

�
�B
@
A�
%
9
�
��
��
�

9
�

�

#
&
�
�;
�
"
��
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
��
�
�D
�
�
�
�
�
�
�


�*
,
�=
�
��
	
�

�
(
�
�
��
�
:
�

�
�
�
�

�(
�
��
A�
(
�
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
��
��
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

A
��
��
��
�
�
�)
�
�

�
��
��
�
(
�
�
�	


��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

!

�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
B

�
�
9
��
�G
�<
�
�
�


J�
/�
'
��
��
�
�
�
�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
�
�"
��
��
�
�



��
�
��
�

B
��
�
��
$
�
��
�
�
�
A�
��

�
��
!

�
Q
�
�I
4
�
�
A�
�
�
�
�
�
�
�!

�
Q
�
�I
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
&
�

�
�!

�
Q
�
�I
*
+
�
/�
�

� %
�:
��
�
�
�

�
�
�
$
�!
�
�
!
��
�(
�

�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�

�
�&
�
��
�B
@
�!

�
>�
�
�A
�*
4
�!
�
�
!
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�
�*
�
�!
�
�
!
��
��
��
��
&
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�

�
�
/�
#
&
�
��
(
�
��
�
�

��
�
�
�
$
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�!

�
��
�
��

�
�
��
��
�
!
��
�

�
&
�;
�

9
�
&
�

�
�B
�

�
�G
��
�
�
�
�
�
�

%
�

�
��
�
��
��
��
�

�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
!
��
��
�
$
��
&
�
�$

�
�
��
�
$
�(
�
�
9
��
�
$
��
�
�

�
�
��
�
�

��

�
��
$
&
��
�
$
A�
��

�
��
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
��
�
9
��
��
/�
�

� #
&
�
��
�
�

�
�
�(
�
�
�

�
�
��
��
�
�

9
	


�
�
�

�
��
�
�B
�

�
�%
��
��
�
�
A�
�&
�
��
�
�

�
�
�(
�
�
�

�
�
�
�$
�
�
�
��
�
�&
�
�!
��
�
�
9
��
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
�
H
�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
��
	
�
&
�
�
��
�

A
�

�
��
�
�

�
�
��
6�
�
��
�
�
A�
��
!

�
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
9
��
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
(
�

9
/�
#
&
�
�(
�
�
9
�

�
�
��
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
�!
�
�
�
��
$
��
�
��
�
�

�
�
�
�


A�
(
&
�

�
��
&
�
��
�
�
�
�
$
�

�
�

�
�
�
��
�
�
�

�
(
�

�
�
��

�
�
�'

�
�
�)
�
�
�
$
�

�
=
(
�
�
�1
�


(
�

�
��

�
4
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

%
�
�
�
*
�
�4
-
�

�

�
�
�
�
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
��
$


��
�

�
�&
�
�

'
��
�
&
�
��
�
�
�
!
�
�
��
�
�
�
!
�
�$
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
��
��
��
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�

�

#
&
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�



�
�
��


��
�
	
�

A
�	
�
��
%
�
�
�
��
�
��

9
��
�
��
�
��
&
�
�!

�
�
�
�
�
��
��

�
!
!
�

��
$
��
�

�
��

�
&
�

�
1
�
�
�
�=
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
$
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
!
�
�$
�
/�
�

�
4
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

.�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�-

3

�

�
�
	
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�"
	
�
�
�
��
�
�*
�
	
��
�
�*
��
�
��
�
!
��
��
�
��
��
��
�	
�
��
	
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
!
�	
��
��
�
��
�
�
�
�7
�!
�
�
��
�

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
@
��
�
*
4
�*
-
�
�
�
�
��
(
��
&
�
�%
!
�

�
�
�%
�

�
��
$


�(
��
&
��
��
��
��
�
�

��
(
�

�
�
��
�
*
�
�=
�

�
!
��
�
�

�

'



�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
�	
�
�
�
��
�
�
�
��
�

�
�&
�
��
�
��
��
��
�
�
�
��
�
$
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
!
��
&
�
��
!
�

�
�
�

�
�

�
��
$


��

*
4
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

=
	
>�
�
��
�
�
�-

3

#

�
�
	
�%
�
�
�
�	
�
��
��
�
�
��
�
�
��

�
��
��
�
�
�
�
�
!
��
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
��
	
�
�
��
�
��
	
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
��
�
��
	
�
��
��
�
��
�
�
��
�
	
�
�1
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�
�
��
	
��
�
�
��
�
�/
!
�
�
�
��

�
�
�
�
��
�
��

�
�
��

�
�
�
�

�

�
�

�
�

�'
�
��
�
�
�

�

�
$

�
�
�
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

�
�
��
�
��
�
�
��
�

?
�
��
�

%
)
#
��
�
�
�
�

%
?
�
�1
@
��
�
*
4
��
,
�
0

�
�
��
��
�)
�
��
�
�
�%
�
&
�
�
��

�
'



�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
!
�


�
�
�
��
�
$

�
�
�
�
�
��
(
��
&
�?
�

�
�
��

�
��
�
$
�
��
�

*
4
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

%
?
�
�1
@
��
�
*
4
��
+
�
0

�
�
��
��

�
�&
�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
!
�
�
�
��
�
��
�
:
��
��
�
$
�

�
!
�

�
�
��
�
�
��
��
��
�
��
�
�1
�
��
�
��


�

�

�
�
��
�

�
&
�

�
��
��

�
�
��
�
�
/�
�



�
�
$
�
�
�
�
��
��
�

�
!
�


�
�
�
��
�
$

�
�
�
�
�
��
(
��
&
�

?
�

�
�
��

�
��
�
$
�
�/
��

*
4
�=
�
��
�
�
�
�
�
�
&
��
��
�
�
$
�

Page 43



3
6

!
(
0
�

K
E

Y
L

o
n

g
T

e
rm

T
re

n
d

s
S

h
o

rt
T

e
rm

T
re

n
d

s

#
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�&
��
��
��
&
�
�
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
$
��
�

�
/�

#
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�&
��
��
��
&
�
�
��
�
!

�
�
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
&
�

�
��
�

�
/�

#
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�&
��
��
��
&
�
�
�(
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
$
��
�

�
/�

#
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�&
��
��
��
&
�
�
�(
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
&
�

�
��
�

�
/�

#
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�&
��
��
��
&
�
�
��
�
��
�
&
�
�
$
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
�
�
$
��
�

�
/�

#
&
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�&
��
��
��
&
�
�
��
�
��
�
&
�
�
$
�
�
��
�
��
&
�
��
&
�

�
��
�

�
/�

�
�
�
$
6�
�

�
��



�
(
�
��
�
�
!
�

�
��
&
�
��
�



�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�(
��
&
��
�
��
�
�

�
$
�
��
�

�
�&
�
�!

�
�
��
�
�
�

�(
�
�

�
�

�
/�
�

%
&
�

�
��
�

�
��



�
(
�
��
�
�
!
�

�
��
&
�
��
�



�
�
��
�
�
��
�
�(
��
&
��
&
�
�!

�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��
�
�

� #

�
�
�
��



�
(
�
��
�
�
�
�
��
	
�
��
�
��
�
��
��
�
�	
�
�
�
�
�
�
��
&
��
��
�
��
&
�
��
�

�
��

�
�
�
��
��
�

�
�&
��
�!
�

�
�

�
�
�
�
�
��
�
�
��
�
��

�

��

Page 44



P
a
g
e

1
0

C
h
a
rt

8
1

P
a
g
e

1

A
c
tu

a
l
E

xp
e
n
d
it
u
re

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l
E

xp
e
n
d
it
u
re

A
c
tu

a
l
E

xp
e
n
d
ti
ru

e

A
c
tu

a
l
E

xp
e
n
d
it
u
re

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l
E

xp
e
n
d
it
u
re

R
e
v
is

e
d

B
u
d
g
e
t

0

1
0
0

2
0
0

3
0
0

4
0
0

5
0
0

6
0
0

7
0
0

8
0
0

9
0
0

1
0
0
0

1
1
0
0

1
2
0
0

1
3
0
0

1
4
0
0

1
5
0
0

1
6
0
0

1
7
0
0

1
8
0
0

1
9
0
0

2
0
0
0

2
1
0
0

2
2
0
0

2
3
0
0

A
im

O
n
e

-

H
o
u
s
in

g

A
im

O
n
e

-

H
o
u
s
in

g

A
im

T
w

o
-

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic

A
im

T
w

o
-

E
c
o
n
o
m

ic

A
im

T
h
re

e
-

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

A
im

T
h
re

e
-

E
n
v
ir
o
n
m

e
n
t

A
im

F
o
u
r

-

A
c
ti
v
e

A
im

F
o
u
r

-

A
c
ti
v
e

A
im

F
iv

e
-

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm

A
im

F
iv

e
-

T
ra

n
s
fo

rm

E
x
te

rn
a
lly

F
u
n
d
e
d

R
y
e
d
a
le

F
u
n
d
e
d

Agenda Item 6

Page 45



Page 46

This page is intentionally left blank



A
D

D
IT

IO
N

A
L

R
E

V
E

N
U

E
E

X
P

E
N

D
IT

U
R

E
O

N
C

O
U

N
C

IL
P

R
IO

R
IT

IE
S

:

H
o

u
s
in

g
N

e
e
d

s
-

A
d
d
it
io

n
a
l
fu

n
d
in

g
to

w
a
rd

s
a

R
u
ra

l
H

o
u
s
in

g
E

n
a
b
le

r.

E
c
o

n
o

m
ic

S
u

c
c
e
s
s

-
N

e
w

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

G
ra

n
t

S
c
h
e
m

e
a
n
d

B
u
s
in

e
s
s

L
ia

is
o
n
.

Q
u

a
li

ty
E

n
v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

t
-

E
x
tr

a
fu

n
d
in

g
to

d
e
liv

e
r

th
e

L
o
c
a
l
D

e
v
e
lo

p
m

e
n
t

F
ra

m
e
w

o
rk

e
a
rl
y
.

C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
L

A
N

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
F

IN
A

N
C

E
R

E
P

O
R

T

P
E

R
I
O

D
 1

 A
P

R
I
L

 T
O

 3
1

 O
C

T
O

B
E

R
 2

0
0

9

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
n
n
u
a
l
B

u
d
g
e
t

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

0

5
0

1
0
0

1
5
0

2
0
0

A
im

O
n
e

-
H

o
u
s
in

g
A

im
T

w
o

-
E

c
o
n
o
m

ic
A

im
T

h
re

e
-

E
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t

A
c
tu

a
l
E

x
p
e
n
d
it
u
re

AD
DI

TI
ON

AL
RE

VE
NU

E
EX

PE
ND

IT
UR

E
ON

CO
UN

CI
L

PR
IO

RI
TI

ES
20

09
/10

C
O

U
N

C
IL

P
R

IO
R

IT
IE

S
:

A
im

O
n

e
-

T
o

m
e
e
t

h
o
u
s
in

g
n
e
e
d
s

in
th

e
R

y
e
d
a
le

A
re

a
.

A
im

T
w

o
-

T
o

c
re

a
te

th
e

c
o
n
d
it
io

n
s

fo
r

e
c
o
n
o
m

ic
s
u
c
c
e
s
s
.

A
im

T
h

re
e

-
T

o
h
a
v
e

a
h
ig

h
q
u
a
lit

y
,

c
le

a
n

a
n
d

s
u
s
ta

in
a
b
le

e
n
v
ir

o
n
m

e
n
t.

£
0
0

0
's

T
O

T
A

L
B

U
D

G
E

T
F

O
R

Y
E

A
R

=
£

2
9

7
,0

0
0

;
T

O
T

A
L

A
C

T
U

A
L

T
O

3
1

O
C

T
O

B
E

R
2

0
0

9
=

£
1

5
9

,0
0

0

Agenda Item 6

Page 47



Page 48

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY SERVICES 26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART A:   MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF ECONOMY & HOUSING 
    JULIAN RUDD 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  HOUSING PERFORMANCE REPORT 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To inform Members of progress made against the Council’s agreed Housing Strategy 

objectives and to invite comments from the Committee. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION(S) 
 
2.1 It is recommended that Members endorse the performance report and agree any 

amendments to policy or further action required to improve performance. 
 
REPORT 
 
Generated from Covalent on 11 November 2009 
 

Enable 
Affordable 
Housing 

Exception Sites 

• Pickering, Swainsea Lane site - planning application submitted, 
to be considered at December 09 Planning Committee.  

• Habton - no suitable site available, replacement scheme to be 
identified.  

• Pickering/Malton/Norton - proceeding with 10 homes from the 
small sites to be developed by March 2011. The other potential 
sites were not viable.  

• Rosedale, Hartoft - RHE carrying out a housing needs survey.  
• Aislaby, Middleton, Wrelton - housing needs survey to be carried 

out shortly.  
• Sherburn, Slingsby - discussions with Parish Council taking 

place.  

Agenda Item 7

Page 49



COMMUNITY SERVICES 26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

Planning Gain 

Poor market conditions continue to have a dramatic impact on 
house building activities and only 5 affordable units have been 
completed through the S106 route thus far in 09/10. However 
delivery of other forms of affordable housing mean that 
performance is expected to exceed the annual target of 75 
affordable units during 2009/10.  

Registered 
Social 
Landlord/Other 
Funded 

• Malton - scheme for 19 rented homes withdrawn as offers 
insufficient value. Replacement scheme to be identified.  

• Nawton - RSL (Yorkshire Housing) conducting interviews in 
tendering process for Phase 1 (10 homes). Start on site date Jan 
2010.  

• Ampleforth - RSL (YH) still in negotiation with Ashley House to 
agree on conditional contract. S106 questionnaire sent to RSL. 
Problem with HCA now wanting 3 sale properties out of 8 in 
order to obtain funding despite issues with affordability and 
housing need showing preference for rented.  

NI 155 LAA 
Number of 
affordable homes 
delivered (gross) 

Q2 2009/10 55  

 

Prevent 
Homelessness 

Homelessness 
applications & 
acceptances 

• A total of 288 initial housing enquiries from 1 April 2009 to 
11 November 2009.   

• A 3.6% decrease in the number of homeless applications in 
the period 1 April 2009 to 11 November 2009 compared to 
the same period in the previous year.   

• A 16% reduction in the number of homeless acceptances in 
the period 1 April 2009 to 11 November 2009 compared to 
the same period in the previous year.  

• A total of 108 homelessness preventions in the period 1 
April 2009 to 11 November 2009.  

Provision of a 
Mortgage rescue 
scheme in 
partnership 

§ Three Mortgage Rescue Scheme cases should be 
completed by December 2009.  

Temporary 
Accommodation 
& Bridge House 

• Temporary accommodation occupancy level as at 11 
November 2009 of 11 households compared with 15 
households on the 11 November 2008.   

• A total of 12 homeless households had positive move ons 
into independent accommodation for the period 1 April 2009 
to the 11 November 2009.  

Homelessness - 
Projects & 
Initiatives 

• A total of four positive move ons from the Ryedale Lettings 
Service in the first 12 months of the scheme. 

• A total of 7 clients are currently on the Ryedale lettings 
Scheme, with an additional two clients receiving only 
housing support through the scheme. 

• A total of 17 Bond Guarantee Schemes/Bond Payments and 
Rent in Advance delivered in order to prevent 
homelessness. 

• Employed an additional Housing Options Officer. 
• Hosted a Private Landlords fair in Pickering. 

Page 50



COMMUNITY SERVICES 26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

Homelessness - 
Projects & 
Initiatives (cont.) 

 
• Housing Options currently taking part in pastoral lessons at 

Norton Sixth Form College, 2 completed so far, involving 
twenty five 16/17 year olds.  

• Attended the National Private Sector Conference.  

Homelessness 
Strategy Action 
Plan 

Discussions to be held with RSL re development of Action Plan 
following review and Member endorsement of Homelessness 
Strategy Action Plan by CS Committee on 23/07/09.  

   

HS 1 

Homeless applications on 
which RDC makes decision 
and issues notification to 
the applicant within 33 
working days (was LPI 70) 

Target 100% within 33 days 
As at 11 November 
2009 – 100% 

HS 2 

Length of stay in temporary 
accommodation (B&B, 
weeks) (Was LPI 74 & BV 
183a) Snapshot 

Q2 
2009/10 

2.43 weeks 

As at 11 November 
2009 - 11 homeless 
households in 
temporary 
accommodation  

HS 3 

Number of Bond 
Guarantee/Rent in 
Advance schemes 
undertaken 

Target for 2009/10 - 30 
As at 11 November 
2009 - 17 

HS 4 
Number of Households 
assisted through the 
Ryedale Lettings Scheme 

Target for 2009/10 - 12 
As at 11 November 
2009 - 7 

HS 5 
Number of Homeless 
Applications 

Target for 2009/10 - Not to 
exceed 54 

As at 11 November 
2009 - 27 

HS LAA 8 

Prevention of 
Homelessness through 
advice and proactive 
intervention 

Target for 2009/10 - 163 
As at 30 September 
2009 - 108 

    

Page 51



 

COMMUNITY SERVICES 26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

Improve Private 
Housing Stock 

Home Repair Grants/Loans 

• Approved a total of 8 Home Repair Grants 
to a value of £23,557 and completed 8 
grants totalling £25,653 from 1 April to 9 
November 2009.  

• Approved a total of 3 Home Repair Loans 
to a value of £12,282.  

Decent Homes  

HMO Grants 

Approved 1 House in Multiple Occupation 
Grant to a value of £10,170 in the period 1 
April to 9 November 2009. Total budget for 
2009/10 is £30k.  

Empty Property Grants 

Approved a total of 2 Empty Property Grants to 
a value of £30,000 and completed 1 EPG 
totalling £15,000 from 1 April to 9 November 
2009. The Council has nomination agreements 
in place with the owners of the properties with 
regard to any lettings for a 5 year period on 
completion of grant works.  

Empty Homes Strategy 
Local empty homes strategy for Ryedale being 
implemented whilst NY wide strategy 
developed.  

 

Enable 
Independent 
Living 

Disabled Facilities Grants 
Approved a total of 7 DFGs to a value of 
£78,771 and completed 24 grants totalling 
£208,865 from 1 April to 9 November 2009.  

Lifeline Service 
Secured a total of 90 new connections to the 
Ryecare Lifeline Service for the period 1 April 
to 10 November 2009.  

 

Provide 
Sustainable 
Communities 

Energy Efficiency Grants 

Approved a total of 51 Energy Efficiency 
Grants to a value of £39,420 and completed 35 
grants totalling £26,216 in the period 1 April to 
9 November 2009.  

 
 
 
Julian Rudd 
Head of Economy & Housing 
 
 
Author:  Richard Etherington, Housing Services Manager 
Telephone No: 01653 600666  ext: 383 
E-Mail Address: richard.etherington@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 

Page 52



COMMUNITY SERVICES   26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART A:   MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009  
 
REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF ECONOMY & HOUSING 
    JULIAN RUDD 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  ‘BREATHING SPACE’ MORTGAGE LOAN SCHEME 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 For Members to approve the Council’s participation in a Regional Mortgage 

Assistance Loan Scheme called ‘Breathing Space’. The Breathing Space Loan is an 
interest-free secured loan to assist Yorkshire and Humber homeowners in difficulty 
with their mortgage or secured loan repayments, and provides an alternative means 
of assistance to compliment the national and Ryedale Mortgage Rescue Schemes.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

(i) Members approve the Councils participation in the scheme; and 
  

(ii) Allow Wakefield Metropolitan District Council to discharge these functions for 
Ryedale District Council under the provisions of the Local Government Act 
2000 and Local Authorities (Arrangement for the Discharge of Functions) 
(England) Regulations 2000 in accordance with their well being powers under 
Section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000. 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The Regional Housing Board (RHB) has allocated £2 million for a regional mortgage 

assistance scheme. After considering other options the RHB Chair agreed on 28 May 
2009 that using the Wakefield model (the Mortgage Assistance Loan Scheme) was 
the most appropriate and efficient course of action, and that the scheme could be 
rolled out throughout the Yorkshire and Humber region under the title ‘Breathing 
Space’. Wakefield Council will be the Accountable Body for the scheme. 

 

Agenda Item 8

Page 53



COMMUNITY SERVICES   26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 
 

3.2 The Breathing Space scheme will work in much the same way as the existing 
regional home improvement loans scheme administered by Sheffield Council on 
behalf of Yorkshire and Humberside local authorities.  Participating local authorities, 
such as Ryedale District Council, will undertake the initial stages of a loan 
application. Wakefield Council will process and pay the loan and place a legal charge 
on the property. The Council will then be responsible for subsequent reviews, support 
for the individual homeowners, and for recovery of the loan. If, in exceptional cases, 
deferral or waiving of the loan repayment is required, a regional panel will consider 
this. 

 
3.3 To enable Wakefield Council to act as the Accountable Body for the scheme, this 

Council is required to delegate certain of their functions to Wakefield Council. Similar 
arrangements are already in place for the Regional Home Loans Service. 

 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 There are no significant risks for the Council in participating in this scheme. This 

scheme does not involve District Council funding and is to be operated by Wakefield 
Council in line with well-defined criteria and procedures. 

 
REPORT 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 Wakefield Council’s Mortgage Assistance Loan Scheme has been providing 

assistance to homeowners in financial difficulties since April 2009, with funding from 
the Regional Housing Board. The scheme provides an interest free, secured loan to 
help meet mortgage and/or secured loan repayments and arrears. It is suitable for 
cases where the difficulty in meeting the mortgage is likely to be short term or the 
property is for sale. The scheme helped 25 households in its first year of operation. 

 
5.2 Members are aware that the Government launched a national Mortgage Rescue 

Scheme in January 2009, and that this Council subsequently agreed a £200k 
package of measures to widen the eligibility criteria for Ryedale residents and so 
allow greater access to assistance under the Government scheme. 

 
5.3 The Wakefield scheme provides an alternative means of assistance to the national 

Mortgage Rescue Scheme and the local Ryedale scheme agreed by this Committee 
on 23 July 2009. Under the Government and Ryedale schemes the Council takes the 
initial applications and refers suitable cases to a Registered Social Landlord. 
Applicants have to be assessed as in priority need (primarily families with children). 
Most applicants can only be considered for mortgage to rent, whereby a RSL buys 
the property and rents it back to the household at an intermediate rent. However, 
mortgage to rent is a longer-term solution and means that people become tenants. 
The Wakefield Mortgage Assistance Loan model provides an alternative to the 
national and Ryedale schemes in that it gives people a chance to remain in 
ownership of their home, and is not confined to priority need cases. 

 
6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
 
6.1 The scheme will contribute towards the delivery of the Council’s Homeless Strategy 

Action Plan in that it will help prevent homelessness. The scheme will provide an 
additional means of helping local homeowners and will complement the existing 

Page 54



COMMUNITY SERVICES   26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 
 

national and Ryedale Mortgage Rescue Schemes. The range of different schemes 
then available to help homeowners will mean that support is available that meets the 
particular needs of most of those requesting assistance. 

 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 There has been no consultation on the contents of this report. 
 
8.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
8.1 The Breathing Space scheme uses the Wakefield Mortgage Assistance Loan 

Scheme as a model to prevent homelessness and to support homeownership across 
Yorkshire and Humber. The scheme will provide loans to owner-occupiers / 
applicants in difficulty with their mortgage payments, and will provide support and 
access to financial, housing and debt advice. 

 
8.2 The Breathing Space Loan (the Loan) is an interest free, 3-year fixed-term loan that 

is secured against the property to help applicants to avoid repossession of their 
home. Applicants will be required to take advice on their financial situation and the 
Breathing Space Loan will not be the best option for everyone. 

 
8.3 At the end of the three-year period the Loan will be repayable in full. There are no 

instalment repayments to make during the three-year period. At the end of the loan 
period the Applicant may need to remortgage or sell their property to repay the loan. 

 
8.4 The Loan will be appropriate where there is a reasonable expectation that the 

applicant will be able to meet their mortgage payments after the period of assistance 
provided by the Loan or where time is needed to allow for the sale of the property 
and a planned move to alternative accommodation. 

 
8.5 As part of the Breathing Space scheme Ryedale District Council will provide support 

including referral for debt counselling, to maximise the possibility that the applicant 
will be able to retain the property when the loan assistance ends. Where it seems 
unlikely that an applicant will be unable to afford their mortgage repayments in the 
long term, they will be offered support from the Council’s homelessness service to 
achieve a planned move to affordable accommodation. 

 
8.6 The maximum amount of the loan available is £15,000. The minimum amount is 

£2000. In calculating the loan assistance that can be offered, Wakefield Council will 
take into account the amount of arrears outstanding on the prior mortgage and any 
secured loans at the date of the loan application, and a maximum of 12 months future 
monthly instalments on the mortgage and any secured loans. Alternatively the Loan 
may be based on the redemption figure of the mortgage or secured loan, if this is 
below the maximum loan amount. 

 
8.7 The Loan can provide assistance in respect of a first mortgage, or second or 

subsequent mortgage or secured loan. Where there are arrears on more than one 
mortgage the Loan can be used towards more than one mortgage, but the total 
cannot exceed the maximum loan limit. 

 
8.8 Further details of the Breathing Space scheme, including eligibility criteria and 

conditions, are set out in Annex A.  
 

Page 55



COMMUNITY SERVICES   26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 
 

9.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The following implications have been identified: 
 

a) Financial 
The Regional Housing Board has provided the funding for the loan fund for the 
region and therefore there will be no capital funding implications. The Loan 
Support Grants will be met from the Breathing Space scheme. 
 

b) Legal 
The Local Authority is participating in a regional scheme called Breathing Space. 
The scheme facilitates the provision of loans in accordance with powers given 
under S2 Local Government Act 2000, in respect of mortgage repayments for 
people within the Council district who, due to a change in their circumstances, 
are in arrears or are having difficulty with their mortgage repayments. Wakefield 
Metropolitan District Council (Wakefield Council) administers the Breathing 
Space scheme on behalf of local authorities in Yorkshire and Humberside. The 
Panel will consider cases of financial difficulty sympathetically and positively. 
However any recovery action on failure to repay the loan will be the responsibility 
of the Council. Court action to enforce repayment (which can result in 
repossession of the property) may be taken by the Council if the Loan is not 
repaid to Wakefield Council at the end of the 3-year loan period. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
Julian Rudd 
Head of Economy & Housing 
 
Author:  Richard Etherington, Housing Services Manager 
Telephone No: 01653 600666 ext: 383 
E-Mail Address: richard.etherington@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers: 
None 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 56



COMMUNITY SERVICES   26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 
 

Annex A 
Eligibility Criteria 
 
The Applicant must satisfy the following criteria to be considered for the Loan: 

 
§ The Applicant must have an owner’s interest in the property on which the mortgage is 

secured. 
 
§ The Applicant must be resident at the property and this must be their only home. 

Where there are joint owners, it is sufficient in certain circumstances to be approved 
by Wakefield Council that only one of them fulfils this condition. 

 
§ The Applicant has sufficient equity in the property. The maximum value for all 

secured borrowing, including the Breathing Space Loan must not exceed 90% of the 
property value. Where the Applicant is within the repayment period of the Right to 
Buy discount, this will be taken into account as secured borrowing. 

 
§ The Applicant is in difficulty with their mortgage payments. The Applicant either has 

incurred mortgage arrears, or is unable to meet their ongoing mortgage instalments, 
and so is about to incur arrears. 

 
§ The cause of difficulties must be due to a change of circumstances e.g. 

unemployment, sickness, drop in income, or any other circumstance considered 
reasonable by the Panel in its sole discretion. 

 
§ The Applicant has received advice on their financial situation. Advice can be obtained 

from an advice agency, e.g. Citizens Advice Bureau, who can discuss all options. 
 
§ The Applicant does not have the financial resources to pay their mortgage 

instalments and/or arrears. A financial assessment will be undertaken to determine 
this. 

 
§ There must be an expectation that the Applicant will be able to meet their mortgage 

and any secured loan repayments after the period of assistance provided by the 
Loan, or will sell the property. This will be assessed by the loan officer on the facts of 
the case, taking into account potential increases in income or reductions in 
expenditure. Wakefield Council may carry out a credit reference search. Wakefield 
Council will take into account the whole of the Applicant’s financial situation in 
deciding whether a Loan is appropriate. 

 
Conditions 
 
§ The Applicant will be eligible for one Loan only. 
 
§ The Applicant will be required to obtain independent financial advice before they 

enter into the Loan with Wakefield Council. 
 
§ The Applicant must agree to receive debt counselling. 
 
§ The Applicant must agree to regular reviews to monitor their financial situation. 
 
§ The loan will be secured on the property by registering a Legal Charge at the District 

Land Registry. 

Page 57



COMMUNITY SERVICES   26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 
 

§ All owners of the property must be party to the application for it to be considered. 
 

§ Adequate building insurance for the property must be maintained during the loan 
period and a copy provided to Wakefield Council if required. 

 
§ The property must be kept in good repair throughout the loan period. 

 
§ The Applicant (or, in exceptional cases of a joint application, one of the applicants) 

will occupy the property as his or her only residence throughout the loan period. The 
property must not be left empty for over 6 months without an appropriate reason. 

 
§ The loan must be repaid in full at the end of the three-year term or on first disposal of 

the property. Where the property is in joint ownership and is subsequently transferred 
to one of those owners singularly then Wakefield Council should be informed. The 
Panel in its sole discretion will decide whether this disposal will be an exempt 
disposal. 

 
§ If there is a breach of the above four conditions the owner/s shall on demand from 

Wakefield Council repay the full loan or lesser amount decided by the Panel in its 
absolute discretion as being reasonable in the circumstances. 

 
§ Where the home is jointly owned all the owners will be jointly and severally liable to 

pay the loan in full. 
 

§ Wakefield Council shall be entitled to demand immediate payment of the loan 
together with all other sums then owing but unpaid, upon the happening of any of the 
following events: 

q If in the event of the Applicant’s death the property has not been sold or loan 
repaid within a period of 18 months by the executors of the applicant’s estate: 
OR 

q If someone else moves into the property with the applicant, without the 
consent of the Wakefield Council: OR 

q If the Applicant lets out the property to another party without the prior 
approval of the Wakefield Council: OR 

q The applicant ceases to live in the property as their principal residence or the 
property changes type from an owner occupied residential property: OR 

q If any information provided by the Applicant for the purposes of the loan 
proves to be incomplete or inaccurate: OR 

q The Applicant takes out an additional charge secured against the property, 
other than any mortgage or loan taken without the full knowledge and 
agreement of the Wakefield Council at the time the property is purchased: OR 

q The Applicant takes out a further advance of monies from a mortgage 
provider who either already has a charge registered on the property or 
subsequently takes a charge over the property without obtaining Wakefield 
Council’s written consent. 

General Terms 
 

§ In the event that the loan does not proceed to completion, the Council and Wakefield 
Council will not be liable in law or otherwise for any claims, costs or loss. 

 
§ All assistance in this policy is subject to available financial resources and the final 

decision to approve or refuse an application for assistance is at the sole discretion of 

Page 58



COMMUNITY SERVICES   26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 
 

Wakefield Council.  In making an application for any assistance under this policy, 
applicants will be required to sign and accept the conditions. Applicants should seek 
independent legal and/or financial advice. 

 
Applications 

 
§ Where there are joint owners of a property, only one application can be made. 

 
§ Loan applications will normally be considered in order of date of receipt of 

application. If demand exceeds available funds the loans officer will develop a 
process to prioritise cases with reference to the priority need criteria at paragraph 
10.2 of the Homelessness Code of Guidance for Local Authorities (Department for 
Communities and Local Government, 2006). 

 
§ Enquiries regarding applications for assistance can be made at: Housing Services, 

Ryedale District Council, Old Malton Road, Malton YO17 7HH, Tel: 01653 600666, 
Email: housing@ryedale.gov.uk 

 
Exceptional Cases 

 
§ Where an application for assistance is made outside the approved policy, this will be 

considered by a panel of representatives from the councils participating in the 
Breathing Space scheme, who will determine whether it can be approved or refused 
on a case-by-case basis. 

 
Loan Support 

 
§ The initial set up costs of the Loan will be met from the Breathing Space funds and 

will not be repayable by the Applicant. Loan support will be available in respect of the 
following, if charged: 

§ Property valuation fee; 
§ Legal Fees; 
§ Administration costs; 
§ Independent Financial Advice up to £300. 

 
Payment of the Loan 

 
§ The Loan will be paid directly to the mortgagee (mortgage lender) or client’s solicitor 

where appropriate on completion of the legal charge. 
 

§ The Loan will not be paid if the property is repossessed or if all the applicants give up 
residence in the property before payment of the loan has been issued to the 
mortgagee (mortgage lender). 

 
Repayment 

 
§ The Loan will be an interest free, fixed term loan for 3 years. Repayment will be 

deferred for up to 3 years. The loan is to be repaid in full by the end of the 3 year 
term. 

 
§ Any sum outstanding after the end of the 3 years fixed term will accrue interest, 

which will be charged at 2% above the Bank of England base rate which is current on 
the date that the 3 year fixed period expires. 

Page 59



COMMUNITY SERVICES   26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 
 

§ The Panel will consider cases of financial difficulty sympathetically and positively. 
However any recovery action on failure to repay the loan will be the responsibility of 
the Council. 

 
§ Court action to enforce repayment (which can result in repossession of the property) 

may be taken by the Council if the Loan is not repaid to Wakefield Council at the end 
of the 3-year loan period. 

Page 60



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART A:   MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  
 
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT 
    PHIL LONG 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: EXTERNAL REVIEW OF PICKERING AND HELMSLEY 

MARKETS 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  PICKERING AND HELMSLEY  
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Members of the National Association of British Market Authorities 

(NABMA) report on Pickering and Helmsley Market and seek endorsement of actions 
taken in response to it. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

(i) The actions taken in response to the report outlined in 8.3 are endorsed 
 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 The Council works in partnership with the local community and should strive to 

ensure that the Markets that are a major attraction for the towns continue to thrive. 
 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 No significant risks have been identified. 
 
4.2 Subsequent to the NABMA report an Internal Audit has been undertaken of of 

Ryedale District Council’s Markets, which concluded that the controls and systems in 
place were good.  There were no issues of sufficient concern as to warrant specific 
comment other than consideration should be given to the NABMA report. 

 

Agenda Item 9

Page 61



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 

 

REPORT 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 Both Pickering and Helmsley Market are managed by Ryedale District Council.  

Pickering Market operates on a Monday and stallholders erect their own stalls along 
the Market Place.  The Market Place is now closed to traffic on market days during 
the period of the market, other than for access and emergency vehicles.  Helmsley 
Market is held on a Friday and used to have the stalls erected by the Council, but 
following closure of the Helmsley depot and the increasing cost of this function 
traders were required to provide and erect their own stalls from April 2008.  As a 
good will gesture and to assist in the transition any stallholder requiring a stall was 
sold one at a subsidised cost.  The transition worked well without the Council loosing 
a single trader.  

 
5.2 Following representations regarding local markets from the Five Town Councils 

meeting, the Council joined the National Association of British Market Authorities 
(NABMA).  Membership of NABMA entitled the Council to a half-day health check of 
its markets.  The visit was delayed until the question of the future of Malton Market 
was decided. 

 
6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
 
6.1 Council Plan 2009-2013 

Aim 2 - To create the conditions for economic success in Ryedale. 
Strategic Objective 3: Place of opportunity- to have the economic structure and 
supporting infrastructure in place. 

 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 Initial consultation on the day of the visit was undertaken with the Clerk to Pickering 

Town Council.  A copy of NABMA’s report was sent to all District Councillors in 
Pickering and Helmsley wards, with the exception of Councillor Woodward, who was 
inadvertently missed from the original circulation list, but has subsequently been sent 
a copy as has newly elected Councillor Cowan.  Copies were also sent to Pickering 
and Helmsley Town Councillors and to number of relevant officers in the Council. 

 
7.2 Only one response has been received to the report, from Pickering Town Council. 

Their response is available in Annex C 
 
8.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
8.1 Prior to the visit by NABMA a questionnaire was completed which forms part of the 

final report.  The visit by NABMA was to Pickering Market, but the conclusions and 
recommendations in the report also have relevance to Helmsley Market.  The Market 
visit took place on Monday 8 June 2009 and involved Krys Zasada from NABMA, 
Health and Environment Manager and Principal Environmental Health Officer.  An 
initial meeting was held with the Town Clerk to Pickering Town Council on issues 
relating to the Market.  The Market was then visited and Mr Zasada had the 
opportunity to speak to Councillor Cowling, Chairman of Community Services 
Committee. 

 
8.2 The report concludes that the Markets have been run in a similar manner for many 

Page 62



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 

 

years, hopefully to the general satisfaction of the traders.  When Helmsley and 
Pickering Markets were put out to tender in 2004, the traders wanted the Council to 
continue to retain control. 

 
8.3 A copy of the report is available in Annex B.  It has specific conclusions and 

recommendations comments on which are detailed below: 

• Market Rights – Market Rights are rights granted to the market authority by a 
charter and give the holder rights to hold a market and also potentially restrict other 
markets within the vicinity.  It is understood that there are moves to do away with 
these rights particularly if they are perceived to infringe competition laws detailed in 
the EU Services Directive.  Since receiving the NABMA report the Council’s Legal 
Services have been asked to investigate the implications of the Market Rights for 
both Markets and the implication of the EU Services Directive on those Rights. 

• Encroachment – Ensure the traders do not encroach onto the pavement.  Although 
the Market Place is closed during the trading of Pickering Market, access has to be 
retained to the road for emergency vehicles and traders vehicles loading and 
unloading.  By asking stallholders to move back from the footpath edge this presents 
a trip hazard, therefore the recommendation that traders do not encroach onto the 
pavement is accepted.  Although traders have been advised of the requirement this 
will be reinforced particularly at “pinch – points at the Market and during the summer 
months when congestion can be at it’s highest. 

• Retail Offer- NABMA recommends a research project be undertaken to identify the 
demographic profile of the customer base.  This would be a costly exercise and not 
necessarily lead to a change of retail offer on the Market.  At present the retail offer is 
controlled by ensuring that a range of goods are offered on the Markets and that 
duplication is reduced as much as possible within the terms of fair trading.  Which 
stalls are successful will depend on market forces and as such is demand driven, 
whether it be by local residents or tourists.  There is no doubt a seasonality affect as 
with any outdoor market but the Market must provide for both Tourist and local 
residents alike.  Despite the present down turn in the general economy, Pickering 
Market is full and has been for a number of years as is Helmsley Market during the 
summer and on the lead up to Christmas. 

• Marketing – Install signage for the Market around the town.  Both Markets are 
advertised on the free tourist maps for Pickering and Helmsley and thousands are 
given away free at the Tourist Information Centres each year.  It is acknowledged 
that the information available on the Council’s website regarding markets required 
updating.  Improved information is now available on the website and incorporates 
information on Kirkbymoorside and Malton Market.  Street Scene have been liaising 
with Pickering Town Council over the signage for the Car parks for visitors to the 
town and Economy and Community Services are liaising with the Town Council on 
the provision of information signs around the town which will incorporate information 
on the Market. 

 
9.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 

If the recommendations of this report are followed then the Council may reasonable 
expect both Helmsley and Pickering Markets to continue to thrive attracting 
customers from both Ryedale and further afield. 

 
a) Financial: In their report NABMA recommends a research project be undertaken 

to identify the demographic profile of the customer base.  This would be a costly 
exercise and not necessarily lead to a change of retail offer on the Market and 
has not been recommended by Officers. A small budget is available for the 

Page 63



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 

 

provision of information signs around the town to promote the market. 
 
b) Legal: Legal Services have been asked to investigate the implications of the 

Market Rights for both Markets and the implication of the EU Services Directive 
on those Rights 

 
c) Others: No other significant implications are apparent 

 
 

 
Phil Long 
Head of Environment 
 
Author:  Steven Richmond, Health and Environment Manager 
Telephone No: 01653 600666  ext:247 
E-Mail Address: steve.richmond@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers: 
None 
 
Background Papers are available for inspection at: 
N/A 

Page 64



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  26 NOVEMBER 2009 

ANNEX A 

EXTERNAL REVIEW OF PICKERING AND HELMSLEY MARKETS - RISK MATRIX 
 

 
Issue/Risk 

 
Consequences if allowed 

to happen 

 
Likeli-
hood 

 

 
Impact 

 
Mitigation 

 
Mitigated 
Likelihood 

Mitigated 
Impact 

Risk that the Markets will 
deteriorate and loose traders and 
attract less business. 

Downward spiral or 
reduced traders, less trade 
and less visitors. Impact as 
a tourist draw and affect on 
town businesses 

2 D Markets continue to be 
healthy. Improved information 
on the website, continue 
marketing, improve signage. 
Be aware of market offer. 
Investigate legal implications 
of Market Rights 

2 B 

 

 

 

Score Likelihood Score Impact 

1 Very Low A Low 

2 Not Likely B Minor 

3 Likely C Medium 

4 Very Likely D Major 

5 Almost Certain E Disaster 

 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 9

P
a
g
e
 6

5



P
a

g
e
 6

6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



© nabma consultancy services 2008 1

 
 

nabma consultancy services 
 
Health-check  
 
Market/portfolio: Ryedale District Council 
 
Client’s name: S. Richmond 
 
Client’s job title: Health and Environment Manager 
 
Name of person conducting review: S Richmond/P Crossley 
 
Date of review: 5 November 2008 
 
 

1. Client overview of local issues/priorities/problems: 

 
 
 
 

1. Pickering Market – small 31 pitch market run directly by Council – the 
location restricts the number of stalls.  Traffic in the Market Place has been 
prohibited on market days (Monday) this year – certain exceptions apply but 
this closure is not bound to continue indefinitely.  If traffic is allowed back 
then the closeness of cars to stalls and congestion in the area is a problem.  
Endeavouring to ensure a variation in wares among traders is an issue that 
occurs from time to time. 

 
Helmsley Market – 50 pitch market operates on a Friday.  Livery is not 
uniform (like Pickering) some would like to see more consistency.  Helmsley 
and Pickering both have good attendance although more gaps at Helmsley 
during the winter period.  The number of traders wishing to attend as 
casuals at both markets is low. 
 
Malton Market – Up to 100 pitches available – Saturday – on contract to a 
new private operator. Contract is only for one year until April 2009 due to the 
Council renegotiating the lease from the estate which is due to expire at the 
same time. Lease still not agreed. The Committee making decision on how 
to progress on 27/11/08. Substantial gaps most Saturdays at the moment. 
Continental Market held on 29-31 August in conjunction with existing 
market. Further Continental Market planned in mid December 2008. 
Farmers market run by local auctioneer once a month approximately 100m 
from location of Malton Market. 

Agenda Item 9

Page 67



© nabma consultancy services 2008 2

 
  Yes No Evidence 

2 Does the market/portfolio have Member support? 
 

Yes  Members support the Markets 

3 Does the market/portfolio have an annual business plan? 
 

 No No specific business plan. New traders s
as some leave, continuous  
adjustments made. Fees usually  
increase in line with all other Council 
 fees and charges  

4 Does the market/portfolio make an annual profit? 
 

Yes   

5 Does the market/portfolio have a modernisation strategy? 
e.g. retail offer, management, physical condition, location. 

 No No written strategy, but listen to traders 
comments and if practical react. In 
 recent times the rent collection  
system, traffic management changes  
and alterations to the procedures for 
 the erection/dismantling of stalls  
have been made. 

6 Does the market/portfolio have an investment plan (capital 
or revenue)? 

 No No, but money is made available 
In budget for repair/updating 
equipment etc.. 

7 Does the market/portfolio have a marketing/promotional plan? 
 

Yes  Pickering and Helmsley market are  
marketed through the Tourist  
Information Centres. Markets 
 publicised on free town maps 

8 Does the market/portfolio have written procedures? 
e.g. lettings, regulations, disciplinary procedures,  
risk assessments)  

Yes  Basic regulations provided but  
ongoing contact is through either  
personal agreement/letters to all  
traders 

P
a

g
e
 6

8



© nabma consultancy services 2008 3

9 Does the market/portfolio monitor legal compliance? 
e.g. H&S, counterfeit goods, employment of young people,  
Market Rights. 

Yes  Yes, with respect to Market Rights and H
and Safety. Trading standards make  
visits to the markets. 

10 Is the market clear what action must be taken if evidence 
of non-compliance is found? 

Yes  Traders expect a direct communication
Be that a personal visit, letter or both. 

11 Does the market/portfolio collect demographic data? 
 

 No Except that marketing is aimed  
primarily at the visitor/tourist trade 

12 Does the market/portfolio engage its staff, traders  
and shoppers in consultation? 

Yes  Staff and traders are engaged 
 routinely –less so shoppers. Public 
 meeting on the future of markets held 
 in July 2008 – Copy attached 

13 Does the market/portfolio act on feedback? 
 

Yes  If practical 

P
a
g
e
 6

9



© nabma consultancy services 2008 4

 
14. What are the stall occupancy rates for each market over each of the past 
3 years? 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
15. How many traders/businesses has the market/portfolio supported for 
each of the past 3 years? 
 
 
  

 
 

 
16. How much money has been spent promoting the market/portfolio for 
each of the past 3 years? 
 
 
  

 
 
17. What has been the market/portfolio’s bottom-line financial performance 
for each of the past three years (profit/lbreak-even/loss)? 
 
 
  

 
 
18. Where would you like the market/portfolio to be in 5 years’ time? 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

Stall occupancy approximates to 80% at Helmsley and higher at 
Pickering. Reasonably consistent over the last 3 years. 

The markets to be still to taking place, the markets continue 
to attract locals and visitors alike, to be enjoyable places to 
visit, to maintain favour with our long established traders and 
to provide them with a well managed market and a market 
they want to trade out of. 
 

42 permanent traders(some at both Pickering and Helmsley markets). 
Up to 30 different casual traders. 

£1,998 over the last three years. 

The last 3 years have provided a profit at all 3 markets. 

Page 70



© nabma consultancy services 2008 5

Conclusions: 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 

  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

In conclusion all 3 markets have been run in a similar manner over many years 
hopefully to the general satisfaction of the traders. Indeed when Helmsley and 
Pickering were put out to contract in 2004, the traders wanted the Council to retain 
control – which it did. 
 
NABMA conclusions  
 
Rydale Council no longer has an interest in Malton market. Of the remaining two 
markets, Council officers wanted the half-day visit to focus on Pickering market. 
The market visit took place on Monday 8 June 2009, and following discussion with 
Steve Richmond and Paul Crossley a meeting was held with the Town Clerk of 
Pickering Town Council on issues relating to the market. 
 
Overview 
The markets appear stable and although the number of casual traders has 
diminished, both markets are usually full (with some seasonal variation). The 
transition from the Council providing, erecting and dismantling stalls to the traders 
taking on this task appears to have been well managed, with no loss of traders 
occurring. The market operation makes a trading profit each year, which is used to 
support other Council services. There is little evidence of re-investment in the 
market operation. 
 
Specific conclusions 

1. Market Rights. Pickering market is a one-day a week Charter market. 
However, there is an indoor private market operating on Market Place, a 
weekly car-boot sale close to the town centre, and a monthly farmers’ 
market. None of these are licensed under the Council’s market rights. This, 
coupled with the absence of a Market Rights Policy, means that the 
Council’s ability to protect its market is severely limited. 

2. Pickering market offer. From the discussion with the Town Clerk, it is clear 
that some businesses currently see the market as a detriment rather than an 
asset. This view relates to the perceived quality of the offer, the physical 
appearance of the stalls, and the road closure order that is in place on 
market day. They would like to see the offer realigned to better appeal to the 
significant tourist industry in Pickering (railway, coach and private vehicle). 
Whilst the market offer does appear to be aimed at a local/residential 
customer base, the town is busier on Mondays. No research has been 
carried out to identify the demographic profile of the market customer base. 

3. Encroachment. Many market stalls are encroaching onto the pavement, 
causing significant ‘pinch-points’ along the length of the market.  

4. Location of the market. Some discussion took place on a potential relocation 
of the market, linked particularly with the potential redevelopment of the Vivis 
Lane/Hungate. Currently, Market Place remains the heart of the town centre, 
and any potential relocation of the market would have to be considered 
carefully, not just in terms of the viability of the market, but in relation to the 
viability of the independent high street. 

5. Marketing. Marketing is minimal, although effective use made of the Tourist 
information map. There was no evidence of market signage in the town, and 
the Council website information on markets could be improved. 

Page 71



© nabma consultancy services 2008 6

 
Recommendations: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Undoubtedly improvements can be made, but consultation and sensitivity with 
respect to the traders/public must be maintained. A god number of traders have 
been with us for many years and have a reliable local trade and it is important to 
keep the two. 
 
NABMA recommendations 
 

1. Market Rights. Create and publicise a Market Rights Policy as a matter of 
urgency. 

2. Encroachment. Ensure that traders do not encroach onto the pavement. 
There are health and safety issues to be addressed - the need for 
emergency vehicles to access Market Place during the road closure, traders’ 
vehicles loading and unloading, and the drop from the kerb edge to the road 
surface. This could best be achieved by having the stalls trade up to the kerb 
edge but not beyond (although a different line would be needed at the 
bottom end of the market, where the pavement curves out). 

3. Retail Offer. A research project should be carried out to identify the 
demographic profile of the market customer base. In particular this needs to 
identify the current extent of tourist purchases on the market and how that 
might be increased. This project could be carried out in partnership with the 
Town Council. The results can then inform the debate on re-aligning the 
retail offer of the market. This information would also help inform the debate 
on any potential relocation of the market. 

4. Marketing. Install signage for the market around the town. This should be 
aimed at pedestrian and vehicle access. Improve the Council market 
webpage. Adopt an improved stall cover for the market. Whilst this is difficult 
because of the different design and lay-out of the individual stalls, one option 
would be to look at a standard liveried backdrop for all stalls, with 
design/logo facing out onto the shops opposite. 

Page 72



PICKERING TOWN COUNCIL 
 

Memorial Hall 

Potter Hill 

Pickering 

North Yorkshire 

YO18 8AA 

 
Tel/Fax  01751 476503 

e-mail address: pickeringtowncouncil@pcxinternet.com 

website: pickering.gov.uk 

 

 

 

21 August 2009 

 

Health and Environment Manager 

Ryedale District Council 

Ryedale House 

Malton 

YO17 7HH 

 

Re: Pickering Market – Health-check 

 

 

Dear Steve 

 

Thank you for giving the Town Council the opportunity to see, and comment on, Nabma 

Consultancy Services’ Health-check on Pickering Market.   Over a year ago the Town 

Council formulated an opinion about the market which it reviewed recently. The revised 

opinion, which is given below (a-d), forms an  integral part of the Town Council’s response to 

the Nabma document. 

 

a) Roles of the Market 

 

The role of the market is to enhance retail provision in the town but not to the 

detriment of local businesses. The market has a role to play in promoting the town as 

a visitor centre and in providing an outlet for the display, and sale, of local goods.  

The presence of the market should not inhibit the tradition of social discourse.  The 

town should be able to take pride in both the look of the market and the quality of the 

goods and services it provides.  

 

b) The present layout of the market channels pedestrians (whether or not disabled) along 

a tight space, particularly at the lower end of the Market Place.  This means that 

movement is difficult and opportunity to view the wares on display either on the stalls 

themselves or through the shop windows is restricted, thereby compromising the 

viability and vitality of the town centre. The layout works against ease of social 

discourse: the cramped conditions (even in the more extensive space at the northern 

end of the Market Place) militate against local people in particular who wish to stop 

awhile to chat with one another. 

 

To deal with these problems the Town Council proposes that no stall should be sited 

on the pavement and, if the current linear layout is to be retained, all the stalls should 

be moved back from the kerb.  The Town Council, however, would prefer a different  

Agenda Item 9

Page 73



 2 

b) 

 

type of layout. The stalls could be turned through 90 degrees and positioned back to 

back.  This would make movement along the pavement easier, clear the frontages of 

local businesses so that their goods and services can be easily seen by the many 

visitors to the town and enable both local people and visitors to browse amongst the 

stalls. This should free up space to enable “Country Crust” to put out tables and 

chairs each Monday outside its premises (as it does every other day) to help create a 

“café culture” and to keep people longer in the Market Place.  It may be that the 

alignment of stalls in the upper reaches of the southern side of the Market Place 

should be linear; however, they should not encroach on the pavement as they do at 

present. 

 

It is also proposed that the space in front of the Yorkshire Building Society’s 

premises and at the top, northern side of the Market Place should be investigated as 

potential sites for stalls.  

  

Finally, to ensure greater safety for pedestrians and the disabled, it is proposed that 

the barriers at the bottom of the Market Place are placed side by side and not 

staggered. This should deter those who still use the Market Place as a rat run.   The 

barriers would remain staggered at the upper end of the Market Place to enable those 

who are entitled to enter and leave the thoroughfare via Burgate or Birdgate. 

 

c) Range of goods 

 

The range of goods (and, concomitantly, the number of stalls) is not uniform 

throughout the year. At its busiest, goods for the home, clothes and footwear and food 

can be found in the Market as well as some miscellaneous items, e.g. cards,  pet  

accessories and foodstuffs. Local produce whether food or crafts is rarely on sale. 

Given the emphasis on the reduction of food miles, there is a case for better 

promotion of local goods.
1
 The contraction of the market during the winter months 

should be addressed: local clientele have to look elsewhere for (or do without) goods 

that are usually purchased from stall-holders. Furthermore the absence of many stall- 

holders suggests that the market is there for the benefit of tourists rather than 

townspeople. 

 

d) The location of the Market 

 

The case for the Market Place continuing to host the market is a strong one and 

commands most support in the Council: the thoroughfare is the main shopping area; 

the market has been sited there for many generations. The Ropery car park may 

provide an alternative venue: it is, for many people, on their route to the Market Place 

and the temporary loss of car parking space would be outweighed by the opening up 

of the Market Place to traffic and the availability of some parking spaces on the 

southern side of the road. The eastern section of Potter Hill, in the vicinity of the 

Memorial Hall and the Methodist Chapel, might also be investigated: it adjoins the 

main shopping centre and has a suitably large amount of space which is currently 

available as free parking. 

 

 

 

                                                 
1
 It may be that Monday is not a profitable day for local food producers (whose potential clients may 

have done their main food shopping over the weekend and, if dependent on the car, may be inhibited 

by the strain of finding a car parking space from venturing to the town centre). 

Page 74



 3 

About the Nabma Health-check the Town Council has observations to make on 

e) the District Council’s management of the markets; 

f) Nabma’s recommendations. 

 

e) The Town Council was surprised to learn that the District Council does not have an 

annual business plan, a strategy, an investment plan and a promotional plan for the 

markets that remain under its control. This information led members to question how 

interested the District Council was in the markets for which they were responsible 

and gave substance to the view that the balance between the interests of the town and 

wider community and those of the stall-holders were tipped too strongly towards the 

latter. One can understand, because of this, why stall-holders in 2004 wanted the 

District Council to retain control of the Pickering and Helmsley markets (Note 18, 

p5). This would also explain why the market looks shabby and ramshackle, why the 

historic centre of the town loses its attractiveness every Monday, why stall-holders 

have been allowed to invade the pavement, why pedestrians are at a disadvantage and 

why the movement and parking of stall-holders’ vehicles remains an issue. 

 

 The Town Council is broadly supportive of the points made in the first paragraph of 

Note 18; however, its support should be interpreted in the light of points a-c) given 

above. The Town Council is cautiously optimistic that there is the will within the 

District Council to bring about imaginative and effective change.  

   

f) The Town Council supports each of Nabma’s four recommendations; however, re 

Recommendation 2 (Encroachment) the Town Council thinks that the layout of the 

market must be fundamentally reconsidered if the market is to remain in the Market 

Place: having the stalls trade up to the kerb edge but not beyond does not address the 

pressing need for ease of movement, important in its own right, or meet the legitimate 

expectation of both local businesses and stall-holders that people passing by have 

sufficient space to stop and view their goods without having to fight for space to do 

so.  

 

The Town Council wishes the market to serve the local community and be attractively 

apparelled and an attraction to the town’s visitors and, if it is to remain in the Market Place, to 

operate within a safe environment.  The Town Council believes that necessary improvements 

to the market have to be seen in the context of traffic management within the town centre and, 

therefore, asks that Highways and Transportation Area 4 Pickering and the police be involved 

in the debate. 

 

Yours sincerely 

 

Andrew Husband 

Clerk to Pickering Town Council 

Page 75



Page 76

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART A:   MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT 
    PHIL LONG 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: PROPOSED REFURBISHMENT OF MALTON MARKET 

PLACE PUBLIC CONVENIENCES 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  MALTON  
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 The purpose of the report is to accept a tender for the refurbishment works at the 

Public Toilets in Malton Market Place. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 It is recommended that that the Facilities and Emergency Planning Manager, in 

consultation with the Chairman, be authorised to accept a tender for the 
refurbishment works to the public toilets at Malton Market Place, subject to the tender 
being within budget. Tenders are due to be returned during December 2009 

  
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Refurbishment of Public Conveniences has been agreed as part of the three year 

rolling capital programme designed to improve Public Convenience infrastructure 
provision. 

 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 All construction projects carry potential risks (see Risk Matrix attached at Annex A) 

however having robust plans in place mitigates these. In this case the Construction 
Design Management regulations will apply.  

 
REPORT 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 In accordance with the Councils Constitution the tender has been submitted for 

Agenda Item 10

Page 77



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

Committee approval, funding for refurbishment is available in the Council’s Capital 
programme during the year 2009/10  

 
5.2 The Malton Market Place Conveniences are leased from the Malton Fitzwilliam 

Estate and landlord’s consent is required for this scheme. The lease ends in 2051. 
 
6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
 
6.1 Councils Corporate Plan- Aim 5: To transform Ryedale District Council 
 
6.2 Councils Community Plan: Equality of access  
 
6.3 Service Unit Delivery Plan: Delivery of schemes contained in the Council’s Capital 

 Programme 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 Consultation on the works has taken place with Fitzwilliam estate and consent has 

been given for the scheme. 
 
8.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
8.1 Tenders have been sought for refurbishment works to Malton Market Place Public 

Conveniences. These include for the updating of fixtures and fittings and certain 
external works to male, female, disabled and baby change facilities. 

 
8.2 The works were advertised during October 2009 and it is anticipated that tenders will 

be returned during December. 
 
8.3 Subject to contractual matters being resolved, it is intended to commence on site in 

January 2010. The anticipated construction period is ten weeks. The intention is to 
keep the disabled facility open as long as possible during the course of the works, 
however it will need to close for two or three weeks.  

 
8.4 While the male and female toilets are unavailable, to minimise disruption a map will 

be displayed on the site providing directions to the alternative, recently refurbished, 
toilets at Wentworth Street. The distance is approximately 250 metres. 

 
9.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The following implications have been identified: 
 

a) Financial: There is provision in the Councils Capital Programme for these 
works. 

 
b) Legal: Landlord’s consent has been obtained. The current form of the JCT Minor 

Works contract will be used for these works. 
 

c) Others: No other significant risks are apparent 
 
10.0 NEXT STEPS  
 
10.1 Once approval to proceed has been received the successful tenderer will be notified.      

Page 78



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

Following contractor mobilisation, it is anticipated works will be completed towards 
the end of March 2010. 

 
 
Phil Long 
Head of Environment 
 
Author:  David Summers, Facilities and Emergency Planning Manager 
Telephone No: 01653 600666  ext: 461 
E-Mail address david.summers@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 
 
  

Page 79



Page 80

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY SERVICES       26 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

Proposed Refurbishment of Malton Market Place Public Conveniences - RISK MATRIX – 
ANNEX A 

 

 
Issue/Risk 

 
Consequences if allowed 

to happen 

 
Likeli-
hood 

 

 
Impact 

 
Mitigation 

 
Mitigated 
Likelihood 

Mitigated 
Impact 

Contractor goes into 
administration during the course 
of the works 

Delay and extra costs 3 D Carry out financial checks 
before accepting tender 

2 D 

The finished works do not achieve 
an overall improvement in 
performance for the facility 

Clear objectives in the brief 
setting out the expected 
level of improvement 

3 C Carry out a check after 
design has been completed, 
to ensure that the finished 
facility will perform 
satisfactorily 

2 B 

Quality of workmanship is not 
satisfactory 

High level of latent defects 
and subsequently, the 
facility is costly to maintain  

1 C Carry out close supervision 
during construction. Ensure 
that the items specified are fit 
for purpose and generally, 
have been used before  

1 B 

Project does not complete on time Facility does not open on 
time 

2 C Liquidated damages, respond 
to any contractor enquiries 
quickly. 

1 B 

 

 

 

Score Likelihood Score Impact 

1 Very Low A Low 

2 Not Likely B Minor 

3 Likely C Medium 

4 Very Likely D Major 

5 Almost Certain E Disaster 

 

 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

0

P
a
g
e
 8

1



P
a

g
e
 8

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART A:   MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS 
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  
  
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT 
    PHIL LONG 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  THE MALTON AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA ORDER  
    2009 – RESULTS OF CONSULTATION 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  MALTON  
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To advise Members as to the results of the consultation on the extent of the proposed 

Air Quality Management Area and seek Members approval for the confirmation of the 
proposed area and its submission to Defra. 

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATION 
 
2.1 It is recommended that: 
 

(i) Members approve the Malton Air Quality Management Area Order as 
attached to the report 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATION 
 
3.1 Where a Detailed Assessment shows that one or more air quality objectives is/are 

likely to be breached the Council must designate an Air Quality Management Area 
(AQMA), covering the area affected.  Following consultation on a draft AQMA the 
proposed AQMA has been slightly amended to ensure that it encompasses all known 
and predicted areas of exceedence where there is relevant exposure. 

 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 Local authorities have a duty under section 83(1) of the Environment Act 1995 to 

designate an AQMA where the air quality objectives are unlikely to be, or are not 
being met.  A Detailed Assessment concluded that an AQMA should be designated 
and this has been confirmed by Defra.  The Council are required to undertake 
consultation to determine the extent of the AQMA, and to initiate policies for 
subsequent action to improve poor air quality.  The Council have consulted on the 

Agenda Item 11

Page 83



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 

 

draft AQMA as required and following approval by this Committee the AQMA Order 
will be published and Defra notified. 

 
REPORT 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 A report was submitted to the Community Services Committee on 26 March 2009, 

advising Members of the Council’s Detailed Assessment of nitrogen dioxide pollution 
in Malton and seeking approval to submit the report to Defra with a view to declaring 
an AQMA.  In addition, following confirmation from Defra on the need to declare an 
AQMA, it was resolved that public consultation should be undertaken on the extent of 
such an area. 

 
6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
 
6.1 Statutory requirements – Part IV of the Environment Act 1995 requires London 

boroughs, district and unitary Councils in England to conduct local air quality reviews.  
Defra have issued guidance documents to assist local authorities in conducting their 
reviews of air quality which, in accordance with Section 88(2) of the Act, local 
authorities are required to have regard to when carrying out their local air quality 
management duties.  The system is an integral part of delivering the objectives set 
out in the National Air Quality Strategy. New policy and technical guidance was 
published in February 2009. 

 
6.2 Community Plan – Landscape and Environment Action Plan 

 
6.3 Council Plan 2009-13 – Corporate Aim – To have a high quality, clean and 

sustainable environment 
 

6.4 Health and Environment Service Delivery Plan 2009-13 – To undertake the next 
round of Update and Screening Assessments on local air quality and implement the 
results of the Detailed Air Quality Assessment for nitrogen dioxide. 

 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 The Environment Act 1995 provides for the statutory basis for consultation and 

liaison in respect of local air quality management.  Local authorities must consult on 
the preparation of an AQMA and a list of statutory consultee’s is provided in 
Schedule 11 of the Act.  In addition to the relevant statutory agencies a letter 
outlining the proposal to declare an AQMA together with a copy of the draft AQMA 
Order and map was sent to every address in the proposed area.  The letter was also 
sent to all Malton District Councillors, Malton and Norton Town Councils, Fitzwilliam 
Estate, Malton and Norton Business in Action.  The proposals appeared in both local 
papers and a copy of the draft order was published on the Council’s website 

 
7.2 The consultation responses receive to date are as follows: 
 

• NYCC Highways – Support. Query on the length of some of the roads covered by 
the proposed Order being greater than the exceedence/potential exceedence of 
the objective. Keen to support the Council and this partnership working will be of 
particular importance in terms of developing the Action Plan for the AQMA, once 
declared. 

Page 84



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 

 

• Environment  Agency – No comment 

• Norton Town Council – Support and look forward to the proposal being 
implemented. Councillors interested in how we would resolve the problem areas 
once the Order was in place. 

• Malton and Norton Business in Action – requiring clarification on the implications 
of the proposed area 

• 2 Residents requiring clarification on the implications of the proposed area 

• 1 business requiring clarification on the implications of the proposed area 
 
8.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
8.1 A Detailed Assessment of nitrogen dioxide was undertaken in Malton to provide an 

accurate assessment of the likelihood of the air quality objective for this pollutant 
being exceeded at locations with relevant public exposure.  The Detailed Assessment 
showed that that exceedence of the annual mean air quality objective level for 
nitrogen dioxide is likely to be occurring in several areas within Malton town centre 
where there is relevant exposure (i.e. that the objective is not being met at the 
facades of some residential properties in the town).  The need for an AQMA 
designation arises primarily because of local transport pollution. 

 
8.2 Where a Detailed Assessment shows that one or more air quality objectives is/are 

likely to be breached the Council must designate an AQMA, covering the area 
affected.  The Detailed Assessment recommended that Ryedale District Council 
should declare an AQMA to cover the areas of likely exceedence.  Defra confirmed 
acceptance of the report and the requirement to declare an AQMA by letter on 13 
July 2009.  Defra recommended that the Council set the boundaries of the AQMA to 
include an area wider than the areas of technical exceedence suggested by the 
modelling. This is to ensure that the proposed AQMA will include all locations of 
exceedence.  The draft Order identifies the roads and properties that the Council 
proposes to include in the AQMA.  Although the Detailed Assessment indicates that 
the annual mean objective is not being breached throughout the proposed area, it is 
considered that declaring a single area encompassing all the required locations is 
preferable to declaring multiple smaller AQMAs.  As well being more administratively 
complex, the designation of multiple smaller AQMAs would increase the risk of 
missing out areas of exceedence. 

 
8.3 A draft AQMA Order has been consulted on.  The consultee’s and their responses 

are detailed in Section 7 of this report.  As a result of reviewing the proposed 
designation a few minor amendments to the draft Order have been made to the 
Order proposed for adoption.  A copy of the proposed Order is available in Annex B. 

 
9.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The following implications have been identified: 
 

a) Financial: At this stage there are no financial implications. 
 
b) Legal: Where a Detailed Assessment shows that one or more air quality 

objectives is/are likely to be breached the Council must designate an Air Quality 
Management Area (AQMA), covering the area affected 

 
c) Policy Frameworks: The declaring of the AQMA will have implications for the 

forthcoming Local Development Framework (LDF) and for the County Council in 

Page 85



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
   
 

 

the development of their Local Transport Plan 3 (LTP3).  Both plans will have to 
have regard to the need to minimise the traffic pollution in this area in order to 
achieve the air quality objective and as such will be integral in the development 
of an Air Quality Action Plan 

 
10.0 NEXT STEPS  
 
10.1 Following approval of the AQMA Order the Council will have to complete a Progress 

Report by April 2010 and a further air quality assessment within 12 months of the 
Order being made.  This is intended to supplement the information provided in the 
Detailed Assessment.  In addition, an Action Plan must be produced within 18 
months of the Order being made, the purpose of which is to identify appropriate 
measures to implement in order to reduce the level of nitrogen dioxide in the AQMA 
so that the air quality meets the required standard. 

 
 
Phil Long 
Head of Environment 
 
Author:  Steven Richmond, Health and Environment Manager 
Telephone No: 01653 600666  ext:247 
E-Mail Address: steve.richmond@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers: 
Ryedale District Council – Air Quality Review and Assessment – Detailed Assessment - 
Community Services Committee. 26 March 2009. 
 
Defra – Local Air Quality Management - Policy Guidance PG(09).February 2009 
 
Background Papers are available for inspection at: 
Ryedale House, Malton or www.ryedale.gov.uk 
  

Page 86



SECTION 83(1) ENVIRONMENT ACT 1995

THE MALTON AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA 

ORDER 2009

ORDER DESIGNATING AN AIR QUALITY 

MANAGEMENT AREA

Ryedale District Council in exercise of the powers conferred upon it by

Section 83(1) of the Environment Act 1995, hereby makes the following 
Order.

This Order may be cited to as the Malton Air Quality Management Area and 
shall come into effect on [date].

The Air Quality Management Area will be an air quality management area in 

relation to nitrogen dioxide only.

The area designated as an air quality management area is described as the 

roads or stretches of roads listed in Schedule 1, (which are shown marked in 
red on the map in Schedule 2) and includes all the properties, whether

residential or commercial, with facades on these roads.  The designated area 
shall be taken to include the whole of these properties, i.e. buildings and 
associated open space within the same curtilage.

The Order and attached maps may be viewed at the Ryedale District Council 
Main Offices, Ryedale House, Old Malton Road, Malton YO17 7HH.

This Area is designated in relation to current and projected levels of nitrogen 
dioxide which breach, or are likely to breach, the nitrogen dioxide (annual 

mean) air quality objective (40 µg/m3) as prescribed by the Air Quality

(England) Regulations 2000 (as amended by the Air Quality (England)

(Amendment) Regulations 2002).

This Order shall remain in force until it is varied or revoked by a subsequent

order.

THE COMMON SEAL OF RYEDALE DISTRICT COUNCIL WAS HEREUNTO
AFFIXED ON THE **** (*******) DAY OF ********* 2009 in the 

presence of:

Agenda Item 11

Page 87



Schedule 1 

The roads and properties associated with this Order are: 

•Castlegate ((B1248) between junction with B1257 and Sheepfoot Hill).

On the North side of this road all properties from No. 1 to No. 47 
Castlegate that have a façade on this road are included.  On the 

South side of this road all properties from No. 10 to No. 96
Castlegate that have a façade on this road plus Nos. 51, 52, 88 

(Flats 1 to 6), 82 (Flats 1 to 4) Castlegate and No 4 Wells Lane are 
included.

•Yorkersgate ((B1248) between junction with B1257 and Market
Street).

On the North side of this road all properties from No. 2 to No. 42 
Yorkersgate that have a façade on this road plus No. 2 Market 

Street are included.  On the South side of this road all properties 
from No. 1 to No. 39 Yorkersgate that have a façade on this road 

are included.

•Wheelgate ((B1257) between junction with B1248 and Finkle Street).

On the East side of this road all properties from No. 4 to No. 64 
Wheelgate that have a façade on this road are included.  On the 

West side of this road all properties from No. 1 to No. 51 Wheelgate 
that have a façade on this road plus No 1-3, 2 and 5A St. Michael's 

Street are included.

•Old Maltongate ((B1257) between junction with B1248 and 20 metres 

west of junction with East Mount).

On the North side of this road all properties from No. 31 to No. 47 
Old Maltongate that have a façade on this road plus No. 76
Greengate are included.  On the South side of this road all

properties from No. 2 to No. 82 Old Maltongate that have a façade 
on this road are included.

•Church Hill

On the North side of this road Nos 1, 2 & 3 are included.

Page 88



Schedule 2 

V V
V V

V
V

V
V

V V

E
V

V
V

V A

V

VVVVVVV

VV V V
V

VVV
V

VV
VVVVVVVVVV

VV
VVVV

VVV

VVVVVV
V V

VV

SSS
VVV V

VVV
VV

V VVV
V VVVVVVVVVVVV

VVVVVVVVVVVVV V

VVVVVVVV
VV VV V

AVVVVVVVVVVVVV

VVV

V

VV V

V
V

V VV VVV V
VV
VVV
V

VV

V V
V
V V

VVV
V

V

V
V

VVV

V

V
V

VVV
VV V
SVVVVV

V
V V VV

V
V V

VV

V
VV
AV

V

Q
V

V
VV V V

V V V
V V

VVV VV

VV VV VV V
V VV

V V
VV
V

V

V
V

V
V

V

V V
V

V V V
V V V
VVV

V

SS

V
V
V

V V
V V V V

VV
VV
VVVVV

V V V
VV
VV
V V

V
V VV
V VV
VVV

VVV
VVV VVVV V VVVVVVV

VVVVVVV VVVVVVVVV VVVVV VV VV
VV
V V

V

V

VVV

V

VVV
V V

VV V V V
V

V
VV

VVVVVV

VV
VV

V V
VVV

VV

AV
V
V

V V
VV

V
V

V

V VVV
VV

V
V

V
VVVVV V

VV V
V

VV
V V VVV V

VV V V V V
VV V
V VVV

VVV
V
V

V VVVV
V

VV

V

VV

V V

V V
VV
VV

VV
V

VVV
V

V

V

AES
V

V V
V V V

VVV
VV

V

VVV
V
V
V V V V V

V V
V

V V V V
VVV
VV
V

VVV
V

V
VVVV

VV

V V
VV

V VVV

V V
VVV

VVV
VV

V V

A S

SA
VV
VV

V VVVVVVV V
VV

VV

V
V

V V V
VV V

VV

V V
VV

VVVVVVV
VVVV

VV
VV

V
V
VV

VVV V V
VVV

V V VV

A
A

VV
VVV

VV
V

V

VVV
V
V V V V

V VV

VVV
VV

VVV
VVVV VVV

V

V

V
VVV

VV
V

VV
V

VVV

V

V
V

V
V VV VV V

V V VVVV
V

VV

VV
V
V V V V VVV

V
V

VVVVV
V V

VV
V V VVV

VV V

V

V VVV
VVVVVV

V
VV
V V
VVV V
VVVV V

V
V

V
V V

V

SAVV
V

VVVV VVV

V SS
V V V V V

V
VVV
V

E
G

V

V

V

VV

V VV
VV

V
V V

V

V
V

V

V V

V

V
V

V
VV

V
V

V
V

V

V

V

V

V

V
VVV

V

V
V

V

V
V

V
V

V
VV

V
V

V

V V

VV
V

V

VVVVVV
VVV V

VV
V

VV
VVVVV

V V

V

V V

VV

VV

VV

V

V V
V V V
V V

V

V

VV

A
V

V V

V
V

V

VAVVV

V

V V

VV

E E E

E
E

E
E

E
E E EE

E E

E E E
EEEE

V

V

V

VV

V V V V

V V VV V
V

V

V
V

V

V

VV
V

V
V

V

V

V

V

VV

V

V

E

V

SSSSSSSSSS

V

V

VV

V

V
V

V

V

V

SSSSSSSS
V

V

VVV
V

V

V

E
V

E

V V
V

V

V

V

V

V

V

F FF
A

LP
LP L

L

M
F

LCV V

LL

LVVVVVVV

VV
VVV
V

V

V

V
V

V

V

V

V

V
V

LP

V

V

V

V

V

V

V V

V

V

FF

VV V

AS

A

S
AAS

E
E

E

E E E
E

V V

V
V

V V V V VV

V VV
VV

V

V
V V V VV

VV V V V V

VV
V

VVVV VVV
V V

V
VV

V
V
V
V

VVVVV
VV
VV VV

V
V V

V V
V V V V V

V
V
VV

VV

V

V V V
V

V

V

E V V

UU
V V

V

F
F

V

V F
FL L

AAA
FFLLP

FF FF F
FF

L

LP

FFF

C
L

L
LP

L

FF

CL

VLLLL
18.5m

Picnic AreaWorks

Works

Bus Station

BM
 20.40m

Surgery

Hal l

Hal l

Works

P W

LB

1 9 . 9 m

ED an
d W

ard
 B

dy

Rive
r D

erwent

50

46

1

1
1

1
3

1
5

1
7

1
3

3
a

5

9

1
1

1
3

2
1

2
9

1
6

8

1 
to 

7

13

9

21 to
 33

4

3

37

3
7
a

39

45

4
5
a

47

36

26

28

30

18

1
4

1

12

2

64

60

51

4
9

4
3

2
9

2

10

3
6

3
8

40

4
2

48 to 54
1
3

15

1a

5

21

12

11

2

15

1
1

9

7

1

1

49

43

45a

45

39

5
7

4
7

4
3

84

82
80

68

62

54

46

44

7

32
28

22

2

1

4

8

12

10

14

34

5

7
4

1
2

1
4

1
8

20

2
2

24

2
6

38

3
6

3
4

40

5
2

5
0

48

4
6

22

24

5

1

21

8

7

2

1

2

26

14

7
6

7
4

7
2

7
2
a

37

31

2

1

11

1
2

2
0

1
9

78
76

74

6662

64
60

58

56

50

32

28

24

29

15

20

4

6

5

7a

9

13

15
19

29

37

41

43

4

8
6

2

42
40

24

20
18

1

2

16

10

2

1

5

1
5

19

2
7

1

1
6

1
7

34

26

24

22

20

14

12

55

5
9

6
1

47

35

16

10

1
0

2

4

6a

8

B
 1

2
5

7

NEW
BIG

G
IN

W
ENTW

ORTH STREET

PC

Princess

Road Flats

PRINCESS ROAD

BM 32.02m

Dismantled Railway

C l u b

E
A

S
T
 M

O
U

N
T

M
iddlecaveFarm Ste

ve
ns 

Yard

SPITAL FIELD CO
URT

SP
ITA

L 
ST

RE
ET

Shelter

NEWGATE

NewgateHouse

Hall

FIN
KL

E 
ST

RE
ET

P
A

U
L'S

 R
O

W

Inn

PH

4

Telephone

Exchange

17

2
1

Princess
Terr

PW

BM 27.13m

GREENGATE

BM
 30.22m

C l u b

Works

LB

T e n n i s

Tennis

Bowling

G r e e n

P a v i l i o n

Pavi l ion

B 12
57

OLD
 M

ALT
ONGATE

BM 32.30m

H
all

PH

W
heelgate S

quare

W
H
E
E
LG

A
TE

B 1
257

B
M

 2
7
.3

2
m

ST MICHAEL S
TREET

L
ib

ra
ry

MAR
KE

T P
LA

CE

Car Park

3 5 . 0 9 m

BM

Stone

Car Park

Car Park

M a r k e t

PH
THE SHAMBLES

Hotel

Bank

Cattle Market

Hall

Ha l l

S
A

V
ILLE

 S
T
R

E
E

T

PH

L B

T
C

B

BM 24.62m

Works

BM

2 3 . 1 2 m

Car Park

Rodgers Mews

P
H

P H

21

B
a

n
kBank

R
A

IL
W

A
Y

 S
T

R
E

E
T

CHURCH HILL

E
l

Sub

Sta

PH

B 1248

B 1
248

B 1248

30.5m

28.8m

27.4m

2
4

. 6
m

24.3m

24.1m

2 7 . 7 m

YORKERSGATE

21.9m

22.8m

24 .0m

24.5m

32.5m

29 .2
m

30.9m

32.8m

31.8m

P H

27.7m

2 7 . 2 m

16

C
o
u
rt

Te
nn

is

19

Cottage

Forge
El

S
ub

S
ta

Church
Elim

3 4 . 8 m

PCs

35
.2m

TCBL B

Bank

ST
 LE

ONAR
D'S 

CL

Hotel

W
orld W

ide

S
h
o
p
p
in

g
 M

a
ll

Church

W
E

L
L
S

 L
A

N
E

Castle

(site of)

Allotment

Gardens

The Lodge

CR

BM 23.45m

14

1

Railway

Bridge

4

30

34

34 .2m

5

W
o
rk

s

Church

Pye Pits

Greengate Flats

P
o

s
ts

PU
M
P 

LA
NE

Garage

M
A
R
K
E
T 

P
LA

C
E

33.0m

P
H

C
l u

b

25.5m

30

M
A

R
K

E
T

 S
T

R
E

E
T

Bank

Posts

2 4 a

2

B
M

 31.67m

32.7m

Museum

P o s t s

3
3
.6

m

6

Princess Court

Sch
ool L

ane

4
5

CASTLEGATE

DW

Castle Wall

H
a

w
k
s
w

e
ll 

L
a

n
e

Works

10

18

16

St M
ich

ael's

Chur
ch

D e p o t

1
2

8

W a t e r

Lane

Depot

53

2 1 . 1 m

10
12

14

Courts

C o u r t s

Ryd
er 

Square

CAB

1

5

C
H

A
N

D
LE

R
S

W
HARF

26to45

C
H

A
P
E
L LA

N
E

Parish Centre

Welmont C
t

1 to
 6

14 to 19

Maltings

The

8

9
 t

o
 1

2

7

R
IV

ER
SI

D
E 

VI
EW

Weighbridge

1

1
1

1
5

2
5

Play Area

House

3
0

3
0

a

1

3

C
A

R
P

E
N

T
E

R
S

 Y
A

R
D

20 to 23

1
 

to
 

2
5

T
h
e
 C

o
rn

m
ill

1 to 11

9  t o  1 3

PauIs Yard

54

51

52

70

7b

13a

6
a

Skateboard Park

PO

8

1

3

35
41 47

88

1
0

4

108

Ryedale House

B 12
57

OLD
 M
AL

TO
NG

AT
E

OL
D 

M
AL

TO
N 

RO
AD

Tennis Courts

Tennis

Court

Stone

32.8m

19.3m

35.0m

BM 35.76m

3 6 . 8 m Stone

DERVENTIO

R O M A N  F O R T

P
ath (um

)

Cas t le

(site of)

Fire Station

6

1

SHEEPFOOT HILL

E l

S u b

S t a

Works

1 8 . 8 m

NORTON ROAD

1 8 . 6 m

Malton Br idge

2 0 . 3 m

Works

Level Crossing

PC

C R

19.6m

GARTH

ROMAN

B M  3 5 . 3 4 m

Dismantled Railway

BM 19.49m

Castle

Wall

Gas Holder

F B

96

Castle Hotel

C
A

S
T
LE

G
A

T
E

1 t o 1 5

16to25

Boathouse

The

1 to 4

C

Page 89



Page 90

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE  26 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

THE MALTON AIR QUALITY MANAGEMENT AREA ORDER - RISK MATRIX 
 

 
Issue/Risk 

 
Consequences if allowed 

to happen 

 
Likeli-
hood 

 

 
Impact 

 
Mitigation 

 
Mitigated 

Likelihood 
Mitigated 

Impact 

Local authorities have a duty 
under section 83(1) of the 
Enviroment Act to designate an 
AQMA where the air quality 
objectives are unlikely to be, or 
are not being , met . Defra have 
confirmed the need to declare an 
AQMA 

Failure to consult and 
declare an AQMA would be 
a breach of the Council’s 
statutory duty. 

5 D A report was submitted to 
Community Services 
Committee on 26 March, 
confirming the need to 
declare an AQMA and 
consult. 
The consultation has taken 
place and the report requests 
confirmation of the draft 
Order to comply with the 
Councils Statutory duties 

1 B 

 

 

Score Likelihood Score Impact 

1 Very Low A Low 

2 Not Likely B Minor 

3 Likely C Medium 

4 Very Likely D Major 

5 Almost Certain E Disaster 

 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

1

P
a
g
e
 9

1



P
a

g
e
 9

2

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART A:   MATTERS DEALT WITH UNDER DELEGATED POWERS  
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009  
 
REPORT OF THE:  HEAD OF ENVIRONMENT 
    PHIL LONG 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: VALE OF PICKERING CHANNEL MANAGEMENT PILOT 

PROJECT 
 
WARDS AFFECTED: PICKERING, SINNINGTON, MALTON, NORTON, STAXTON 
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To consider support for a request for a financial contribution from Ryedale Council 

towards a jointly funded Channel Management Pilot Project in the Vale of Pickering. 
The project follows an independent assessment (RDC funded) of the condition of 
main rivers in the Vale of Pickering. Potential partners include the Environment 
Agency, Internal Drainage Board and Scarborough Borough Council.  

 
1.2 The Council’s Policy and Resources Committee will consider the financing issue at 

its meeting on the 3 December 2009.  
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 It is recommended that the Community Services Committee request that the Policy 

and Resources Committee at its meeting on the 3 December 2009 approve: 
(i) funding for the 3 year project up to a maximum of £28,000 (£15,000 in year 

one, £8,000 in year two and £5,000 in year three) from the existing Capital 
Provision ‘Pickering Flood Scheme’ of £1m; 

  
(ii) Procurement of the project be undertaken by either the Environment Agency 

or Internal Drainage Board; and  
 

(iii) Ryedale District Council be regularly updated regarding progress and project 
findings emanating from the study. 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 Adaptation to climate change is a key strategic objective of the Council, flood risk 

management being identified as a priority service area. Within Ryedale the major risk 

Agenda Item 12

Page 93



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

of flooding to properties lies in Pickering and Sinnington.   
 
3.2 Alleviation to the flooding problems in these areas is being addressed by a two-year 

Environment Agency land management project designed to slow the flow of the water 
by increasing the time it takes from rain falling on the upper catchment to flood 
waters arriving in the watercourses flowing through Pickering and Sinnington. 

 
3.3 The recommended project pilot looks to address this from the other side of the 

equation, looking at the potential effects of vegetation and sedimentation on water 
levels in the Vale of Pickering. It aims to quantify any benefits gained from enhanced 
river management strategies, focusing on key maintenance points in the river 
system. The project could facilitate the development of best practice, which could be 
applied to all critical watercourses.  

 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 There are no significant risks associated with undertaking the pilot. 
 
REPORT 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 The Vale of Pickering Channel Management Assessment and Planning report 

(funded by Ryedale DC) was completed in January 2009. This report provided an 
independent assessment of the existing condition of the main rivers in the Vale of 
Pickering 

 
5.2 The report contained recommendations on how the watercourses could be managed 

with multi objective management goals which included: 

• Flood risk management 

• Agricultural land drainage 

• Ecological biodiversity.  
 

5.3 Key recommendations included the development of vegetation and sediment 
management pilot projects to be undertaken on certain reaches of the main rivers 
within the Vale of Pickering.  

 
6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
 
6.1 Community Plan – Landscape and Environment Action Plan - Safeguarding 

environmental air quality including air, land and water 
 
6.2 Council Plan 2009-13 – Corporate Aim – To have a high quality, clean and 

sustainable environment. This aim is underpinned by 2 strategic objectives, Objective 
6 - Planning to adapt to Climate change and Objective 7 - To Improve the quality of 
our local environment.  

 
6.3 Local Development Framework - The need to reduce the need to travel, avoidance of 

flood risk and protection of the landscape are all key considerations that will influence 
the future planning strategy for the District. 

 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 

Page 94



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

7.1 The project has been considered in detail and recommended for approval to 
Committee by the Land Drainage Liaison Group. The group has a wide forum of 
members inc RDC Councillors, Land Drainage Board, Environment Agency, National 
Farmers Union, the Ryedale Flood Research Group, Pickering Householders.  

 
8.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
8.1 The purpose of the report is to request a financial contribution from Ryedale Council 

towards a jointly funded Channel Management Pilot Project in the Vale of Pickering 
following the recommendations of the Vale of Pickering Channel Management 
Assessment and Planning report completed earlier this year.  

 
8.2 The objectives of the pilot projects are to: 

• Assess the effects of vegetation and sedimentation on water levels in the 
main rivers within the Vale of Pickering 

• Assess the effects of maintenance of vegetation and sedimentation of the 
main rivers within the Vale of Pickering on ecological biodiversity. 

 
8.3 Two main river reaches have been identified for investigation: 

• River Hertford/Derwent- from the A64 at Staxton to the confluence with Thornton 
Beck. This is likely to be the bulk of the scope of work. 

• River Derwent - Rye mouth to Old Malton 
 
8.4  Full details of proposed Vale of Pickering pilot project are contained in Annex A 

regarding the draft scope of work prepared by cbec , eco engineering,  at the request 
of the Land Drainage Liaison Group. Officers understand that would be financial 
support for the project from the EA but a response is still awaited from SBC and the 
Internal Drainage Boards. (Table 1) 

 
  Table 1-Budget estimate of financial support required from partners 

Year Total Cost EA Cost 

Share 

RDC Cost 

Share 

IDB Cost Share SBC Cost 

Share 

1 £31,840 + £5,700  = £37,540 £10,000 £15,000 £6,000 £6,540 

2 £21,840 + £2,300 = £24,140 £10,000 £8,000 £4,000 £2,140 

3 £16,560 + £2,300 = £18,860 £10,000 £5,000 £3,860 £0 

Total £70,240 + £10,300 = £80,540 £30,000 £28,000 £12,860 £7,790 

 
8.5 In brief, funding for the project scope encompasses: 

• Project Management and Co ordination. 

• Understanding and analysis of the historic conditions within the channel 

• Assessment of the existing physical conditions of the rivers including water level 
monitoring, sediment sampling and hydraulic modelling analysis. 

• Formulation of pilot projects to assess the benefits that potential channel 
management project strategies might have to water level management and 
biodiversity. 

• Implementation and monitoring of the effectiveness of these pilot projects year 
two and three. 

• A final project concept report for all partners. 
  

9.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The following implications have been identified: 
 

Page 95



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

a) Financial: The recommendations have financial implications for the Council as 
set out in Table 1 equating to £28,000 over three years from 2010/11 to 2013/14. 
Funding is available for the project regarding Capital set aside for the Pickering 
Flood Defence scheme. 

 
b) Legal:  There are no legal issues, which have been identified. 
 
c)  Others: No other issues have been identified 
 

 
Author:  Phil Long, Head Of Environment 
Telephone No: 01653 602820 
E-Mail Address: phil.long@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
 
Background Papers: 
None 
 
  

Page 96



!"#$%&'%()*+$,)-.%*/"--$#%0"-".$0$-1%()#&1%(,&2$*1%

!

"#$"%!$"&'$()*($$+*()!

!

,-)-./!0%!1223!

!

4+56/!7"&8$!&6!9&+:!

!

!

)34567894:63%

%

;<$!+$8&+/%!;<$!=5>$!&6!?*": $+*()!@<5(($>!A5(5)$B$(/!,..$..B$(/!5(C!?>5((*()!D!

?<5.$!E!FG& H>$.%!1223I%!H5.!"& B8>$/$C!*(!J5(-5+K!1223L!;<*.!+$8& +/!8+& M*C$C!5(!

*(C$8$(C$(/!5..$..B$(/!& 6!/<$!$N*./*()!"& (C*/*& (!& 6!/<$!B5*(!+*M$+.!*(!/<$!=5>$!& 6!

?*": $+*()%!H*/<!+$"& BB$(C5/*& (.!& (!<& H!/<$.$!H5/$+"& -+.$.!"& ->C!#$!B5(5)$C!H*/<!

B->/*'& #O$ : ! B5 (5 ) $ B$ (/%!

5 ) +*

/<*.! +$ 8& +/! *(

+$ 5 6! /<$ .$ ! 8*>& /!

8+& O$ !

!

EL ,..$..!/<$!$66$"/.!& 6!M$)$/5/*& (!5(C!.$C*B$(/5/*& (!& (!H5/$+!>$M$>.!*(!/<$!

B5*(!+*M$+.!H*/<*(!/<$!=5>$!& 6!?*": $+*()L!!

1L ,..$..!/<$!$66$"/.!& 6!B5*(/$(5("$!& 6!M$)$/5/*& (!5(C!.$C*B$(/5/*& (!& 6!/<$!

B5*(!+*M$+.!H*/<*(!/<$!=5>$!& 6!?*": $+*()!& (!$"& >& )*"5>!#*& C*M$+.*/KL!!

!

;H& !8& /$(/*5>!B5*(!+*M$+!+$5"<$.!<5M$!#$$(!*C$(/*6*$C!6& +!*(M$./*)5/*& (!/<+& -)<!/<$!8*>& /!

8+& O$ !

!

EL R*M$ +!S$ +/6& +CT4$ +H$ (/!D!U+& B!/<$ !,VW!5 /!7/5 N/& (!/& !/<$ !"& (6>-$ ("$ !H */<!

;<& +(/& (!G$ ": !

1L R*M$ +!4$ +H $ (/!D!RK$ !B& -/<!/& !X>C!A5 >/& (!

!

Y/!*.!B& ./!>*: $ >K!/<5 /!/<*.!8*>& /!8+& O$ " /!H *>>!*(*/*5 >>K!6& " -.!& (!/<$ !R *M$ +!S$ +/6& +CT4 $ +H $ (/!

FEI!5 (C!/<$ +$ 6& +$ !/<$ !#->: !& 6!/<*.!." & 8$ !& 6!H & +: !*.!6& " -.$ C!& (!/<*.!+$ 5 " <L!

!

G5 .$ C!& (!+$ " $ (/!" & & +C*(5 /*& (!B$ $ /*() .!H */<!/<$ !Z(M*+& (B$ (/!, ) $ (" K!FZ, I!F[& +: !& 66*" $ I!

5 (C!R K$ C5 >$ !4 *./+*" /!@& -(" *>%!/<*.!." & 8$ !& 6!H & +: !<5 .!#$ $ (!8+$ 85 +$ C!/& !8+& M*C$ !/<$ !/5 .: .!

+$\-*+$C!/& !" & B8>$/$!/<$.$!8*>& /!8+& O$" /.%!*(M& >M*()!" >& .$!" & & +C*(5/*& (!5(C!" & >>5#& +5/*& (!

H */<!/<$!Z, !5(C!R K$C5>$!4 *./+*" /!@& -(" *>L!!

!

!

!

!

Agenda Item 12

Page 97



!

;96<=%6>%?65@%

!

A% (56B=94%CD3DE=C=34%D37%96657:3D4:63%

!

; <*.!/5.: !H *>>!*(" >-C$!)$($+5>!8+& O$" /!B5(5)$B$(/!C-/*$.!5(C!C5K'/& 'C5K!" & & +C*(5/*& (!H */<!/<$!

Z, %!R K$C5>$!4 *./+*" /!@& -(" *>%!5(C!& /<$+!/$5B!B$B#$+.L!78$" *6*" 5>>K%!/<*.!/5.: !H *>>!*(" >-C$P!

!!

• @& & +C*(5/*& (!H */<!" >*$(/!)+& -8%

• A& (/<>K!" & (6$+$(" $!" 5>>.!H */<!5(!Z, !8+& O$" /!+$8+$.$(/5/*M$%

• 7" <$C->*()%! 8+& O$" /! 5(C! #-C)$/! /+5" : *()%! *(M& *" *()! 5(C! 5..& " *5/$C! 8+& O$" /!

B5(5)$B$(/!/5.: .%

!

!

F% / %

%

Y(!5..$..*()!/<$!)$& B& +8<*" !$M& >-/*& (!& 6!/<$!+$5" <$.!/& !#$!*(M$./*)5/$C!*/!*.!*B8& +/5(/!

/& !-(C$+./5(C!/<$!<*./& +*" !" & (C*/*& (.!H */<*(!/<$!" <5(($>L!; <*.!$M& >-/*& (!H *>>!<$>8!*(6& +B!

8& /$(/*5>!8*>& /!" <5(($>!B5(5)$B$(/!5" /*& (.L!4 5/5!" & >>$" /*& (!& 6!<*./& +*" !+$" & +C.!H *>>!#$!

-(C$+/5: $(!5.!C$." +*#$C!*(!/<$!6& >>& H *()!/5.: .L!!

%

1LE! @& >>$" /!<*./& +*" !" +& ..!.$" /*& (!+$" & +C.!

!

" #$" !./566!H *>>!M*.*/!5+" <*M$.!5/!/<$!Z, %![& +: .<*+$!9 5/$+!5(C!& /<$+!+$>$M5(/!.& -+" $.!/& !

*(M$./*)5/$!/<$!5M5*>5#*>*/K!& 6!<*./& +*" !C5/5!+$>5/*()!/& !/<$!)$& B& +8<*" !$M& >-/*& (!& 6!/<$!

R *M$+!S$+/6& +C!5(C!/<$!R *M$+!4 $+H $(/L!78$" *6*" 5>>K%!H $!H *>>!& #/5*(!<*./& +*" !" +& ..!.$" /*& (!

.-+M$K.%!5(C!& /<$+!+$>5/$C!*(6& +B5/*& (!/<5/!H *>>!8+& M*C$!C5/5!& (!<& H !/<$!" <5(($>.!<5M$!

$M& >M$C!& M$+!/*B$%!/5: *()!*(/& !5" " & -(/!85./!B5*(/$(5(" $!5" /*M*/*$.L!9 $!H *>>!.-BB5+*Q$!

/<$.$!C5/5!*(!)+58<*" !8>& /.!& 6!<*./& +*" !" +& ..!.$" /*& (.L!

!

1L1! ]Y7!5(5>K.*.!

!

"#$"!./566!H *>>!-(C$+/5: $!5(!<*./& +*"!5$+*5>!8<& /& )+58<K!5(C!B588*()!5(5>K.*.!& 6!/<$!

R*M$+!S$+/6& +C!5(C!R*M$+!4$+H $(/!*(!& +C$+!/& !5."$+/5*(!/<$!)$& B& +8<*"!"<5()$.!& M$+!

/*B$%!*(">-C*()!5(/<+& 8& )$(*"!B& C*6*"5/*& (.!.-"<!5.!"<5(($>*Q5/*& (!5(C!./+5*)</$(*()L!

R$5C*>K!5M5*>5#>$!*(6& +B5/*& (!H *>>!#$!& #/5*($C!6+& B!.& -+"$.!.-"<!5.!/<$!Z,!5(C![& +: .<*+$!

9 5/$+L!;<$.$!C5/5!H *>>!#$!8+$.$(/$C!*(!5!]Y7!6& +B5/L!!

!

!

K% $ L:G4:3E%*637:4:63G%" GG=GGC=34%

%

Y(!& +C$+!/& !6& +B->5/$!8& /$(/*5>!"<5(($>!B5(5)$B$(/!8*>& /!8+& O$"/.!*/!H *>>!#$!($"$..5+K!

/& !5..$..!/<$!$N*./*()!8<K.*"5>!"& (C*/*& (.!& 6!/<$!R*M$+!S$+/6& +C!5(C!/<$!R*M$+!4$+H $(/!

/<+& -)<!/<$!8+& O$"/!+$5"<L!U& +!/<$!8-+8& .$.!& 6!/<*.!."& 8$!& 6!H & +: !H $!<5M$!5..-B$C!/<5/!

Page 98



/<$!Z,!H *>>!#$!+$.8& (.*#>$!6& +!5..& "*5/$C!#*& >& )*"5>!5(C!$"& >& )*"5>!.-+M$K.!5>& ()!/<$!

+$>$M5(/!+$5"<$.!& 6!B5*(!+*M$+L!"#$"!H *>>!8+*B5+*>K!#$!+$.8& (.*#>$!6& +!5..$..*()!/<$!

8<K.*"5>!"& (C*/*& (.!& 6!/<$.$!+$5"<$.%!5.!6& >>& H .L!

!

^LE! @+& ..!.$"/*& (!.-+M$K.!

!

"#$"!6*$>C!./566!H *>>!.-+M$K!"+& ..!.$"/*& (.!588+& N*B 5/$>K!$M$+K!_22!B $/+$.!5>& ()!/<$!

R*M$+!S$+/6& +C!5(C!/<$!R*M$+!4$+H $(/!#$/H $$(!,VW!5/!7/5N/& (!5(C!/<$!"& (6>-$("$!H */<!

;<& +(/& (!G$": %!-.*()!R;`!]?7!.-+M$K!$\-*8B $(/L!Y(!5CC*/*& (%!H $!H *>>!5>.& !.-+M$K!"+& ..!

.$"/*& (.!5/!/<$!B 5*(!#+*C)$.!"+& ..*()!/<$!+*M$+L!;<*.!+$8+$.$(/.!588+& N*B 5/$>K!W2'W_!

"+& ..!.$"/*& (.!5>& ()!/<$!Ea: B !+$5"<!& 6!/<$!+*M$+L!;<$.$!"+& ..!.$"/*& (.!H *>>!8+& M*C$!5(!

*(C*"5/*& (!& 6!/<$!$N*./*()!)$& B & +8<& >& )K!H */<*(!/<$!+*M$+%!*(">-C*()!/<$!$N*./*()!

.$C*B $(/5/*& (!F#$CI!$>$M5/*& (.L!

!

^L1! U>-M*5>!,-C*/!

!

;<$!R*M$+!S5+/6& +CT4$+H $(/!#$/H $$(!,VW!5/!7/5N/& (!/& !/<$!"& (6>-$("$!H */<!;<& +(/& (!

G$": !F5!"<5(($>!>$()/<!& 6!588+& N*B 5/$>K!Ea!: B I!H *>>!#$!.-+M$K$C!F5..-B *()!-(<*(C$+$C!

5""$..!/& !/<$!+*M$+!#5(: .I!6& +!6>-M*5>!5-C*/!F7$5+!$/!5>L!E33_IL!;<$!5-C*/!H *>>!*C$(/*6K!/<$!

.85/*5>!C*./+*#-/*& (!& 6!"<5(($>!B & +8<& >& )*"5>!"<5+5"/$+*./*".!5/!/<$!."5>$!& 6!/<$!+*M$+!

+$5"<!F$L)L%!8& & >'+*66>$%!8>5($!#$C!$/"b!c 'E2!"<5(($>!H *C/<.!*(!>$()/<I!5(C!B & +8<& >& )*"5>!

-(*/.!F$L)L%!8& & >.%!+*66>$.%!+-(.%!)>*C$.!$/"b!cE'_!"<5(($>!H *C/<.!*(!>$()/<IL!;<$!.-+M$K!H *>>!

5>.& !*C$(/*6K!.& -+"$.!& 6!.$C*B $(/!.-88>K!F$L)L!/+*#-/5+*$.%!#5(: !$+& .*& (%!H */<*('"<5(($>!

./& +5)$%!<*>>'.>& 8$.I!5(C!& /<$+!6$5/-+$.!/<5/!*(C*"5/$!)$& B & +8<*"!+$)*B $!F$L)L%!

588$5+5("$!& 6!#5+!6$5/-+$.%!$("+& 5"<B $(/!& 6!M$)$/5/*& (!*(/& !/<$!"<5(($>I!5(C!/<$!

CK(5B *"!"<5+5"/$+!& 6!/<$!"<5(($>!F$L)L%!.85/*5>!5)$!./+-"/-+$!& 6!M$)$/5/*& (!H */<*(!/<$!

+*85+*5(!"& ++*C& +IL!;<$!8& .*/*& (!& 6!+*M$+!$()*($$+*()!./+-"/-+$.!F$L)L%!#5(: !8+& /$"/*& (%!

H $*+.%!)+& K($.!$/"I!/<5/!*(6>-$("$!(5/-+5>!6>-M*5>!8+& "$..$.!H *>>!#$!+$"& +C$C!5(C!/<$*+!

+$>5/*M$!*B 85"/!\-5>*/5/*M$>K!5..$..$CL!;<$!>& "5/*& (!5(C!C*./+*#-/*& (!& 6!+$5"<!/K8$%!

B & +8<& >& )*"5>!-(*/.%!.$C*B $(/!.& -+"$.!5(C!& /<$+!6$5/-+$.!H *>>!#$!+$"& +C$C!-.*()!5!<5(C'

<$>C!] >& #5>!?& .*/*& (*()!7K./$B !F]?7I!5(C!M*.-5>*.$C!*(!5!.85/*5>!C5/5'#5.$!5(C!]Y7!

$(M*+& (B $(/L!;<$!+$>5/*M$!.-88>K!+5/$.!6+& B !.$C*B $(/!.& -+"$.!H *>>!#$!\-5>*/5/*M$>K!

C$/$+B *($C!5(C!-.$C!/& !C$M$>& 8!5!+$5"<!."5>$!.$C*B $(/!#-C)$/!6& +!/<$!+*M$+L!

!

^L^! 9 5/$+!>$M$>!B & (*/& +*()!!

!

;H $>M$!FE1I!"& (/*(-& -.>K!+$"& +C*()!H 5/$+!>$M$>!)5-)$.!F8+$..-+$!/+5(.C-"$+.I!5/!: $K!

>& "5/*& (.!5>& ()!/<$!+$5"<!#$/H $$(!,VW!5/!7/5N/& (!5(C!/<$!"& (6>-$("$!H */<!;<& +(/& (!

G$": !H *>>!#$!C$8>& K$C!#K!"#$"!./566L!;<$.$!)5-)$.!H *>>!+$"& +C!/<$!M5+*5/*& (!& 6!H 5/$+!

>$M$>.!/<+& -)<!/<$!.-B B $+!5(C!H *(/$+!B & (/<.!6& +!588+& N*B 5/$>K!& ($!K$5+!8+*& +!/& !

*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!& 6!/<$!8*>& /!B 5(5)$B $(/!8+& O$"/.L!X(')& *()!B 5*(/$(5("$!& 6!/<$.$!

)5-)$.!*.!8+& M*C$C!*(!;5.: .!V!5(C!0L!

!

!

Page 99



!

^LW! 7$C*B $(/!.5B 8>*()!5(C!5(5>K.*.!

!

"#$"!./566!H *>>!"& >>$"/!-8!/& !E_!.$C*B $(/!)+5#!.5B 8>$.!6+& B !/<$!#$C!& 6!/<$!R*M$+!S$+/6& +C!

5(C!/<$!R*M$+!4$+H $(/!/<+& -)<!/<$!8+& O$"/!+$5"<L!;<$!.$C*B $(/!.5B 8>$.!H *>>!#$!

5(5>KQ$C!5/!5!>5#& +5/& +K!6& +!85+/*">$!.*Q$!C*./+*#-/*& (L!;<$!8-+8& .$!& 6!/<*.!/5.: !*.!/& !

"<5+5"/$+*Q$!/<$!$N*./*()!"<5(($>!.$C*B $(/.!H <*"<!H *>>!#$!-.$C!*(!<KC+5->*"!5(5>K.*.!*(!

/<$!($N/!/5.: L!

!

^L_! SKC+5->*"!B & C$>*()!5(5>K.*.!

!

,!& ($'C*B $(.*& (5>!B & C$>!FSZ@'R,7I!H *>>!#$!"& (./+-"/$C!6& +!/<$!8+& O$"/!+$5"<L!;<*.!

B & C$>!H *>>!+$8+$.$(/!/<$!$N*./*()!"& (C*/*& (.!<KC+5->*".!6& +!/<$!8+& O$"/!+$5"<L!SKC+& >& )K!

H *>>!#$!8+& M*C$C!#K!/<$!Z,!#5.$C!& (!5"/-5>!$M$(/.!+$"& +C$C!*(!/<$!R*M$+!S$+/6& +C!5(C!/<$!

R*M$+!4$+H $(/L!;<$!B & C$>!H *>>!#$!"& (./+-"/$C!6+& B !"<5(($>!"+& ..!.$"/*& (.!"& >>$"/$C!*(!

;5.: !̂ LEL!;<$!B & C$>!H *>>!#$!"5>*#+5/$C!5(C!M5>*C5/$C!/& !B $5.-+$C!H 5/$+!>$M$>.!+$"& +C$C!

/<+& -)<!/<*.!$66& +/!5(C!<*./& +*"5>>K!#K!/<$!Z,L!;<$!8-+8& .$!& 6!/<*.!B & C$>!H *>>!#$!/& !

8+& M*C$!5(!5(5>K.*.!/& & >!6& +!8+& O$"/!C$.*)(!8-+8& .$.!/& !5..$..!/<$!#$($6*/.!5(C!*B 85"/.!

& 6!8& /$(/*5>!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!"& ("$8/.!C$M$>& 8$C!*(!;5.: !WL!!

!

!

M% '65C8ID4=%(:I64%(56B=94G%

%

;<+& -)<!">& .$!"& >>5#& +5/*& (!H */<!/<$!Z,%!"#$"!./566!H *>>!C$M$>& 8!8& /$(/*5>!"<5(($>!

B 5(5)$B $(/!8+& O$"/!./+5/$)*$.!/& !#$!*B 8>$B $(/$C!/<+& -)<!/<$!8+& O$"/!+$5"<L!;<*.!

8+& O$"/!H & ->C!5..$..!/<$!#$($6*/.!& 6!/<$.$!./+5/$)*$.!/& !H 5/$+!>$M$>!B 5(5)$B $(/!5(C!

#*& C*M$+.*/KL!;<$.$!"& ->C!>*: $>K!*(">-C$P!

!

• ]+& K($.T./+-"/-+$.!8>5"$C!*(!/<$!"<5(($>!/& !C*M$+/!6>& H .!/& !/<$!"$(/+$!& 6!/<$!

"<5(($>%!/<-.!*("+$5.*()!.$C*B $(/!/+5(.8& +/!"585"*/K!& 6!/<$!"<5(($>!5(C!

+$C-"*()!.$C*B $(/!5""+$/*& (!*(!/<$!"<5(($>L!!

• 7$C*B $(/5/*& (!/+58.!*(!/<$!6& +B !& 6!$N"5M5/*& (!& 6!/<$!"<5(($>!#$C!/<+& -)<!

"$+/5*(!.<& +/!.$"/*& (.!& 6!"<5(($>L!;<$!8-+8& .$!& 6!/<$.$!H & ->C!#$!/& !"58/-+$!

.$C*B $(/!/+5(.8& +/$C!/<+& -)<!/<$!+$5"<L!;<$!.$C*B $(/!/+58.!H & ->C!($$C!

8$+*& C*"!$N"5M5/*& (!/& !B 5*(/5*(!/<$*+!$66*"5"KL!;<*.!8+& O$"/!H & ->C!C$/$+B *($!

/<$!6+$\-$("K!5/!H <*"<!/<$!/+58.!.<& ->C!#$!$N"5M5/$CL!

• =$)$/5/*& (!5(C!H $$C!+$B & M5>!6+& B !/<$!#5(: .!5(C!#$C!& 6!/<$!"<5(($>L!;<*.!

8+& O$"/!H & ->C!C$/$+B *($!/<$!6+$\-$("K!5(C!$N/$(/!& 6!M$)$/5/*& (!

B 5(5)$B $(/L!

!

;<$!<KC+5->*"!B & C$>!"& (./+-"/$C!5.!C$."+*#$C!*(!;5.: !̂ L_!H *>>!#$!-.$C!/& !<$>8!6& +B ->5/$!

8+& O$"/!"& ("$8/!C$.*)(.L!@& ("$8/!C$.*)(.!6& +!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.!5.!

& -/>*($C!5#& M$!H *>>!#$!8+& C-"$C!6& +!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!#K!/<$!Z,!X8$+5/*& (.!./566%!5.!

& -/>*($!*(!;5.: !_L!

Page 100



!

"#$"!H *>>!C$>*M$+!/<$!"& ("$8/!+$8& +/!/& !/<$!Z,%!RK$C5>$!4*./+*"/!@& -("*>!5(C!7"5+#& +& -)<!

@& -("*>!$>$"/+& (*"5>>K%!M*5!$'B 5*>%!6/8%!& +!4=4L!

!

!

N% )C< I=C=34%(:I64%(56B=94G%

%

Z,!X8$+5/*& (.!./566!H *>>!#$!+$.8& (.*#>$!6& +!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!& 6!/<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!

./+5/$)*$.!5.!& -/>*($C!*(!;5.: !WL!

!

_LE! 7-8$+M*.$!5(C!B 5(5)$!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!& 6!8+& O$"/.!#K!Z,!

!

"#$"!H *>>!8+& M*C$!& ('.*/$!B 5(5)$B $(/!5(C!.-8$+M*.*& (!+$\-*+$C!/& !*B 8>$B $(/!/<$!

8+& O$"/!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.%!5.!& -/>*($C!*(!;5.: !WL!9 $!<5M$!5..-B $C!/<5/!Z,!

#*& C*M$+.*/K!./566!H *>>!#$!+$.8& (.*#>$!6& +!$"& >& )*"5>!.-8$+M*.*& (!& 6!/<$!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!& 6!

/<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.L!

!

!

O% 063:465%(=5>65CD39=%6>%(:I64%(56B=94G%

!

X("$!*B 8>$B $(/$C%!/<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.!H *>>!#$!B & (*/& +$C!6& +!5!8$+*& C!

& 6!/H & !K$5+.L!;<*.!/5.: !"& M$+.!/<$!B & (*/& +*()!& 6!/<$!./+5/$)*$.!6& +![$5+!1L!9 $!<5M$!

5..-B $C!/<5/!Z,!#*& C*M$+.*/K!./566!H *>>!#$!+$.8& (.*#>$!6& +!$"& >& )*"5>!B & (*/& +*()!& 6!/<$!

"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.L!

!

VLE! @+& ..!7$"/*& (!A& (*/& +*()!5(C!,(5>K.*.!

!

@<5(($>!"+& ..!.$"/*& (.!H *>>!#$!.-+M$K$C!*B B $C*5/$>K!56/$+!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!& 6!/<$!

"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.%!5(C!588+& N*B 5/$>K!& ($!K$5+!56/$+!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (L!

@& B 85+*.& (!#$/H $$(!$N*./*()!"+& ..!.$"/*& (.!5(C!/<& .$!.-+M$K$C!*B B $C*5/$>K!56/$+!

*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!& 6!/<$!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.!H *>>!#$!B 5C$!/& !M$+*6K!/<$!$N/$(/!& 6!

"<5(($>!B & C*6*"5/*& (L!!@+& ..!.$"/*& (.!.-+M$K$C!& ($!K$5+!56/$+!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!H *>>!

C$/$+B *($!/<$!"<5()$.!*(!)$& B & +8<& >& )K!F"+& ..!.$"/*& (5>!)$& B $/+KI!& M$+!/<*.!8$+*& C!& 6!

/*B $%!5.!5!+$.->/!& 6!>*: $>K!.$C*B $(/!5""+$/*& (!& +!C$8& .*/*& (L!!

!

VL1! 9 5/$+!>$M$>!B & (*/& +*()!

!

X(')& *()!B & (*/& +*()!& 6!/<$!H 5/$+!>$M$>!+$"& +C$+.!$./5#>*.<$C!*(!;5.: !̂ L^!H *>>!#$!

-(C$+/5: $(!*(!& +C$+!/& !C$/$+B *($!/<$!#$($6*/.!& 6!/<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.!

& (!H 5/$+!>$M$>!B 5(5)$B $(/L!

!

VL^! ?+& )+$..!R$8& +/!

!

"#$"!H *>>!8+& C-"$!5!8+& )+$..!+$8& +/!5/!/<$!$(C!& 6![$5+!1!& 6!/<$!8+& O$"/!/& !C& "-B $(/!/<$!

Page 101



6*(C*().!& 6!/<$!8+& O$"/!/& !C5/$L!9 $!H *>>!C$>*M$+!/<*.!+$8& +/!/& !/<$!Z,%!RK$C5>$!4*./+*"/!

@& -("*>!5(C!7"5+#& +& -)<!@& -("*>!$>$"/+& (*"5>>K%!M*5!$'B 5*>%!6/8%!& +!4=4L!

!

VLW! ?+& )+$..!B $$/*().!H */<!Z,%!Y4G%!d5/-+5>!Z()>5(C!5(C!& /<$+!7/5: $<& >C$+.!

!

"#$"!./566!H *>>!5//$(C!8+& )+$..!B $$/*()!H */<!/<$!Z,%!Y4G%!RK$C5>$!4*./+*"/!@& -("*>%!

7"5+#& +& -)<!@& -("*>%!d5/-+5>!Z()>5(C!5(C!& /<$+!./5: $<& >C$+.!/& !8+$.$(/!/<$!8+& )+$..!& 6!

/<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!8*>& /!8+& O$"/L!!

!

!

P% 063:465%(=5>65CD39=%6>%(:I64%(56B=94G%

%

;<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.!H *>>!#$!B & (*/& +$C!6& +!5!8$+*& C!& 6!/H & !K$5+.L!;<*.!

/5.: !"& M$+.!/<$!B & (*/& +*()!& 6!/<$!./+5/$)*$.!6& +![$5+!̂ !F/H & !K$5+.!56/$+!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (IL!!

!

0LE! @+& ..!7$"/*& (!A& (*/& +*()!5(C!,(5>K.*.!

!

@<5(($>!"+& ..!.$"/*& (.!H *>>!#$!.-+M$K$C!588+& N*B 5/$>K!/H & !K$5+.!56/$+!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!

& 6!/<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.L!@& B 85+*.& (!H */<!$N*./*()!"+& ..!.$"/*& (.%!/<& .$!

.-+M$K$C!*B B $C*5/$>K!56/$+!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!& 6!/<$!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.%!5(C!/<& .$!

.-+M$K$C!& ($!K$5+!56/$+!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!H *>>!C$/$+B *($!/<$!"<5()$.!*(!)$& B & +8<& >& )K!

F"+& ..!.$"/*& (5>!)$& B $/+KI!& M$+!/<*.!8$+*& C!& 6!/*B $%!5.!5!+$.->/!& 6!>*: $>K!.$C*B $(/!

5""+$/*& (!& +!C$8& .*/*& (L!!

!

0L1! 9 5/$+!>$M$>!B & (*/& +*()!

!

X(')& *()!B & (*/& +*()!& 6!/<$!H 5/$+!>$M$>!+$"& +C$+.!$./5#>*.<$C!*(!;5.: !̂ L^!H *>>!#$!

-(C$+/5: $(!*(!& +C$+!/& !C$/$+B *($!/<$!#$($6*/.!& 6!/<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!./+5/$)*$.!

& (!H 5/$+!>$M$>!B 5(5)$B $(/!& M$+!/*B $L!

!

0L^! ?+& )+$..!R$8& +/!

!

"#$"!H *>>!8+& C-"$!5!8+& )+$..!+$8& +/!5/!/<$!$(C!& 6![$5+!̂ !& 6!/<$!8+& O$"/!/& !C& "-B $(/!/<$!

6*(C*().!& 6!/<$!8+& O$"/!/& !C5/$L!9 $!H *>>!C$>*M$+!/<*.!+$8& +/!/& !/<$!Z,%!RK$C5>$!4*./+*"/!

@& -("*>!5(C!7"5+#& +& -)<!@& -("*>!$>$"/+& (*"5>>K%!M*5!$'B 5*>%!6/8%!& +!4=4L!

!

0LW! U*(5>!R$8& +/!

!

G5.$C!& (!& ($!.$/!& 6!"& >>5/$C!"& B B $(/.!& #/5*($C!6+& B !/<$!Z,!5(C!& /<$+!./5: $<& >C$+.%!

"#$"!H *>>!8+& C-"$!5!6*(5>!8+& O$"/!"& ("$8/!C$.*)(%!*B 8>$B $(/5/*& (!5(C!B & (*/& +*()!+$8& +/!

6& +!.-#B *..*& (!/& !/<$!Z,%!RK$C5>$!4*./+*"/!@& -("*>!5(C!7"5+#& +& -)<!G& +& -)<!@& -("*>L!9 $!

H *>>!C$>*M$+!/<*.!$>$"/+& (*"5>>K%!M*5!$'B 5*>%!6/8%!& +!4=4L!

!

!

Page 102



!

0L_! ?+& )+$..!B $$/*().!H */<!Z,%!Y4G%!d5/-+5>!Z()>5(C!5(C!& /<$+!7/5: $<& >C$+.!

!

"#$"!./566!H *>>!5//$(C!& ($!6*(5>!+$8& +/*()!B $$/*()!H */<!/<$!Z,%!Y4G%!RK$C5>$!4*./+*"/!

@& -("*>%!7"5+#& +& -)<!@& -("*>%!d5/-+5>!Z()>5(C!5(C!& /<$+!./5: $<& >C$+.!/& !8+$.$(/!/<$!

6*(C*().!& 6!/<$!"<5(($>!B 5(5)$B $(/!8*>& /!8+& O$"/L!!

!

!

Q87E=4%$ G4:CD4=%

%

,!C$/5*>$C!#-C)$/!$./*B 5/$!*.!5//5"<$C!6& >>& H *()!/<*.L!,!.-B B 5+K!5(C!.-))$./$C!"& ./'

.<5+$!5++5()$B $(/!*.!5.!6& >>& H .P!

!

!
R=D5% 164DI%*6G4% $ " %*6G4%;HD5=% ,S*%*6G4% % ) % ;Q*%*6G4%;HD5=%

A% e^E%aW2!f!e_%022!!g!e^0%_W2! eE2%222! eE_%222! eV%222! eV%_W2!

F% e1E%aW2!f!e1%̂ 22!g!e1W%EW2! eE2%222! ea%222! eW%222! e1%EW2!

K% eEV%_V2!f!e1%̂ 22!g!eEa%aV2! eE2%222! e_%222! e^%aV2! e2!

164DI% TPUVFMU%W%TAUVKUU%X%TYUVNMU% TKUVUUU% TFYVUUU% TAFVYOU% TPVPZU%

!

d&/$.P!

Z,!g!Z(M*+&(B $(/!,)$("K!

R4@!g!RK$C5>$!4*./+*"/!@&-("*>!

Y4G!g!Y(/$+(5>!4+5*(5)$!G&5+C!

7G@!g!7"5+#&+&-)<!G&+&-)<!@&-("*>!

Page 103



Macintosh HD:Documents:Consulting:IDB:IDB:Channel_Management_Pilot_Project:Chan_Man_Pilot_Budget_080709.xls

Project

Name: Channel Management Pilot Project

#:

Staff Labor

YEAR 1 31,840.00£

1 Project management and coordination £1,840.00

2 Historic Channel Analysis

2.1 Collect historic cross section records £2,000.00

2.2 GIS analysis £2,440.00

3 Existing Conditions Assessment

3.1 Cross section surveys £6,700.00

3.2 Fluvial audit £5,240.00

3.3 Water level monitoring £2,800.00

3.4 Sediment sampling and analysis £1,340.00

3.5 Hydraulic modeling analysis £4,880.00

4 Formulate Pilot Projects

4.1 Conceptual design of up to two pilot reaches £4,600.00

YEAR 2 21,840.00£

5 Implement Pilot Projects

5.1 Supervise and manage implementation of projects by EA £4,880.00

6 Monitor Performance of Pilot Projects

6.1 Cross section monitoring and analysis £10,480.00

6.2 Water level monitoring £2,800.00

6.3 Progress report £1,840.00

6.4 Progress meetings with EA, IDB, Natural England and other Stakeholders £1,840.00

YEAR 3 16,560.00£

7 Monitor Performance of Pilot Projects

7.1 Cross section monitoring and analysis £5,480.00

7.2 Water level monitoring £2,800.00

7.3 Progress report £1,840.00

7.4 Final Report £4,600.00

7.5 Progress meetings with EA, IDB, Natural England and other Stakeholders £1,840.00

70,240.00£ 70,240.00£

Reimbursable Expenses: 10,300.00£

Sub-Consultant(s) Fees & Expenses: -£

TOTAL ESTIMATED PROJECT BUDGET 80,540.00£

ESTIMATED PROJECT BUDGET SUMMARY

Page 104



M
ac

in
to

sh
 H

D
:D

o
cu

m
en

ts
:C

o
n
su

lt
in

g
:I

D
B

:I
D

B
:C

h
an

n
el

_
M

an
ag

em
en

t_
P

il
o
t_

P
ro

je
ct

:C
h
an

_
M

an
_
P

il
o
t_

B
u
d
g
et

_
0
8
0
7
0
9
.x

ls

P
ro

je
c
t:

C
h

a
n

n
e
l 
M

a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
P

il
o

t 
P

ro
je

c
t

#
:

N
O

.
N

A
M

E
 /
 D

E
S

C
R

IP
T

IO
N

P
ri

n
c
ip

a
l

S
r.

A
s
s
o

c
ia

te
F

ie
ld

 A
s
s
is

ta
n

t

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 

L
a
b

o
r 

H
o

u
rs

 

p
e
r 

T
a
s
k

S
u

b
-T

o
ta

l 
L

a
b

o
r 

F
e
e

p
e
r 

T
a
s
k

T
a
s
k
 T

o
ta

l

£
6
0

£
5
5

£
1
2

£
0

Y
E

A
R

 1
£
3
1
,8

4
0
.0

0
1

P
ro

je
c
t 

m
a
n

a
g

e
m

e
n

t 
a
n

d
 c

o
o

rd
in

a
ti

o
n

1
6

1
6

3
2

1
,8

4
0

2
H

is
to

ri
c
 C

h
a
n

n
e
l 
A

n
a
ly

s
is

-
-

2
.1

C
o
lle

c
t 
h
is

to
ri
c
 c

ro
s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 r

e
c
o
rd

s
4

3
2

3
6

2
,0

0
0

2
.2

G
IS

 a
n
a
ly

s
is

4
4
0

4
4

2
,4

4
0

3
E

x
is

ti
n

g
 C

o
n

d
it

io
n

s
 A

s
s
e
s
s
m

e
n

t
-

-

3
.1

C
ro

s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 s

u
rv

e
y
s

8
1
0
0

6
0

1
6
8

6
,7

0
0

3
.2

F
lu

v
ia

l 
a
u
d
it

4
8
0

5
0

1
3
4

5
,2

4
0

3
.3

W
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

4
4
0

3
0

7
4

2
,8

0
0

3
.4

S
e
d
im

e
n
t 
s
a
m

p
lin

g
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

4
2
0

2
4

1
,3

4
0

3
.5

H
y
d
ra

u
lic

 m
o
d
e
lin

g
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

8
8
0

8
8

4
,8

8
0

4
F

o
rm

u
la

te
 P

il
o

t 
P

ro
je

c
ts

-
-

4
.1

C
o
n
c
e
p
tu

a
l 
d
e
s
ig

n
 o

f 
u
p
 t
o
 t
w

o
 p

ilo
t 
re

a
c
h
e
s

4
0

4
0

8
0

4
,6

0
0

Y
E

A
R

 2
2
1
,8

4
0
.0

0
£

5
Im

p
le

m
e
n

t 
P

il
o

t 
P

ro
je

c
ts

-
-

5
.1

S
u
p
e
rv

is
e
 a

n
d
 m

a
n
a
g
e
 i
m

p
le

m
e
n
ta

ti
o
n
 o

f 
p
ro

je
c
ts

 b
y
 E

A
8

8
0

8
8

4
,8

8
0

6
M

o
n

it
o

r 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
P

il
o

t 
P

ro
je

c
ts

-
-

6
.1

C
ro

s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

8
1
6
0

1
0
0

2
6
8

1
0
,4

8
0

6
.2

W
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

4
4
0

3
0

7
4

2
,8

0
0

6
.3

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

1
6

1
6

3
2

1
,8

4
0

6
.4

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 E

A
, 
ID

B
, 
N

a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

1
6

1
6

3
2

1
,8

4
0

Y
E

A
R

 3
-

-
1
6
,5

6
0
.0

0
£

7
M

o
n

it
o

r 
P

e
rf

o
rm

a
n

c
e
 o

f 
P

il
o

t 
P

ro
je

c
ts

-
-

7
.1

C
ro

s
s
 s

e
c
ti
o
n
 m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g
 a

n
d
 a

n
a
ly

s
is

8
8
0

5
0

1
3
8

5
,4

8
0

7
.2

W
a
te

r 
le

v
e
l 
m

o
n
it
o
ri
n
g

4
4
0

3
0

7
4

2
,8

0
0

7
.3

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 r

e
p
o
rt

1
6

1
6

3
2

1
,8

4
0

7
.4

F
in

a
l 
R

e
p
o
rt

4
0

4
0

8
0

4
,6

0
0

7
.5

P
ro

g
re

s
s
 m

e
e
ti
n
g
s
 w

it
h
 E

A
, 
ID

B
, 
N

a
tu

ra
l 
E

n
g
la

n
d
 a

n
d
 o

th
e
r 

S
ta

k
e
h
o
ld

e
rs

1
6

1
6

3
2

1
,8

4
0

2
2
8

9
5
2

3
5
0

1
,5

3
0

C
h
e
c
k
:

7
0
,2

4
0
.0

0
£

7
0
,2

4
0
.0

0
£

*U
n

le
s
s
 e

x
p

re
s
s
ly

 p
ro

v
id

e
d

 f
o

r 
w

it
h

in
 t

h
e
 c

o
n

tr
a
c
t,

 r
a
te

s
 a

re
 s

u
b

je
c
t 

to
 i
n

c
re

a
s
e
 a

n
n

u
a
ll
y
 o

n
 J

a
n

u
a
ry

 1
 o

f 
e
a
c
h

 y
e
a
r 

b
e
g

in
n

in
g

 i
n

 2
0
0
9
.

S
u

b
to

ta
l 
L

a
b

o
r 

H
o

u
rs

E
S

T
IM

A
T

E
D

 L
A

B
O

R
 F

E
E

S

T
O

T
A

L
 E

S
T

IM
A

T
E

D
 L

A
B

O
R

 F
E

E
S

T
A

S
K

Page 105



Orca/Templates/Budget Templates/ Chan_Man_Pilot_Budget_080709.xls /Reimbursables /8/7/09

      Mileage 1,000 miles @ 0.300 per mile £300.00
      Airfare 0 trip(s) @ -  per trip £0.00
      Car Rental 21 day(s) @ 75.00 per day £1,575.00

*       Lodging & Meals 0 day(s) @ - per day £0.00
      Misc. travel expenses day(s) @ per day £0.00
      Per diem 0 day(s) @ 40.00 per day £0.00

** Copying / Reproduction £50.00
Parking £0.00
Courier / Delivery (Allowance) £50.00

*** Field Equipment Rental

     Field vehicle 0 day(s) @ 100.00 per day £0.00

     Total station 0 day(s) @ 150.00 per day £0.00

     RTK GPS 12 day(s) @ 300.00 per day £3,600.00

Stage recorders 12 number@ 200.00 each £2,400.00

Sediment samples (lab work) 15 100.00 per £1,500.00
Misc. Supplies / Expenses (Allowance) £50.00
Computer Lcense Lease (M21) hrs. @ per hour £0.00
Archiving / Documentation (Allowance) £50.00

9,575.00£

725.00£

10,300.00£

ESTIMATED REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES BUDGET

Sub-Total Reimbursable Expenses
Administrative Charge

TOTAL ESTIMATED REIMBURSABLE EXPENSES

Page 106



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
PART B:   RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009  
  
REPORT OF THE:  CORPORATE DIRECTOR 
    MARIE-ANN JACKSON 
 
TITLE OF REPORT: COMMISSIONING BOARD PROPOSAL  
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL  
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To establish and agree the principle of creating a Commissioning Board, to agree the 

scope and purpose of such Board and to seek the views of the committee on a 
suggested approach to commissioning.  

 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Council is recommended to approve: 
 

(i)  The approach to Commissioning as detailed in Annex A;  
 
(ii) The formation of a Commissioning Board to replace the Community Services 

Committee with effect from May 2010; 
  

(iii) The scope of the Board as detailed at Annex B; 
 
(iv) Suspension of the Community Services Committee and any appointments to 

it with effect from May 2010; and 
 
(v) The authorisation of Officers to make any necessary changes to the 

constitution arising from the formation of the Board in conjunction with the 
Constitution Working Party. 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 To ensure the Council is prepared to meet the challenges it will face, as a result of 

the anticipated reduction in public spending, through the early development of 
effective mechanisms for the governance and management of existing and new 
approaches to the procurement of goods and services.  

Agenda Item 14

Page 107



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 The significant risks arising from this decision are that the use of commissioning does 

not deliver improvements to services or end users, or is not appropriate for a significant 
proportion of District Council Services and the investment in the Board is disproportionate to 
the benefits derived. In addition, Members and Officers do not possess the skills or 
knowledge to undertake effective commissioning and derive maximum benefit. These risks 
can be mitigated by the involvement of service users in the end to end process and 
appropriate training for Members and Officers.  

 
REPORT 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 The Council spends circa £12 million per annum on goods and services for the 

benefit of the communities of Ryedale. This spend is spread across a range of 
delivery mechanisms from in-house service delivery; partnership arrangements; 
significant grants to the voluntary and community sectors (VCS); contracts for 
services; arms length management organisations (ALMOs) and fully outsourced 
arrangements. This spend has traditionally been managed in line with the Council’s 
internal procedures, value for money principles and procurement rules. There is 
some targeting of these resources to meet needs as identified in the Sustainable 
Community Strategy and the Council Plan however the Council’s spend is not 
explicitly managed against these community priorities and the Council’s corporate 
objectives. Budgeting has been largely based on the resourcing of existing services 
and service levels with some annual growth or efficiency savings being applied. 
 

5.2 The rules of the game have changed. The challenge is to deliver better, more 
responsive services with less. There are a range of factors driving local authorities to 
seek new solutions to secure exceptional value for money. Ensuring that those wider 
community benefits, that contribute to social, environmental, health and economic 
well-being are maximised.  
 

5.3 The new inspection regime: Comprehensive Area Assessment (CAA) expects 
Councils to have a sound understanding of its costs (including whole life costs), the 
main factors that influence these costs and how they link to performance and that this 
is taken into account in decision making and commissioning. (KLOE 1.2) It also 
demands that the Council understands the impact of its operations and activities on 
wider social, environmental and economic outcomes.  
 

5.4 This is all over-laid with the knowledge that the Council – and the public sector in 
general - is facing a much leaner fiscal future with anticipated cuts in government 
grants necessitating savings for this Council of circa £1 million by 2011.  
  

5.5 This demands creative and innovative change.  This is not a tweak of the rules, it is a 
fundamental re-write and this Council needs to equip itself now to respond effectively 
to the challenges ahead. 

 
6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
 
6.1 The approach recommended in this report is consistent with Aim 5 of the Council 

Plan – “Transforming the Council” and specifically agreed strategic objectives 9 and 
10: 

 Objective 9 – To understand our communities and meet their needs; and 

Page 108



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

 Objective 10 – To develop the leadership, capacity and capability to deliver future 
improvements  

 
6.2 It will also serve as a significant enabler for the Council’s “one-11 Programme”; 

saving £1 million by April 2011.  
 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 To date Officers have carried out significant desktop research to assess progress 

made by other authorities and agencies; consulted with the Assistant Director of 
Commissioning and Partnerships at North Yorkshire County Council and have taken 
the findings of a recent consultation and involvement project with the voluntary and 
community sector “Ryedale Partnership Improvement Programme” (PIP) into 
account. 

 
7.2 The desktop research has shown that strategic commissioning approaches are 

starting to replace or augment traditional procurement methods for a range of 
services. Much of the early success was in health and social care however more 
recently the approach has crossed to customer services, environmental services and 
housing. 

 
7.3 Feedback from NYCC was encouraging and the Assistant Director has offered to 

present his experiences to Members through a facilitated workshop. 
 
7.4 The PIP consultation highlighted the need for clear and consistent approaches to 

commissioning across the public sector and the need for early involvement of 
potential suppliers of services in the design and delivery.  

 
8.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
8.1 As a fourth option authority operating a committee system the Council currently 

supports two policy committees: Policy and Resources Committee (P&R) and 
Community Services Committee (CS). Both have responsibilities for developing 
policy and ensuring value for money services. However, there is sometimes overlap 
in the roles of the committee with some service areas reporting to both e.g. economic 
development; and environment. Furthermore, P&R has the authority to determine 
matters regarding budget and spend.  

 
8.2 In light of the drivers influencing local government described above there is a need to 

examine how we do things, this includes both the delivery of services and how we 
procure and commission them. In considering this a number of authorities are 
adopting a strategic commissioning approach to sit alongside their procurement 
processes.  

 
8.3 Some authorities have or are introducing governance arrangements to lead and 

monitor this new business model through the establishment of Commissioning or 
Procurement Boards. 

 
8.4 This report is seeking Member approval for Ryedale District Council to develop an 

approach to commissioning that is appropriate for the size and capacity of the 
Council that optimises our resources. 

 
8.5 Commissioning is essentially about connecting resources to priorities to meet the 

Page 109



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

needs and achieve the outcomes sought for residents. It follows therefore, that there 
is an opportunity to potentially improve outcomes and be more responsive by moving 
from a delivery and procurement service model to one of commissioning. Currently 
the Council has very limited experience of commissioning both from an officer and a 
Member perspective. The majority of goods and services being procured through 
traditional delivery models. Some of the Council discretionary grants spend uses 
some commissioning principles but this is limited in scope and value.  
 

8.6 The research has shown that Commissioning is usually defined as a cycle which: 

• Identifies needs in partnership with users and communities;  

• Strategically plans services which deliver added value sustainable outcomes; 

• Develops solutions; implements plans; and shapes the markets to deliver the 
outcomes;  

• Secures – through procurement and contractual arrangements - the services; 
and 

• Monitors the delivery of outcomes, evaluating and challenging services. 
It requires an understanding of what local people want and need, a knowledge of the 
local markets and increasingly investment from a range of other local public service 
providers.  

 
8.7 This is consistent with the findings and recommendations of the PIP which agreed to 

adopt a statement of intent which would seek to develop: “shared rules of 
engagement; involvement of district and county; a joint protocol regarding local 
purchasing; a standard evaluation framework and a joint investment prospectus”. 

 
8.8 This differs from the more traditional methods of service delivery – direct delivery, 

procurement based on a tightly specified client contracts, grant aid relationships - in a 
number of ways. It involves the users or receivers of services throughout the 
commissioning cycle, from the definition of what is needed and valued; designing 
how those needs are best met and delivering the outcomes. Most commissioning 
approaches reviewed to date emphasise the importance of socially responsible 
procurement, using whole life costing and assessing the social, environmental and 
economic impact of procurement decisions. This is very different from traditional 
procurement methods and supplier led service delivery models.  

 
8.9 The CS Committee currently considers reports on issues relating to the Council’s 

priority aims. It receives regular information in relation to affordable housing, 
economic success, the environment and active safe communities. It is envisaged that 
the Commissioning Board would continue to play an active role in these 4 priority 
Council aims, indeed it would be a strengthened role as it is proposed that it would 
have the authority to commission services and projects specifically designed to 
deliver against these agreed outcomes.   

  
8.10 This is the first report on this issue. It is not the intention to present a fully developed 

Commissioning Strategy at this stage. Officers will develop a strategy in due course 
and it is envisaged that this will integrate with and complement the Council’s Contract 
Procedures and Procurement policies. Both these procedures are currently under 
review it therefore makes sense to align the Council’s approach to commissioning as 
part of that process. 

 
8.11  In order to progress this work it is however essential that a number of general 

principles are agreed at this stage. This will give officers the necessary steer to 
develop an approach and will allow for the necessary authorisations to be agreed 

Page 110



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

and changes to the constitution. Attached at Annex A to this report is the proposed 
approach to commissioning as the basis for the development of a Commissioning 
Strategy. It is suggested that the Council adopts a strategic approach which 
considers whole life costing, user involvement and working with partners on whole 
services rather than a fragmented approach. The full strategy will identify for which 
services Officers believe the approach is best suited and where it will deliver most 
benefits.   

 
8.12 Attached at Annex B is a draft document outlining the scope of the Board. It is likely 

that this will be subject to change as the authority gains experience and confidence. 
However it is a useful starting point on which to build and is based on a number of 
the best examples reviewed as part of the desktop research.   

 
9.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The following implications have been identified: 

a) Financial 
The aim is that a move away from traditional procurement and direct service 
delivery to a mixed economy approach to procurement and commissioning will 
help to achieve the Council’s target of £1m cashable savings by 2011. At this 
stage in development no additional financial resources are required to progress 
this initiative however there may be a need in the future months to allocate some 
existing officer resource to the delivery of commissioned services.   

 
b) Legal 

The recommendation to suspend the Community Services Committee and 
establish a Commissioning Board will require amendments to the Council’s 
constitution. These amendments will be aligned with the work of the Constitution 
Working Party.  

 
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & 

Disorder) 
As this initiative develops and progresses it may have implications on a range of 
Council operations and corporate policies. These will be individually assessed as 
part of the development of the Commissioning Strategy and model.  

 
10.0 NEXT STEPS  
 
10.1 It is proposed that the following actions are taken over the next six months for 

implementation of the Board in May 2010: 

• Constitutional changes – January 2010 

• NYCC facilitated Commissioning Workshop – January 2010 

• Adopt draft Commissioning Strategy – March 2010 

• Adopt Terms of Reference March 2010 

• Appoint to Board – May 2010 

• Agree Commissioning priorities – May 2010 
 
Marie-Ann Jackson 
Corporate Director 
 

Page 111



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

Authors:  Marie-Ann Jackson, Corporate Director & 
    Elizabeth Hayes, Democratic Services Officer 
 
Telephone No: 01653 600666  ext: 345/343 
 
E-Mail Address: marie-ann.jackson@ryedale.gov.uk 
    liz.hayes@ryedale.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers: 

• Comprehensive Area Assessment – Use of Resources Framework. Overall Approach & 
Key Lines of Enquiry – Audit Commission – May 2008 

• Council Plan 
 
Background Papers are available for inspection at: 
http://www.audit-commission.gov.uk/SiteCollectionDocuments/Downloads/20091030uorframework.pdf 
www.ryedale.gov.uk 
 

 
  

Page 112



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

ANNEX A 
 

General Principles for Commissioning 
 
The following general principles will be used as the basis for the development of a Ryedale 
Strategic Commissioning Strategy: 
 

• Commissioning is defined as the entire cycle of assessing needs, designing services, 
securing services, evaluating outcomes. 
 

• The Council recognises the need to balance delivering cost savings and efficiencies 
and with the need to deliver good quality responsive services.   
 

• People and place will be placed at the heart of commissioning and the Council will 
involve service users and the local community throughout the cycle. 

 

• The Council will recognise and embrace diversity in the way services are provided 
with the focus on desired outcomes and not on the service delivery vehicle (public, 
private or third sector). 

 

• The Council supports a sustainable commissioning model where the broader social, 
environmental and economic impacts of procurement and commissioning processes 
will be considered when making decisions on how best to procure goods and 
services. 

 

• The Council has a key role to play in developing local markets. 
 

• Commissioning and procurement decisions will be undertaken in an open and 
transparent way and in line with local and national financial regulations.  

 

• The Council will actively seek opportunities for joint commissioning across local 
statutory bodies in the search for best value. 

 

• The Council will manage its commissioning activities through the establishment of a 
Commissioning Board. 

Page 113



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
  
 

 

ANNEX B  
 

Draft Scope for a Commissioning Board 
 
 
Membership:  
The Board is comprised of 10/11 Members of the Council.  
The Board is appointed at Annual Council and is subject to political proportionality. 
The Board has powers delegated to it from Council and as such is subject to Overview and 
Scrutiny. 
 
Role and functions: 

• Facilitate the development and adoption of a Commissioning strategy and model; 

• Develop sustainable procurement policies; 

• Oversee the commissioning cycle; 

• Provide the necessary corporate challenge for existing services and existing delivery 
vehicles; 

• To support the Council in its move to a mixed economy for service delivery by 
providing the means to explore new approaches to contracting, procurement, grant 
allocations and collaboration; 

• To give political guidance on proposals arising from the appraisal of options for 
service delivery; 

• The governance of major commissioned projects and contracts. 

• To provide Member approvals for resource allocation and budgeted spend in line with 
the Council’s schemes of delegation and financial standing orders; 

• To monitor the performance of commissioned services and contracts against agreed 
community outcomes. 

 
 

Page 114



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

RISK MATRIX – COMMISSIONING BOARD 
 

 
Issue/Risk 

 
Consequences if allowed 

to happen 

 
Likeli-
hood 

 

 
Impact 

 
Mitigation 

 
Mitigated 
Likelihood 

Mitigated 
Impact 

The use of commissioning does 
not deliver improvements to 
services or end users.  

User satisfaction 
decreases. Adverse 
external inspection. 

 
 
3 

 
 
D 

Involve users in development 
of Commissioning Strategy 
and approach, training for 
Members and officers. Learn 
from experiences of others.  

 
 
2 

 
 
B 

Commissioning is not appropriate 
for a significant proportion of 
District Council Services and the 
investment in the Board is 
disproportionate to the benefits 
derived. 

Savings required elsewhere 
in the organisation. 

 
 
3 

 
 
D 

Involve users in development 
of Commissioning Strategy 
and approach, training for 
Members and officers. Learn 
from experiences of others.  

 
 
2 

 
 
B 

Members and Officers do not 
possess the skills or knowledge to 
undertake effective 
commissioning and derive 
maximum benefit. 

Pilot fails to deliver any 
benefits to the organisation. 
Potential for increased 
costs and reduced 
performance. 

 
 
3 

 
 
C 

Training arranged using 
experienced officers from 
partner authorities – January. 
Officer training on-going. 

 
 
1 

 
 
A 
 
 

 

 

 

Score Likelihood Score Impact 

1 Very Low A Low 

2 Not Likely B Minor 

3 Likely C Medium 

4 Very Likely D Major 

5 Almost Certain E Disaster 

 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

4

P
a
g
e
 1

1
5



P
a
g

e
 1

1
6

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 
PART B:   RECOMMENDATIONS TO COUNCIL 
 
REPORT TO:   COMMUNITY SERVICES COMMITTEE 
 
DATE:    26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
REPORT OF THE:  CORPORATE DIRECTOR (s151) 
    PAUL CRESSWELL 
 
TITLE OF REPORT:  FEES AND CHARGES 
 
WARDS AFFECTED:  ALL  
 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 
 
1.0 PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 This report sets out the proposed fees and charges for 2010/2011 for services under 

the remit of this committee. 
 
2.0 RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
2.1 That Council is recommended to approve the following Fees and Charges: 
 

(i) Septic Tanks and Taxi Licensing (Annex 1); 
  

(ii) Refuse Collection Including Trade Waste (Annex 2); 
 

(iii) Car Parks (Annex 3); 
 
(iv) Environmental Health (Annex 4); and 

 
(v) Ryecare (Annex 5). 

 
3.0 REASON FOR RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
3.1 The fees and charges are important part of the Council’s budget strategy, the 

recommendations take into account the guidance from the Policy and Resources 
Committee. 

 
4.0 SIGNIFICANT RISKS 
 
4.1 The significant risk is that the charges as proposed do not achieve the consequent 

increases in income due to adverse effect on demand. This is mitigated by 
consideration of the factors and demand analysis for the relevant charges. Where 

Agenda Item 15

Page 117



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

appropriate target increases are not recommended.  
 
REPORT 
 
5.0 BACKGROUND AND INTRODUCTION 
 
5.1 A report on the budget strategy for 2010/2011 was presented to the Policy and 

Resources Committee on the 1 October 2009. At that meeting the parameters for 
increases in fees and charges set a target of 4%, however officers would consider 
whether such increases could adversely affect income overall in making their 
recommendations. 

 
5.2 This report sets out the proposals for: 

• Septic Tanks and Taxi Licensing (Annex 1) 

• Refuse Collection Including Trade Waste (Annex 2) 

• Car Parks (Annex 3) 

• Environmental Health (Annex 4) 

• Ryecare (Annex 5) 
 
5.3 Members will be aware that the reduction in VAT to 15% introduced on 1 December 

2008 is presently planned to cease on the 1 January 2010 and therefore some 
increase in charges reflects this change. 

 
6.0 POLICY CONTEXT 
 
6.1 This report supports existing Council Policy and the budget strategy. 
 
7.0 CONSULTATION 
 
7.1 Consultation on the proposals has not taken place. 
 
8.0 REPORT DETAILS 
 
8.1 The Annexes to this report set out the proposed charges for 2010/2011 for the 

services listed.  
 
8.2 The following charges have not been increased in line with the parameters set by 

Policy and Resources Committee: 
 
 Taxi Charges 
 A price freeze is the recommended option for this service in view of the significant 

price increases experienced when the policy to achieve cost neutral service was 
introduced together with current economic climate and 8% drop in licence numbers 
(reduced from 181 to 171 licences processed a year).  The Policy has been amended 
to seek to achieve most efficient/effective service with minimum cost to council tax 
payer.  Financial impact of not applying 4% min increase is £1,500. 

 
 Trade Waste and Refuse 

 Increased disposal costs by 8.5% as advised by NYCC and other charges increased 
by 5%, these are the maximum charges allowing flexibility whilst still remaining 
competitive. 

 
 

Page 118



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

 Car Parking Charges 
The proposed charges for 2010/11 have been calculated on the basis that there is no 
increase to prices in Malton car parks. The proposals will generate increased income 
of approx £27,000. Increasing the Malton charges in line with others would generate 
an additional £4,000 and meet the target increase. There are significant differences 
in the parking statistics comparing Malton with Helmsley, Pickering and 
Kirkbymoorside. Since free parking was introduced in Malton Market by the Estate in 
May there has been a downward trend in demand and usage in the Council operated 
pay and display car parks in Malton. However for the other market towns an analysis 
of car parking activity for the period April to September and the same period last year 
shows encouraging increases in turnover (averaging 20%) mainly due to increased 
demand in ticket sales for 2 hour parking. The proposal not to increase the car 
parking charges in Malton would be that this is on the basis that concessions are no 
longer given for one-off events as is currently the case i.e. £1.50 all day charges for 
Wentworth Street. 
The prices are also assuming VAT at 17.5% in 2010/11 and are set to reflect 
appropriate coinage denominations. Last year the reduced VAT reduction was 
passed onto car park users with no increase to 1hr and 2hr ticket prices. There has 
been no increase to 1hr prices since 05/06 and 2hr prices since 06/07.  The impact of 
the VAT change is to make some of the increases look high. 

 
 Pest Control Charges 

 Due to last years poor demand and the commercial pressures from competition it is 
recommended that the charges for wasps be reduced from £34.78 to £34.04 (net) for 
when VAT increases again to retain the gross charge at £40 and similarly the charge 
for mice, fleas and squirrels (up to 3 visits) be reduced from £42.61 to £41.70(net) to 
retain a gross charge of £49. The Council service is at a commercial disadvantage to 
other suppliers in that the charges are published on the Internet which the 
competitors uses in setting their charges to undercut the Council’s service. By 
retaining the price the Council will remain competitive and the reassurance of quality 
may give the Council a more competitive edge. If the charge is too high the callers 
will either self treat with the multitude of products now available on the market or call 
someone else. 

 
 Ryecare 
 Increases in Ryecare charges are proposed at 2%. Ryecare charges for 2009/10 

increased by 4% which resulted in some service users deciding that they were 
unable to afford to continue receiving the service. It is anticipated that any increase 
which is substantially above the RPI may result in further service users deciding not 
to continue receiving the service. In addition there are now other opportunities 
available to potential service users which can provide a service which may be more 
tailored to their particular needs. 

 
9.0 IMPLICATIONS 
 
9.1 The following implications have been identified: 

a) Financial 
As detailed within the report and Annexes. 

 
b) Legal 

There are no additional Legal Issues from the decision in this report. 
 
c) Other (Equalities, Staffing, Planning, Health & Safety, Environmental, Crime & 

Page 119



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 
 
 

 

Disorder) 
There are no significant additional implications of the proposals. 

 
 
Paul Cresswell 
Corporate Director (s151) 
 
 
Author:  Paul Cresswell, Corporate Director (s151) 
Telephone No: 01653 600666  ext: 214 
E-Mail Address: paul.cresswell@ryedale.gov.uk  
 
Background Papers: 
None. 
 
Background Papers are available for inspection at: 
N/a  

Page 120



Annex 1

SEPTIC TANKS AND TAXI LICENSING

PROPOSED CHARGES 2010/11

Proposed Comments

Unit of Charge Charge

Charge 2009/10 2010/11

£ £

Septic Tank Emptying

Domestic Emptying Per Tank 182.00 190.00 4%

Disposal 210.00 210.00 NO INCREASE

Non-Domestic Charges Per Hour 54.60 60.00 10%

Sewage Disposal Charge Per 1,000 Prices as per Prices as per

Galls or part YWA charges YWA charges

Licence Fees *PLEASE NOTE THAT THERE IS AN ADDITIONAL FEE OF no vat

£36 PAYABLE FOR THE POLICE CHECK, PAYABLE 

Hackney Carriages DIRECTLY TO THE CRIMINAL RECORDS BUREAU

Vehicle Year 367.40 367.40 PRICE FREEZE

Driver - Renewal Year 94.60 94.60 PRICE FREEZE

        -  New applications Year 139.70 139.70 PRICE FREEZE

* SEE ABOVE

Private Hire

Operators Year 293.70 293.70 PRICE FREEZE

Vehicle Year 367.40 367.40 PRICE FREEZE

Driver - Renewal Year 94.60 94.60 PRICE FREEZE

        -  New applications Year 139.70 139.70 PRICE FREEZE

* SEE ABOVE

Dual Licence - Renewal 117.70 117.70 PRICE FREEZE

              -  New applications 168.30 168.30 PRICE FREEZE

Licence Amendment Fee 50.60 50.60 PRICE FREEZE

School Transport

One Vehicle Year 132.00 132.00 PRICE FREEZE

Two Vehicles Year 204.60 204.60 PRICE FREEZE

Hackney Carriage/Private Hire Other Charges

Re-inspection Charge Per Inspection 50.60 50.60 PRICE FREEZE

Change of Vehicle Per Vehicle 146.30 146.30 PRICE FREEZE

Replacement Plates Per Plate 59.40 59.40 PRICE FREEZE

Cancellation Charge Per Vehicle 146.30 146.30 PRICE FREEZE

Short Notice Test Per Vehicle 388.30 388.30 PRICE FREEZE

Agenda Item 15

Page 121



ANNEX 2

REFUSE COLLECTION including TRADE WASTE

PROPOSED CHARGES 2010/2011

Proposed Comments

Unit of Charge Charge

Charge 2009/10 2010/11

£ £

Refuse Collection

(including disposal charge)

Domestic Properties

Special Collections 2 items 19.00 20.00 *1 5% INCREASE

Bulky Household Waste Per Visit 56.00 59.00 *1 5% INCREASE

(in excess of 2 items)

New/Replacement dom bins (Developers Only) £25 + delivery charge

New/Replacement dom boxes (Developers Only) £6 + delivery charge

Sale of Sacks

Bin Liners Per 52 bags 3.85 4.00 *1 4% INCREASE

Bio bags Per 10 bags 3.85 4.00 *1 4% INCREASE

Other Charges (new)

Graffitti Removal Per Job Prices will be charged on an hourly rate basis

Erection of signs, bins etc.  

Building works Per Job Prices will be charged on an hourly rate basis

TRADE WASTE CHARGES ARE ALL PLUS VAT SEE KEY TO BANDS BELOW

Trade Waste (Note: these are maximum charges, prices are negotiable)

BAND 1 BAND 2 BAND 3 BAND 1 BAND 2 BAND 3

Bulk Containers Per Container 688.76 710.44 730.54 739.03 761.80 782.91 *2

(1100 litres) Per annum *3

Bulk Containers Per Container 427.82 442.60 455.42 458.71 474.23 487.70 *2

(660  litres) Per annum *3

Bulk Containers Per Container 268.38 276.24 287.10 286.98 295.23 306.63 *2

(360 litres) Per annum *3

Bulk Containers Per Container 178.60 184.50 190.42 190.98 197.19 203.39 *2

(240 litres) Per annum *3

Bulk Containers Per Container 122.60 126.54 131.46 130.75 134.88 140.04 *2

(140 litres) Per annum *3

Bags (or stickers) Per annum *3 89.22 93.16 97.12 94.54 98.68 102.83 *2

(60 litres)

4 Duty of Care p.a. per contract 58.00 58.00 58.00 61.00 61.00 61.00

Failure to Return Duty of Care 27.50 27.50 27.50 29.00 29.00 29.00

5 Miscellaneous Charge 33.00 38.50 44.00 34.65 40.40 46.20

*1  Includes VAT

*2  Prices include a 5% increase on hire and collection charges and 8.5% for disposal as per NYCC

*3  Based on one weekly collection

KEY TO BANDS AND AREAS:

BAND 1= MALTON, NORTON, A64 MAIN ROAD

BAND 2= HELMSLEY, KIRKBYMOORSIDE, PICKERING AND THORNTON DALE

BAND 3= ALL OTHER AREAS

Page 122



Annex 3

Proposed Comments

Unit of Charge Charge

Charge 2009/10 2010/11

£ £

Off Street Parking

Up to 1 hour 1.00 1.10 10% INCREASE

Short Stay Up to 2 hours 1.80 2.00 11% INCREASE

Long Stay Up to 2 hours 1.60 1.90 19% INCREASE

Up to 3 hours 2.20 2.40 9% INCREASE

Up to 6 hours 3.50 3.70 6% INCREASE

Over 6 hours 4.90 5.20 6% INCREASE

Note: No increase on charges in Malton (Water lane & Wentworth Steet Car Parks)

Up to 1 hour 1.00 1.00 NO INCREASE

Up to 2 hours 1.60 1.60 NO INCREASE

Up to 3 hours 2.20 2.20 NO INCREASE

Up to 6 hours 3.50 3.50 NO INCREASE

Over 6 hours 4.90 4.90 NO INCREASE

Permits replacement 1.60 1.70 6% INCREASE

7 day permit 14.00 15.00 7% INCREASE

RESIDENTS Short stay 41.00 43.00 5% INCREASE

NON-RESIDENTS Short stay 102.00 107.00 5% INCREASE

Long stay 173.00 181.00 5% INCREASE

Smartcards

Per card 10.00 10.00 NO INCREASE

Then:

Up to 1 hour 0.50 0.55 10% INCREASE

Short Stay Up to 2 hours 0.90 1.00 11% INCREASE

Long Stay Up to 2 hours 0.80 0.95 19% INCREASE

Up to 3 hours 1.10 1.20 9% INCREASE

Up to 6 hours 1.75 1.85 6% INCREASE

Over 6 hours 2.45 2.60 6% INCREASE

Note: No increase on charges in Malton (Water lane & Wentworth Steet Car Parks)

Up to 1 hour 0.50 0.50 NO INCREASE

Up to 2 hours 0.80 0.80 NO INCREASE

Up to 3 hours 1.10 1.10 NO INCREASE

Up to 6 hours 1.75 1.75 NO INCREASE

Over 6 hours 2.45 2.45 NO INCREASE

Excess Charges

Payable within 46.00 46.00 NO INCREASE

7 days

Payable after 92.00 92.00 NO INCREASE

7 days

Cancellation fee 10.00 10.00 NO INCREASE

Coaches with over

 11 seats Free Free NO INCREASE

HGV's 5.00 5.00 NO INCREASE

CAR PARKS

PROPOSED CHARGES 2010/2011

Page 123



Page 124

This page is intentionally left blank



ANNEX 4 
 

ENVIRONMENTAL HEALTH  
 

  REVIEW OF CHARGES 2010/2011  

         

      Proposed  Estimated 

  Unit of  Charge  Charge  Income 

  Charge  2009/10  2010/11  2010/11 

    £  £  £ 

Pest Control – Maximum 

Charges 

   (Inc VAT)  (Inc VAT)   

Casual Treatments         

Commercial (Plus materials)  Hour  43.04  44.76  7,740.00 

    (49.50  (£52.60)   

Small Commercial         

Rodent Treatments  Treatment  102.00  106.00  210.00 

(up to 3 Visits)    (117.30)  (£124.55)   

         

Domestic Insects (except 
fleas) 

 Treatment  40.00  41.70  3,580.00 

e.g. ants.flies, beetles etc    (46.00)  (£49.00)   

         

Wasps   Treatment  34.78  34.04  13,240.00 

    (40.00)  (£40.00)   

Mice, Fleas and Squirrels  Treatment  42.61  41.70  2,720.00 

(up to 3 Visits)    (49.00)  (£49.00)   

         

Special Domestic  Treatment  59.57  65.11  150.00 

   
 

 (72.00)  (£76.50)   

Concessionary flat charge   Treatment  18.26  18.72  860.00 

    (21.00)  (£22.00)   

Water Sampling         

Private Water Sampling  Visit  49.00  50.00   

         

Health Licences         

Acupuncture, Cosmetic 
Piercing 

        

Tattooing, Electrolysis:         

         

Reg. Of Premises  Per Reg  150.00  156.00                 - 

Reg. Of Operators:         

Tattooing   Per Reg  65.00  68.00  - 

Semi-permanent Skin 
Colouring 

 Per Reg  65.00  68.00  - 

Acupuncture  Per Reg  65.00  68.00     - 

Agenda Item 15

Page 125



Cosmetic Piercing  Per Reg  65.00  68.00     - 

Electrolysis  Per Reg  65.00  68.00     - 

Variation of Registration   Per Reg  13.00  14.00   

Motor Car Salvage  Per Reg       68.00  71.00  - 

Motor Car Salvage certified 
copy of Public register 

 Per Copy         8.00  9.00  - 

Control of Sex 
Establishments 

  
 

    
 

  
- 

New Establishment  Per Reg  4000.00  4160.00   

Annual Licence Fee  Year  3600.00  3740.00   

Transfer Fee    550.00  570.00   

Change of Name    50.00  52.00   

         

Riding Establishments         

New Establishment    78.00  82.00   

    + Vet Fee  + Vet Fee        

Annual Renewal         

 1 – 10 Horses  Year  280.00  29500  300.00 

 11 – 20 Horses  Year  330.00  345.00  690.00 

 20 + Horses  Year  390.00  410.00  410.00 

Dangerous Wild Animals  Year       78.00 
 +Vet Fee 

        82.00 
 +Vet Fee 
 

 - 

Zoo Licence    At cost  At cost   

         

Animal Boarding         

Establishments  Year  78.00  82.00  1060.00 

Home Boarding  Year  58.00  61.00  430.00 

Pet Shops  Year  65.00  68.00  340.00 

Dog Breeding + Vet as 
required 

 Year  65.00  68.00  200.00 

         

Markets         

Helmsley - Stall  Week  20.00  21.00  29370.00 

              - Vehicle  Week  5.50  5.70  1480.00 

Pickering - Stall  Week  20.00  21.00  32550.00 

         

Miscellaneous         

Environmental Searches  Per Hour  44.00  46.00   

         

Export Certificates  Per Certif 93.00  96.00  - 

        
 
  

Page 126



ANNEX 5 

RYECARE 
 

              

  REVIEW OF CHARGES 2010/2011   

          

      Proposed  Estimated  

  Unit of  Charge  Charge  Income  

  Charge  2009/10  2010/11  2010/11  

    £  £  £  

Ryecare Lifeline Charges          

Privately Owned Units:          

Monitoring and Maintenance  Per 
Week 

 2.67  2.72  280.00  

          

Leased Units:          

Including hire, maintenance &          

monitoring Lifeline Unit  Per 
Week 

 4.24  4.32  97,710.00  

(Replaces Customer's phone)          

Portal Unit  Per 
Week 

 3.90  3.98  4,970.00  

          
 

Agenda Item 15

Page 127



Page 128

This page is intentionally left blank



COMMUNITY SERVICES  26 NOVEMBER 2009 

 

RISK MATRIX 
 

 
Issue/Risk 

 
Consequences if allowed 

to happen 

 
Likeli-
hood 

 

 
Impact 

 
Mitigation 

 
Mitigated 
Likelihood 

Mitigated 
Impact 

The increases in fees and 
charges are counter productive as 
demand falls in excess of 
additional income 

Failure to achieve budget 
targets will require 
additional savings to be 
identified or cuts to other 
services 

3 D Demand and competition 
factors are reviewed in setting 
charges and where evidence 
shows that increases will 
have a negative impact 
alternatives are 
recommended to members  

2 B 

 

 

 

Score Likelihood Score Impact 

1 Very Low A Low 

2 Not Likely B Minor 

3 Likely C Medium 

4 Very Likely D Major 

5 Almost Certain E Disaster 

 

A
g
e
n

d
a
 Ite

m
 1

5

P
a
g
e
 1

2
9



P
a
g

e
 1

3
0

T
h

is
 p

a
g

e
 is

 in
te

n
tio

n
a
lly

 le
ft b

la
n
k


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of a Meeting of the Community Services Committee held on 24 September 2009
	6 Performance & Finance Report - Council Aims 1 - 4
	Part A - HE HEH HP Performance and Finance report - Annex A - Final
	Part A - HE HEH HP - Performance & Finance Report - Annex A1 - PRINT IN COLOUR - Final
	Part A - HE HEH HP - Performance & Finance Report - Annex A2 - PRINT IN COLOUR - Final

	7 Housing Performance Report
	8 Breathing Spaces - Mortgage Loan Scheme
	9 External Review of Pickering and Helmsley Markets
	Part A - HoE - External Review of Pickering and Helmsley Markets ANNEX A - 26 Nov 09
	Part A - HoE - External Review of Pickering and Helmsley Markets ANNEX B- 26 Nov 09
	Part A - HoE - External Review of Pickering and Helmsley Markets - ANNEX C 26 Nov 09

	10 Proposed Refurbishment of the Public Toilets at Market Place, Malton
	Part A - HoE - Proposed Refurbishment of the Malton Market Place Public Conveniences Risk Matrix - Annex A - Final

	11 The Malton Air Quality Management Order 2009 - Results of Consultation
	Part A - HoE - The Malton Air Quality Management Area Order2009- Annex A - Final
	Part A - HoE - The Malton Air Quality Management Area Order2009- results of consultation Risk Matrix - 26 Nov-09 - Final

	12 Vale of Pickering Channel Management Pilot Project
	Part A - HoE Vale of Pickering Channel management - ANNEX A - 26 Nov 2009 - Final

	14 Commissioning Board - Proposed Terms of Reference
	Part B - CD - Commissioning Board Report Risk Matrix - 26 Nov 09 - Final

	15 Fees and Charges
	Part B - CD151 - Fees and Charges Annexes 1-3 (ON THREE WORKSHEETS)
	Part B - CD151 - Fees and Charges Annex 4
	Part B - CD151 - Fees and Charges Annex 5
	Part B - CD151 - Fees and Charges Risk Annex


